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China CITIC Bank International Limited
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ChinaCITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI”) isawholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited (“CIFH”), which in turn is 70.32%-owned by
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and 29.68%-owned by Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. (“BBVA”) of Spain.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define and exceed both the wealth
management and international business objectives of Greater China and overseas
customers, CNCBI aspires to be the “China Bank of Choice”, with the best international
standards and capabilities.

CNCBI’s footprint in Greater China includes 34 branches in Hong Kong, as well as
branches and presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau. CNCBI also has
overseas branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore.
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Our Mission

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise

the growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core
to our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our
network capability in China, coupled with our customer-

centric execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership
and success are a key competitive advantage of ours.

Our Core Values
Customer-centric
Progressive
Execution

Value Creating

Integrity

Building People, Building Team
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Financial Performance

202 BRE 2012 Financial Highlights
2FE(EEER) For the year (HK$ million) 2012 2017 % change
FER B A Net interest income 2,339 1,862 +25.6
FER B A Non-interest income 1,377 1,557 -11.6
"ETh Operating expenses (1,808) (1,652) +9.4
ERRBIRE Impairment losses (charged)/written

(%) B back onloans and advances (91) 75 2215
75t Al 4 A Profit before taxation 1,866 1,692 41103
g%t Income tax (309) (282) +9.6
[i% 5 & 1h i A Profit attributable to shareholders 1,557 1,410 +104
REZBR(EEBT) At year end (HK$ million) 2012 2011 % change
B RBH Loans and advances 105,092 93,718 +12.1
BEHE Total assets 177,181 171,426 +34
FRiBE Total deposits 145,017 139,164 +4.2
% S = Shareholders’ equity 15,052 13,105 +14.9
B b & Financial ratios 2012 2011
BT R E Capital adequacy 18.2% 18.3%
EEEERBES LR Average liquidity 59.4% 43.6%
Bk & Loans to deposits 72.5% 67.3%
P 35 WA B R Cost to income 48.7% 48.3%
HISIRIT (B BIRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



REREMLER (BBET)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

EE#RE (BBERT)

Total assets (HKS million)

REER (BEET)
Shareholders’ equity (HKS million)

12 12 12
11 1,410 11 171,426 11 13,105
10 1,057 10 148,209 10 13,352
09 953 09 120,123 09 12,231
08 128 08 121,810 08 9,531
S5 BB BER 5 Year Financial Summary
E2EZE(BEBTR) For the year (HK$ million) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
F B A Net interest income 2,339 1,862 1,813 1,937 1,546
FER B A Non-interest income 1,377 1,557 1,193 1,257 302%
LT Operating expenses (1,808) (1,652) (1,452) (1,595) (1,325)
EXRBTRE Impairment losses (charged)/written back

() /Bl 5 on loans and advances (91) 75 (262) (559) (383)
5t A4 A Profit before taxation 1,866 1,692 1,160 1,120 164
8% Income tax (309) (282) (103) (167) (36)
% B8 FE 1 Y F) Profit attributable to shareholders 1,557 1,410 1,057 953 128
* AEGEEEEETAR * Including net loss and

/Y5 & 18 X HiE write-down on SIVs

(2008 : 718184 7T ) (2008: HK$718 million)
REZBH(BEE®B ) At year end (HKS$ million) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
e Y& Loans and advances 105,092 93,718 88,818 73,251 74,231
B R Impairment allowance 546 543 658 624 485
BEME Total assets 177,181 171,426 148,209 120,123 121,810
TR B U S B EM(E  Average interest earnings assets 169,560 153,209 131,337 112,709 103,461
FR 4B Total deposits 145,017 139,164 120,451 97,935 99,454
i R4 = Shareholders’ equity 15,052 13,105 13,352 12,231 9,531
B 7% b & Financial ratios 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
BERFT R E Capital adequacy 18.2% 18.3% 19.0% 16.4% 14.7%
2EFHRHELEE  Average liquidity 59.4% 43.6% 44.7% 48.8% 37.0%
BTFLh % Loans to deposits 72.5% 67.3% 73.7% 74.8% 74.6%
ERHEERENLX Loans to total assets 59.3% 54.7% 59.9% 61.0% 60.9%
CETEEELLX Collective assessment coverage 0.3% 0.4% 0.4% 0.4% 0.3%
N N s = Cost to income 48.7% 48.3% 483% 49.9% 71.7%
& B 3 R Return on assets 0.9% 0.9% 0.8% 0.8% 0.1%
i B 2= [B] e 2 Return on shareholders’ equity 10.8% 10.2% 8.2% 8.7% 1.3%
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Financial Performance

T Deposits*
1. RERE S By type 2012 2011
(G Current 12.3% 11.5%
& Savings 19.3% 16.3%
E Hf Fixed 68.4% 72.2%
CEll Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. REBEE D By maturity 2012 2011
ISR B On demand 31.5% 27.8%
DR 31E A Less than 3 months 51.8% 60.1%
Him3E A ETEIF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 15.6% 8.3%
BRIFEIRSE Over 1 year but less than 5 years 1.1% 3.8%
A&t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REE D By currency 2012 2011
BT HKD 54.6% 53.5%
ET usb 21.0% 18.6%
Hth Others 24.4% 27.9%
CEil Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, FEREEBE#E Number of deposit accounts 2012 2011
286,830 268,261

* AEPHERAER

45.3%

¥ Based on customer deposits only

44.8%

B EARETRITE

65.0%

Personal & Business Banking Group

006 FiZER1T (BIFR) BRAT

Total Deposits
Breakdown

9.9%

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

m FHE
Certificates of Deposit

m Hft
Others

RAIREIREB
Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group

33.9%

wWERDMH
Total Loans
Breakdown

1.1%
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Financial Performance

Loan Portfolio

BIT¥£8 2 By industry sectors 2012 2011
BREBHER Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
ITEkemR: Industrial, commercial and financial:
IR Property development 0.0% 0.0%
MERE Property investment 13.5% 13.8%
SRR Financial concerns 1.7% 3.1%
eSS Stockbrokers 0.0% 0.0%
HELRTEES Wholesale and retail trade 7.6% 6.8%
Fig Manufacturing 3.2% 6.6%
B N ERRE Transport and transport equipment 2.5% 2.7%
IREET) Recreational activities 0.2% 0.3%
BB Information technology 0.0% 0.0%
HAth Others 2.1% 2.7%
AA: Individuals:
BEIEEEEEE] Loans for the purchase of flats under the
[FLABEH2REE Home Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
el R HEEHE Participation Scheme and Tenants Purchase
AEEF MER Scheme 0.0% 0.0%
BEREEMEEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties 9.2% 10.8%
ERREE Credit card advances 0.3% 03%
Hfth Others 5.8% 5.7%
ZHmE Trade finance 13.3% 11.1%
AR BB AIME 7 BT ETR R 25K Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 40.6% 36.1%
&sr Total 100.0% 100.0%
REAHEISD By geographical spread 2012 2011
B8 Hong Kong 55.9% 60.5%
Bl Mainland China 31.8% 25.5%
el USA 1.2% 1.4%
O Singapore 4.3% 3.8%
Htt, Others 6.8% 8.8%
aaf Total 100.0% 100.0%
REHE S By maturity 2012 2011
BIRFEE Repayable on demand 2.6% 2.6%
PR E Less than 1 year 51.7% 44.4%
BB FEIR S F Over 1 year but less than 5 years 24.6% 29.1%
B 5 F Over 5 years 20.2% 22.6%
EmITEE Undated 0.9% 13%
asr Total 100.0% 100.0%
REXE S By currency 2012 2011
BT HKD 51.4% 58.4%
e usb 36.4% 36.3%
Hoth Others 12.2% 5.3%
asr Total 100.0% 100.0%
ENEE G Number of loan accounts 2012 2011
334,195 324,396
“E-CEER
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chairman

| take great pleasure in presenting this Annual Report to you in my new
capacity as Chairman of China CITIC Bank International Limited (“CNCBI").

First and foremost, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to offer a
high degree of recognition and sincere gratitude to my predecessor Mr. Dou
Jianzhong and former CEO Mrs. Doreen Chan for their valuable contribution
and leadership. Current CEO Mr. Zhang Xiaowei and | will continue to lead
CNCBI's future and pursue innovative developments on the strong, efficient
platform built over the years.

CNCBI is at its best development stage with outstanding results against
major 2012 indicators. Profit attributable to shareholders, for instance, hit
a record high of HK$1,557 million with CNCBI's credit risk and market risk
remaining at the lowest levels. Impaired loans ratio, meanwhile, continued
its four-year dip while provision for non-performing loans was the most
adequate in CNCBI's history.

The key to CNCBI's success lies in its ability to focus on and grasp the
opportunities brought forth by the rapid development of the Chinese
hinterland. It is of equal significance that CNCBI plays to the synergy with
its parent bank China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“"CNCB”) and ultimate
parent company CITIC Group Corporation in providing customers with an
effective two-way conduit and comprehensive, one-stop, value-adding
financial solutions. A rebranding exercise completed last year essentially
brought CNCBI's corporate image in sync with that of CNCB, taking our
integrated advantage to the next level.

Over the past year, RMB business thrived in Hong Kong and the city now
prides itself as an important offshore platform for RMB internationalisation.
Riding on the support from CNCB, CNCBI retained its leading position in
RMB business with income from RMB-related businesses now one of the
main growth engines.

CNCBI's 2012 innovative mileage has laid a solid foundation for future
development. | believe the year 2013 is one that will see CNCBI geared for
take off. The uncertainty in the external economic environment may persist
and have some impact on the Hong Kong economy. However, CNCBI will
adhere to its “prudent yet proactive” business fundamentals to propel the
execution of “cross-border synergy, innovative development”in pursuit of
overstepping development.

In my position as Chairman of CNCBI, as well as Director and First Vice-
Chairman of CNCB, | will do my utmost to drive CNCB collaboration,
accelerate cross-border business development on the back of CNCB's
strength, and enhance CNCBI's infrastructure, management and product
capability through new thinking in order to achieve a three-win situation for
customers, staff and shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude on behalf of the
Board of Directors to all customers for their stellar support, and thank every
staff member for making a contribution to CNCBI over the past 12 months.



/i)%\

BR/NER
Chen Xiaoxian
EER

Chairman

B - 201353 H27H
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

President & Chief Executive Officer
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

[ FR{EERTT (BIFR) 1 2012 F&/EE
RITHERITNZFEEEZEBETIN
PMRE S - RERELRERIZE15.57F
BT BRIBREHS o |

“With the support from parent bank,
China CITIC Bank, and the continuous
effort of all staff members, China CITIC
Bank International delivered another
historical high profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$1,557 million in 2012.”

Operating Environment

The turbulent year of 2012 has seen the Hong Kong economy slow
significantly across the first three quarters and pick up moderately in the
fourth. The external environment was akin to this. Plagued by the "fiscal
cliff’, the US economic recovery weakened as the European debt crisis
lingered. In the fourth quarter, easing monetary policy pushes of various
countries helped to ease the crisis, and the economy began to warm.

Mainland China turned its slowing economy around and started to exhibit
upbeat growth as the Chinese Central Government spurred urbanisation
process. China’s exports gained new impetus although the path to
export recovery remained uneven and muted for the US and its European
counterparts. Despite this, Hong Kong was able to capture rising cross-
border Renminbi ("RMB") trade and investment opportunities thanks to
good timing, the city’s geographical advantage and agile response system.

Against this backdrop, China CITIC Bank International Limited ("CNCBI") and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) adopted a proactive yet prudent approach to
business development. The Group continued to strengthen its balance
sheet management for effective risk prevention and management, and
adopted a prudent underwriting practice, resulting in a drop in its impaired
loan ratio for the fourth consecutive year.



1.

5.

9.
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Mr. Edmund Poon
Chief Operating Officer

BEYRERE
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Mr. Roy Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer
& General Counsel

Group Head of International
Banking

BEERLE
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Mr. Jaime Azcoiti Leyva
Chief Risk Officer

BR 880K £ &
AE
Mr. Woody Chan

Treasurer

EEREE
B4R E

Mr. Steve Wong
Chief Financial Officer

XA&&kE

SRAEE
Ms. Rita Man
Chief Compliance Officer
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Mrs. Helen Kan

Executive Director &

Alternate Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Personal &
Business Banking

THF L+
Y S

Ms. Anna Li
Chief Auditor

CBARLE

THARRNEEE
Ms. Zoe Lau
Director of CEO Office
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Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director &

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Wholesale &
Cross-border Banking
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Mr. John Lee

Chief Personnel Officer
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FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

During the year, the Group completed successfully a rebranding plan to
unify its corporate image with that of its parent bank China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited ("CNCB"). This move has been made with a view to
fully capitalising the powerful strength and superior advantage of CNCB
and ultimate parent company CITIC Group Corporation (“CITIC Group”) amid
market competition.

Business Performance

Earnings

Riding on its established leadership in RMB business and the opportunities
arising from the rapid development of Hong Kong's offshore RMB business,
the Group stepped up synergetic collaboration with CNCB in 2012 by
growing RMB loans and rolling out a diverse range of RMB products and
services, effectively meeting its customers’ trading, investment and risk
hedging needs. Following an expansion in the scope of its interest-bearing
assets and net interest margin, the Group's recurring income and earnings
continued to grow in 2012. During the year, the Group's operating income
rose by 8.7% year-on-year to HK$3,715 million, while operating profit before
impairment increased by 8.0% to HK$1,907 million. It should be noted that
with the exclusion of several major one-off incomes and expenses booked
in 2011 including a write-back of HK$229 million from the recovery of
Lehman Brothers Minibond collateral, income of about HK$30 million on the
disposal of a held-for-sale asset and disposal loss of HK$140 million on one
European subordinated debt, both income and profit would have increased
more significantly.

The Group leveraged the management expertise of its strategic shareholder
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA”) and completed its Risk
Management upgrade plan by the end of 2011. In 2012, the Group had net
impairment losses of HK$91 million, a reduction of 11.2% when compared
with HK$103 million in 2011. Taking into account the HK$51 million in
revaluation gains on investment properties and other items, profit before
taxation increased by 10.3% year-on-year to HK$1,866 million, while profit
attributable to shareholders rose by 10.4% to HKS$ 1,557 million as compared
to 2011.

Net Interest Income

In 2012, net interest margin increased by 16 basis points year-on-year to
1.38%. The improvement was mainly due to significant growth of RMB-
related income and repricing of corporate loans upwards. With a mild
increase in interest-bearing assets, net interest income increased by 25.6%
year-on-year to HK$2,339 million.

Non-interest Income

During the period, the Group’s non-interest income fell 11.6% year-on-year
to HK$1,377 million mainly because of a higher comparison base in 2011
as a result of the aforementioned major one-off incomes. Excluding major
one-off incomes and expenses recorded for 2011, the Group’s non-interest
income would have decreased by 4.2% year-on-year.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Expenses

The Group continued to increase the number of Hong Kong local branches
and invested more in sustainable growth. Upward adjustment pressure
on wages and rental of premises caused operating expenses to rise by
9.4% year-on-year to HK$1,808 million during the year. The Group’s cost to
income ratio stood at 48.7%, remaining approximately at the 2011 level.

Impairment Allowances

Net impairment losses in loans and advances came to HK$91 million in
2012, compared to a loan loss reversal of HK$75 million in 2011. Individually
assessed loan provisions and collectively assessed loan write-backs
amounted to HK$177 million and HK$57 million respectively, whereas there
were two net write-backs of HK$42 million and HKS$4 million in 2011. Bad
debt recoveries in both years amounted to approximately HK$29 million.

Asset Quality

Asset, Loan and Deposit Sizes

In view of rising volatility in the financial markets, the Group focused on
improving its risk management framework as well as its balance sheet
management by adjusting its loan, deposit, and asset sizes, and devoting
efforts to raising the return on assets in 2012 in a move to improve yield
and ensure ample liquidity. As at end-December 2012, total loans and total
assets reached HK$105.1 billion and HK$177.2 billion, year-on-year increases
of 12.1% and 3.4% respectively. Meanwhile, in the face of fierce competition
for customer deposits among local banks, the Group adopted appropriate
strategies, and by rolling out a diverse range of customer-driven deposit
products, grew total deposits to HK$145.0 billion, a moderate increase of
4.2% compared to year-end 2011.

Asset Quality Indicators

The Group's asset quality continued to improve in 2012 following the
completion of a risk management infrastructure upgrade at end-December
2011. The impaired loan ratio dropped from 0.75% as at end-December
2011 to 0.45% as at end-December 2012. The ratio has now decreased for
four consecutive years since 2009, reflecting the effectiveness of the Group's
commitment in improving asset quality control.

Financial Positions

The Group's capital adequacy ratio was 18.2% as at end-December 2012,
remaining on-par with 18.3% posted at end-December 2011. The ratio was
well above regulatory requirements and offered ample scope for the Group
to pursue future development. Meanwhile, a series of successful customer
deposit campaigns as well as active asset and liability management
programmes were rolled out in 2012. These enabled the Group to maintain
its average liquidity ratio and loans to deposits ratio at healthy levels of
59.4% and 72.5% respectively as at end-December 2012.

“E-CEER
Annual Report 2012
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

CNCBI's Key Financial Ratios

2012 2011

12A31H 12A31H

31 December 31 December

BEARFE R E Capital adequacy 18.2% 18.3%
BROEART R E Core capital adequacy 11.8% 10.4%
FEREBE S = Average liquidity 59.4% 43.6%
BfFL = Loans to deposits 72.5% 67.3%
EREEEBEILE Loans to total assets 59.3% 54.7%
EE R = Impaired loans 0.45% 0.75%
BEXR Coverage' 98.8% 96.3%
ENBEBEEX Loan loss coverage 114.8% 77.4%
A BGRAE R B SR Mainland loans to total customer advances 31.8% 25.5%
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1 Calculated by dividing the sum of individually assessed impairment allowances and
collateral of impaired loans by the gross impaired loans.

Business Development

Personal & Business Banking Group (“PBG")

PBG continued to record satisfactory results in 2012 despite the dampened
global investment climate caused by the European debt crisis, and slowing
economic growth in mainland China and Hong Kong. The total retail
lending balance grew 6.7% to HK$35.6 billion driven primarily by mortgages
and secured SME loans. Continuous efforts to expand distribution channels
saw retail deposits increase by 9.8% from year-end 2011, to HK$65.0 billion.
Net interest income, in turn, increased by 32.3% to HK$920 million as a
result of the lowering cost of funds. Non-interest income on the other hand
declined by 31.8% year-on-year to HK$464 million, due mainly to the higher
base effect caused by the write-back in 2011 of collateral provisioning made
for the sale of Lehman Brothers Minibonds. Excluding the write-back, non-
interest income would have increased by 2.8% year-on-year, driven mainly
by solid wealth management business, which posted significant revenue
growth from unit trusts and insurance business.

During the period, PBG continued its focus on operating expense
management. Despite increased investment in frontline staff, expansion
of distribution channels, and implementation of a number of rebranding
initiatives, operating expenses rose only 7.6% year-on-year to HK$819
million. PBG's loan quality remained healthy and there was only a small
net impairment loss of HK$2.8 million for 2012. As a result, PBG posted net
profit before tax of HK$562 million, down 9.5% year-on-year. Excluding the
write-back from the Lehman Brothers Minibonds booked in 2011, net profit
before tax would have increased by 43.6% year-on-year.

The year also put the Group's product innovation capability in the spotlight.
Particularly, a deposit product called “Flexi-Saver” was launched to offer
customers currency switching flexibility for higher yields. A new cross-
border solution "% 87 38" was also rolled out to offer convenient and efficient
services to SME customers.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

With a view to raising brand awareness, improving customer experience,
and lifting sales and service capabilities to a higher level against market
competition, two innovative New Concept Branches were opened in Hoi
Yuen Road Kwun Tong and Metroplaza in Kwai Fong in November 2012.
This expanded the Group's Hong Kong footprint to 34 branches nearing the
end of the year.

Building on the ongoing success of the CITICfirst wealth management
franchise as the “New Standard of Private Wealth Management’, the CITICfirst
customer base registered encouraging growth of 12.2% over year-end
2011, to more than 21,600 customers; with a 17.3% growth in assets under
management to around HK$59 billion.

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group (“WBG")

With the objective of optimising business origination, resources allocation
and operational procedures, in order to build a more effective cross-border
platform for better capturing the increasing business opportunities in
mainland China and regional markets, Wholesale Banking Group and China
Banking Group were amalgamated into a new WBG in early 2012.

Strengthened and more effective collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group,
in addition to an expanding customer base, the development of tailored
products to better suit customer needs, enhanced leveraging of overseas
networks, and strict discipline in risk management, helped the new WBG
to post impressive business results and financial performance in 2012.
Revenue and profit before taxation registered record year-on-year growth of
22.8% and 14.3% respectively.

Further success was attained through increased collaboration with CNCB
and CITIC Group. During the period, a positive reinforcement scheme was
introduced and implemented to encourage cross-referrals with CNCB,
whose strong customer network, aligned with the extensive business
coverage of CITIC Group boosted the competitive strength of WBG's cross-
border and RMB business capabilities considerably. As a result, revenue
generated from the volume of CNCB and CITIC Group referred businesses
reached a historical high.

Meanwhile, remarkable progress was made in building and maintaining
deep and long-standing customer relationships through enhancing
customer service standards. By stepping up the pace of product innovation
in the areas of global markets, cash management, trade finance, and
structured finance and syndication, a variety of new products, particularly
those related to RMB and offshore cross-border business, were developed
and launched.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The new WBG continued to improve its asset quality while growing
its business, managing the balance between risk and return through
developing and putting into practice an improved risk-based pricing
methodology and concentration risk management. This effort reduced
impairment losses and contributed significantly to the record high profit
before taxation.

Singapore Branch continued its success as the regional hub for capturing
the fast-rising business opportunities between ASEAN countries and
mainland China. An array of tailored RMB financial services and products
were developed for customers with regional needs. Consequently,
Singapore Branch posted significant growth in RMB loan and cross-border
trade settlement, further strengthening the Group’s market position in
the ASEAN region. CITIC Bank International (China) Limited (“CITIC Bank
International (China)“) also strengthened its role as an onshore platform,
laying a stronger foundation for further collaboration with CNCB and CITIC
Group.

Treasury & Markets Group (“TMG”)

Despite the challenging operating environment in 2012, TMG registered
satisfactory results, chiefly by pioneering RMB-related business and
providing customers with tailored products.

First of all, market volatility provided a launch pad for TMG's diverse range
of structured products that suited customers'risk hedging needs. Driven by
sustained income growth from the sale of such products, fee income from
the cross-selling of treasury products increased slightly by 2% year-on-year.
On the other hand, the decline of mainland China's domestic interest rates
caused interest margin of offshore RMB business to narrow. TMG's Global
Markets unit generated HK$509 million in revenue, a slight decrease of 2%
from 2011. The continued transformation of the TMG marketing teams and
the rollout of a wider array of structured products helped lift revenue from
such segment, amounting to 67% of the total marketing income, up from
45% last year. This 22% shift in revenue allocation from traditional treasury
products to structured products not only underscored the strong demand
from customers but it also demonstrated TMG's ability to expand its product
offerings, including bespoke treasury solutions to the Group’s wholesale and
retail customers.

Turning to central treasury management, TMG significantly minimised
possible adverse impacts from the European debt crisis by continuing to
reduce European bond holdings in its available-for-sale securities portfolio,
from HK$8.2 billion in the beginning of 2012 to HK$2.6 billion at the end of
the year. The orderly divestment limited disposal losses on the securities
portfolio to only HK$28 million. All the exposure to PIIGS (Portugal, Italy,
Ireland, Greece and Spain) was unwound by the end of the year.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Meanwhile, TMG continued to participate actively in Hong Kong's CNH
market in 2012, becoming one of the most active market makers, taking a
12% share of the market.

In a move to secure RMB deposit-taking, TMG worked in tandem with WBG
and PBG, building a bigger market share and longer maturity profile in RMB
deposits, which provided a sound funding base for the Group's various
RMB business development plans. As at year-end 2012, the Group’s RMB
customer deposits accounted for 18.3% of its total customer deposits. The
issuance of RMB900 million two-year senior debt in September 2012 also
helped to raise the Group's RMB funding strength and improve maturity
profile. For the purpose of maintaining the capital adequacy ratio level
of the Group and supporting business growth, a US$300 million 10-year
subordinated debt was issued in September 2012. As at year-end 2012, the
Group’s capital adequacy ratio stood at 18.2%. This strong capital position
has enabled the Group to grow its business in future and respond to higher
regulatory and capital requirements for the global banking sector.

Risk Management

The global economy underwent substantial uncertainties and market
volatility throughout 2012 as a result of the lingering sovereign debt crisis
in the Eurozone and continuing fragility of the US economic recovery.
Against this background, Risk Management Group ("RMG") continued to
focus its efforts on conducting rigorous risk reviews, proactively managing
vulnerable credit portfolios, improving the Group’s investment strategy, and
enhancing capital and liquidity management in line with the Group's risk
appetite.

During the year, the Group continued to strengthen its risk portfolio
management infrastructure, amass tools, and increase its risk tolerance.
The Global Risk Indicator ("GRI") was further enhanced to measure with
increased precision the Group's overall risk profile, comprising credit, market,
operational (including legal), liquidity, interest rate, strategic and reputation
risks. Furthermore, a comprehensive bank-wide stress-testing program was
developed, which now became an integral part of the risk management
framework and decision-making process. New liquidity management tools
were also adopted to comply with new regulatory requirements.

The Group adopts a standardised approach to credit risk and market risk,
and a basic indicator approach for operational risk, while continuing to
enhance system and control levels for meeting the standards required
under these approaches. Based on the Basel framework, the Group has
strengthened its risk-based pricing model and capital measurement tools
for more effective capital management in order to support the Group's
strategic decisions and future growth.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The Group's risk management policies and procedures are subject to a
high degree of oversight. The Credit & Risk Management Committee
("“CRMC") has been empowered by the Board to oversee and approve the
risk strategies, appetite, policies, and amount of exposure of the Group.
Established policies and procedures have been put in place to identify,
quantify, monitor and mitigate the risks to which the Group is exposed,
including credit, market, operational (including legal), liquidity, interest rate,
strategic and reputation risks. In addition, Audit Department conducts
regular independent reviews of bank-wide risk management practices to
ensure compliance with internal policies and regulatory requirements.

The Group's market risk appetite was managed through a well-defined limit-
setting process. Rigorous risk controls have been put in place, and market
risk limits were monitored daily. Stress testing was performed regularly and
monitored for rare but plausible events. Frontline businesses and Market
Risk Department interacted closely to proactively review limits following
strategic changes.

Significant effort and resources have been deployed for the implementation
of an Operational Risk Management ("ORM") plan, resulting in substantial
enhancement in the ORM framework, tools and prevention awareness.
Since 2011, the Group has kicked off a series of work, which comprised
bank-wide operational risk training, fortifying the Incident Reporting System
("IRS") and process, Operational Risk Self-Assessment (“ORSA") and bank-
wide Key Risk Indicators (“KRI"). These tools have been enhanced and
integrated into all business and support units. Staff have been engaged
and alerted to the identification, assessment and reporting of operational
risks, with full management support for cultivating an operational risk
management culture on an ongoing basis.

The strategic collaboration between CNCB, BBVA and CNCBI continued
through staff secondment and exchange programmes, which fostered
tripartite risk knowledge sharing and skills transfers, as well as the
development of a more comprehensive set of best practices. This
formidable alliance has enabled the Group to capture the opportunities
from the growing economic pre-eminence of mainland China and the Asian
region more effectively. Risk management has become a fundamental and
indispensible part in the Group’s business development. In 2013, priorities
will be given to the continuous enhancement of capital and liquidity
management, Basel lll implementation, and actively managing all risks to
reach the Group’s level of risk appetite.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Human Resources Development

Amid volatility in the global financial markets, the manpower markets in
mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Singapore remained buoyant in
2012. In Hong Kong, for instance, demand for experienced frontline staff
has been high. Across all the geographies in which the Group is present,
the tightening of governance and regulatory standards has continued to
put demand pressure on high-calibre professionals in the disciplines of
compliance, audit, operational risk management, and human resources
management.

In 2012, CNCBI embraced various challenges successfully, retained talent
in various areas and upheld its service and control standards continuously.
During the year, the Group expanded its frontline direct sales team and
satisfied the human resources needs of the two New Concept Branches
in Hong Kong. The professional CNCBI workforce was instrumental in
achieving the Group’s financial targets, meeting customer service standards,
and fulfilling governance requirements. The Group'’s robust operational
infrastructure was enhanced with the appointment of a number of
experienced managers to the middle- and back offices of the Group.

In an effort to impart knowledge of the parent companies to CNCBI staff
and support further cross-border collaboration for the Group, a series of
learning, relationship building and cross-border exchange programmes
were organised. These included the second series of “Winning Business
in China", Putonghua Workplace Etiquette workshops, China Knowledge
Learning Squads, a Native Putonghua Speakers Internship Programme,
a number of Staff Exchange programmes, Pan-Pear| Delta Region CNCB/
CNCBI sports events, and CITIC Group staff visits.

On people development, the Group continued to provide target and
structured learning programmes to enhance overall competency levels
and raise professional standards of its staff. WBG, for instance, rolled out a
series of relationship management and credit training courses, alongside
technical training programmes such as those for legal documentation. PBG,
in turn, tailored a training programme series for frontline staff, helping them
to raise their competence. In addition to a Career Coaching Programme
for high-performers, the Group also launched an Effective People Manager
programme for PBG. In 2013, the Group will extend the abovementioned
training to other business and support units.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The essence of the Group's core values, business directions and corporate
culture were communicated and reinforced through an array of bank-
wide and specific staff communication events including the annual
Executive Forum, business unit forums, quarterly CEO forums, management
conferences, long-service awards presentation ceremonies, the STAR Award
programme and staff induction programmes. Exemplary work behaviour
was recognised and rewarded. Team events, sporting activities, and
community participation were organised to promote health awareness,
social service, and environmental protection. Such activities have also
helped to bring balance to the hectic working life of staff.

In all, the Group’s human resources management initiatives contributed
to the well-being of CNCBI in 2012. With a committed, quality workforce,
CNCBI is ready to achieve its 2013 targets and make headway towards its
vision as customers' “China Bank of Choice”

Future Outlook

Fiscal policies implemented by central banks around the world have
produced signs of stabilisation and recovery in the external economic
environment. The US has for the moment dealt with its fiscal cliff crisis. The
local economy has regained its solid footing and is picking up pace. The
Eurozone has yet to resolve its debt problems entirely, but the worst of
the crisis should be over as proved by obvious easing signs in the past few
months. The US and European economies are back on their feet, and are
expected to help retain continuous growth in emerging markets. However,
concerns still loom on the business horizon despite present steady, upward
trends. Various central banks’ quantitative easing policies may create asset
bubbles and inflationary expectations. The bursting of a bubble would
exacerbate inflation, bring the ultra-low interest rate environment to a halt
and raise the likelihood of a rate hike cycle. In these circumstances, the
overall economic outlook may once again plunge into confusion.

Meanwhile, it is believed that during mainland China’s 12th Five-Year Plan
period, the economy will maintain a steady growth or even see a moderate
rebound. The economic pulse of Hong Kong is linked closely with that
of the mainland. The inflows of hot money released as a result of various
central banks’ quantitative easing policies may have an impact on Hong
Kong's economy but the city's economic outlook should remain positive
given the strong push from the Chinese hinterland. Heated competition
for RMB business and other banking institutions’ aggressive efforts in
competing for RMB deposits will maintain pressure on the profitability of
RMB business. But, as the Chinese currency continues down the road of
internationalisation and plays an increasingly important role in international
trade, there are still immense opportunities for RMB business.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to pursue stringent financial
discipline and risk management, maintaining a stable financial and capital
position to ensure that it withstands various impacts brought on by changes
in the economic environment and more stringent regulatory requirements.
The Group will maintain close ties with regulatory organisations following
the gradual implementation of Basel lll capital requirements for Hong
Kong banks. Currently, the Group is well-capitalised and is confident
that it is capable of managing the regulatory requirements and business
development in the coming three years.

Backed by the powerful strength and extensive customer base of parent
bank CNCB and ultimate parent holding company CITIC Group, the Group
will further increase business interaction and expand the breadth and depth
of business cooperation with CNCB, build a smooth procedure for cross-
referrals, enhance synergetic efficiency, and satisfy customers’ needs for on-
and offshore banking services.

The Group shoulders the mission of being CNCB’s offshore platform for
international expansion and will therefore continue to expand its Hong
Kong and overseas network in accordance with its established development
strategy. In Hong Kong, the launch of the innovative New Concept
Branches has been met with a warm response. The Group will continue to
source suitable locations for more New Concept Branches in line with PBG's
development plans. Further afield, the Group is advancing preparations
for the establishment of a representative office in Australia to capture the
business potential created by Sino-Australian trade with a view to providing
more comprehensive services to customers in mainland China, Hong Kong
and from across the region.

The Group believes that implementation of its various development
strategies on the back of the extensive customer network and brand
advantage of CNCB and CITIC Group will help to maintain the development
momentum for the Group's 2013 businesses on the solid foundation that it
has builtin 2012.

“E-CEER
Annual Report 2012

021



022

ES 0=

NCIDSSips g

oKl

BAZt
HITEE - BTHAR
NEIRE R B

Ms. Margaret Man
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Group Head of Wholesale &
Cross-border Banking

2029 ERITHMABEERH A OF
RARRBINMBRERE - SO E NERE
fEEBHARE BREENRERE  RKEZ
—EEEBFHEFELZNETUBERRLF
B EMBHFHEEFBEAEREIHT SR
HIBRA B

NREIRBEEERHRFERBERESR - A
MR ERITEFEEENETRAE - B
FEHEFPWNERE KROAKERERWAE - 7
DEBEBRESINEE  URHETEERRERE -
E it - WA KRR R 2 BRF EFA22.8% K&
143% @ #ERIEHE -

REPEED

HAFRITEFEEENEGIEREREKRIID
e P ERTEAANEFABELTPEEE
BINEBEZ  BRARLKBEREBINE
BERAREXKRAETERNBFED -
20F EBBICAIERTE BKFEHRITR
PEEERENHEBRRBLA  WAKRE
7% BESLHE -

FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Review of Operations

Wholesale & Cross-border Banking
Group
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- Record-breaking 14.3% increase in profit before taxation

- Revenue generated from CNCB and CITIC Group
cross-referrals achieved 17% growth year-on-year

In early 2012, Wholesale Banking Group and China Banking Group were
amalgamated into Wholesale & Cross-border Banking Group (“WBG")
with a view to optimising business origination, resources allocation and
operational procedures towards building a comprehensive cross-border
platform with distinctive competitive advantages for capturing the rapidly
rising business opportunities in mainland China and regional markets.

WBG adhered to its strategic focuses on strengthening collaboration with
CNCB and CITIC Group, commitments to customers, investing heavily in
product development, overseas network leveraging, and implementing
prudent risk management. As a result, WBG achieved satisfactory revenue
and profit before taxation with year-on-year growth of 22.8% and 14.3%
respectively.

Collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group

Collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group remains a key to WBG's long-term
success. With the 2012 introduction of a positive-reinforcement scheme
which encourages cross-referrals with CNCB, whose strong customer
network in addition to the extensive business coverage of CITIC Group,
underpinned the unique competitive strength of WBG's cross-border and
RMB business capabilities. Consequently, revenue generated from the
growing volume of CNCB and CITIC Group referred business reached a
record high of 17% growth in 2012.
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Commitments to Customers

WBG is committed to supporting customers in their business development,
with a proactive approach to understanding their business and addressing
their resources allocation needs. Riding on WBG's improved cross-border
capabilities and effective cross-selling platform, an expanding range of
value-creating financial solutions including ordinary loans, global markets,
cash management, trade products and diversified RMB products were
tailored for different customers, resulting in growth of 28.6% and 1.5% in net
interest income and non-interest income respectively.

Product Development

During the period, WBG stepped up development through innovation,
accelerated the pace of product development with particularly remarkable
progress in areas such as global markets, transaction banking, as well as the
development of structured finance and syndication products.

1. Global Markets

In an effort to support customers with different needs, WBG
continued to enhance its product capability towards increasing its
global market coverage. In 2012, WBG continued its collaboration
with TMG, exploring business opportunities in the changing financial
landscape by providing customers with bespoke products. This has
contributed to the continuous growth in treasury income.

2. Transaction Banking

Trade business forms the foundation for maintaining long-term
customer relationships. With a view to fostering these relationships
and providing more comprehensive and consistent services, a
partnership with CNCB was formed to enhance WBG's trade and
cash management capabilities. This included the development
of an e-banking platform with a CNCB-Bank SWIFT connectivity
function to satisfy customers with cross-border business needs.
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3. Structured Finance and Syndication

Growth in WBG's Hong Kong business is largely driven by the
growing demand for structured financial solutions in mainland
China. To this end, an array of cross-border structured products and
solutions were developed and promoted to customers in a number
of large-scale customer forums hosted jointly with CNCB.

Leveraging Overseas Networks

CNCBI continued to invest in Singapore Branch in a bid to support its role as
the regional hub for exploiting the rapid growth in business opportunities
between ASEAN countries and mainland China. In order to develop strong
relations with customers in the region, a broad range of wholesale banking
and treasury products and services, particularly RMB and cross-border
products and services, were developed for such customers. Meanwhile,
the Global Account Management/Field Account Management service
framework for overseas branches was strengthened to provide customer-
centric regional services and support regional customers with cross-border
needs. All these have led to 15-fold growth in RMB loans and a four-time
increase in cross-border trade settlement business in ASEAN markets.

CITIC Bank International (China) also strengthened its role as the Group's
onshore platform, laying a stronger foundation for further collaboration
with CNCB and CITIC Group.

Maintaining Discipline in Risk Management

While WBG explored market expansion opportunities and business growth,
sound risk management remained stringent. WBG stayed vigilant in the face
of the fragile economic environment and upgraded its risk management
infrastructure and facilities, improved its risk-based pricing methodology
and concentration risk management, in a move to maintain a balance
between risk and return. These efforts contained credit costs to a low level
and made an important contribution to WBG's record-breaking profit before
taxation.
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2013 Outlook

A moderate rebound in the global economy is expected in 2013. Regardless
of the lingering uncertainties over the European debt crisis and the US
economy, emerging Asian economies, particularly the mainland Chinese
economy, are poised to post stronger growth. WBG will therefore continue
to focus its sights on Asia, especially Greater China. RMB internationalisation
is set to move forward, creating unprecedented business opportunities.
Also, The People’s Bank of China has launched a new policy to allow
companies registered in Shenzhen Qianhai to take out loans from Hong
Kong. Such new developments are expected to bring about a breakthrough
in RMB loan business for WBG.

WBG will seize opportunities by actively leveraging the advantages of CNCB
and CITIC Group's strong network and business coverage in mainland China
while strengthening its business capabilities in Hong Kong, overseas and
across the Chinese border.

Special efforts will be made to accelerate the development of overseas
branches. A higher profit contribution in 2013 is expected. CITIC Bank
International (China), for instance is expected to increase its profit
contribution to the Group as it maintains its role as the Group's onshore
platform. Singapore Branch, in turn, will continue to expand the Group's
market coverage in ASEAN as the Group’s Macau and US branches speed up
their business momentum.
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Personal & Business Banking Group
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- Net profit before taxation of HK$562 million,
a year-on-year increase of 43.6% excluding
the 2011 Lehman Brothers write-back

- Retail deposit balances up by 9.8% to HK$65 billion

Personal & Business Banking Group ("PBG") delivered solid performance for
the year with net interest income rising by 32.3% year-on-year to HK$920
million. Non-interest income declined by 31.8% to HK$464 million due
primarily to the write-back from the 2011 Lehman Brothers Minibonds,
without which, non-interest income would have registered growth of 2.8%
year-on-year. Meanwhile, PBG posted a net profit before taxation of HK$562
million, down 9.5% over 2011. Excluding the Lehman Brothers write-back,
net profit before taxation would have increased by 43.6%, reflecting the
sustainable growth in core businesses.

The strong financial performances were underpinned by various factors
including an enhancement of fee income generation capability, the
continuous strengthening of interest margin and risk management, effective
funding cost management and encouraging growth of retail lending and
deposits.

Strengthened Balance Sheet for Sustainable Growth

Flexible deposit acquisition strategies helped to expand the deposit base
which not only supported business development but also helped to control
the cost of funding. As at 31 December 2012, PBG's total customer deposits
reached HKS$65 billion, representing an increase of 9.8% over end-2011.
In the meantime, good progress was made on mortgages and secured
lending to small- to medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs") on the back of a
prudent lending approach. Outstanding loan balances reached HK$35.6
billion, up 6.7% over year-end 2011.



EEZEFEARRE

ERBEGSREEERZE  ERXEREK
HEFEREKE - FAXEBEEETEEER
SRNBEERNEERLKRERE  MEFR/NDE
HEEBEKGESRSOE  SERBER
KUEFR080E FHEKF - Bi2s0oBE BT ©
FTERBHEALEEFEECRRELEHER
BrIITHEERE -

ARSI A E - BAREFRITIR IR
BERE BAFABRBHERSTHBLE
HRE VWETZEBREMABEEE  BEE
S HEEB2011FEEIMN7.6%ES. 198 TT -

BEHFBSST ARPREFE

20F TERTHAELZR/EARBHR
TE ERMRBE=ZAER  ATER
T MARITRFPNERT TERITH
W RTE-FERER ZFREEBAHRY
THEEERRE(CASK URBERES
MMEFB S 0T REAE  SHERT (B
) EARBDTHBIREHE - ST
RAFFORALMEER  RHHEEBOR
TR - LEFARERT (BER) Mg
MR BHRARARNRIREFE

CITICfirstle BEIEBAAVEEEREN BT
BEFR ATPemBFPREEIRE - 5
AEFHEBR20FERERI22%E 821,600
U BREPEEMNEELBEEMII%ELN
5901878 7T » CITICfirstIR B rh 0 A B IR 12 &= 04
FEﬁ °©

Asset Quality Benign

Aside from satisfactory total loan growth, asset quality also remained
benign. During the period, the Group practised rigorous credit risk
management, improved significantly its collection management, in addition
to enhanced write-backs in SME loans and mortgages. Loan impairment
losses remained low at 0.80 basis points or HK$2.8 million. The residential
mortgage delinquency ratio remained continuously lower than the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority’s industry benchmark.

Ongoing efforts to increase operational efficiency continued to drive cost
containment for PBG. Despite aggressive expansion of branch network
and direct sales channels as well as implementation of several rebranding
related projects during the period, total operating expenses increased
merely by 7.6% year-on-year to HK$819 million.

New Concept Branches Reaching Mid-segment Customers

In 2012, Retail Banking Group was renamed into Personal & Business
Banking Group to better reflect the nature of its three distinct businesses,
namely retail banking, private banking and SME banking. On the retail
front, PBG made active efforts to increase the Bank’s branch coverage and
enhance its retail network in a move to expand business development
with the opening of two New Concept Branches in Kwun Tong and Kwai
Fong, driving the number of CNCBI branches in Hong Kong to 34. The New
Concept Branches adopt a new design and technologies, with superior
banking experiences in store to enhance CNCBI's brand image in a move to
acquire and develop mid-segment customer groups.

CITICirst, in turn, continued to leverage the distinct value propositions of
its signature private wealth management franchise to offer tailored services
to mid-segment and high-end customers. The total number of customers
grew by 12.2% from year-end 2011 to more than 21,600, and assets under
management grew by 17.3% to around HK$59 billion. The number of
CITICfirst banking centres also reached a total of 24.
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Private Banking Captured Regional Opportunities

In April 2011, CNCBI launched its Private Banking service officially, creating
a competitive CITIC private banking platform in Hong Kong to provide
financial solutions to high net worth individuals and corporations in
mainland China and Hong Kong. The objectives of the Group's private
banking business are three-fold. Firstly, it aims at establishing an offshore
wealth management platform for CITIC Group companies by leveraging
CITICfirst's successful experience in serving Hong Kong'’s mid- and high net
worth customers. Also, with a focus on closing the gap between mainland
and Hong Kong private banking service, the Group endeavours to grasp the
mounting demand for private banking service on the mainland by providing
comprehensive and consistent products and services. The launch of the
Private Banking service also aims to capture the global flow of diversified
investments into Asia, laying the foundation for expansion into other Asian
regions such as Singapore.

Growth in SME Business Significant

As the economic conditions continued to improve, loan demand from SMEs
soared with trade and non-trade related loans growing 35.4% and 12.3%
respectively on a year-on-year basis. A new business model “SME Desk” is
now in service at the Main Branch, Jordan Branch and Tsuen Wan Branch,
enabling new business to be captured through intermediaries, deposit
gathering, and services to mainland Chinese customers referred by CNCB. A
new cross-border solution "B B/ 38" was also launched last year to offer SME
customers integrated cross-border financial solutions and provide private
banking services to high net worth customers in this segment.
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BERNK - EA N ERETT 05 4 & I og 3 Into the future, PBG will continue to strengthen its three core businesses.
BZAEBSHE HEZEEALAXZESH In retail banking, more New Concept Branches will be launched to expand
ManT HAEPER  WE—FREHA the customer base. At the same time, PBG will further enhance the CITICfirst
CITICfirst@a 8 - FLASRITHE » 82T ARTP franchise. As for private banking, PBG will focus on offering comprehensive
BHE2EMNERMNMENVEZE - AR INEAR products and financial solutions to customers, as well as increasing the
FRITVBEEIXEN « ERFP /NPT number of cross-border referrals with CNCB. Turning to SME banking, the
EPEIBEKEEEE NS - WIRAN LR focus will be on expanding relationship manager teams, enhancing internet
TEN FAHRSPEAMEFEEZEOE banking capabilities and penetrating deep into the emerging cross-border
MEBHKE - business opportunities between Hong Kong and mainland China.
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Treasury and Markets Group
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- Active participation in Hong Kong’s CNHFX market saw TMG
take a 12% share of the market

- Issuance of RMB900 million two-year senior debt and
US$300 million 10-year subordinated debt contributed
to the Group’s strong capital position

In 2012, Treasury and Markets Group (“TMG") unleashed the Group's
leadership in RMB business and continued to participate actively in Hong
Kong's CNH market, becoming one of the most active market makers and
taking a 12% share of the CNH interbank FX market. In addition, CNCBI was
invited by the Treasury Markets Association in Hong Kong to participate
in CNH HIBOR fixing contribution, confirming the Group’s standing and
reputation in the CNH market.

Faced with a challenging landscape last year, TMG made active efforts in
pioneering RMB products and services, riding on market volatility to roll out
a diverse range of structured products that suited customers’ risk hedging
needs. Cross-selling of treasury products increased slightly by 2% year-on-
year as a result. However, mainland China’s decline of domestic interest
rates caused interest margin of offshore RMB business to narrow. TMG's
Global Markets unit recorded a slight decrease of 2% in revenue to HK$509
million.

Client Solutions, Product and Business Development

In 2012, the continuous transformation of the TMG marketing teams and
the rollout of a wider array of structured products helped lift revenue from
this segment, amounting to 67% of total marketing income, up from 45%
last year. The 22% shift in revenue allocation from traditional treasury
products to structured products not only underscored strong demand from
customers but it also demonstrated TMG's ability to expand its product
offerings.
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Treasury marketing teams continued to work closely with WBG and PBG
during the year in cross-selling treasury products, tailoring reasonably priced
products and solutions aimed at reducing risk and yielding attractive returns
to corporate and retail clients. Structured products, especially FX derivatives,
were in high demand from clients seeking to trim their hedging costs, leading
to a 10% growth in sales revenue year-on-year.

With further liberalisation of the offshore spot market, the RMB market has
become increasingly mature and competitive. Onshore and offshore rates
continued to converge during the year and the arbitrage window for RMB
narrowed significantly as a result. This had a direct impact on the sales volume
of RMB arbitrage products in 2012.

On the trading side, revenue was mainly derived from directional and spread
trading, while client flows also provided an additional source of revenue.
Interest rate trading revenue registered an increase of 8% over 2011 figures,
while derivatives trading recorded a moderate 2% increase on 2011 revenue.

Turning to central treasury management, bond yields climbed to record high
levels as a consequence of the European debt crisis. But the Group adhered to
its prudent principles and continued to reduce the European bond holdings
in its available-for-sale securities portfolio from HK$8.2 billion at the beginning
of the year to HKS$2.6 billion as of year-end 2012. All exposure to the PIIGS
(Portugal, Italy, Ireland, Greece and Spain) was unwound at the end of the
year, minimising significantly the adverse impacts from the crisis. The orderly
divestment limited disposal losses on the securities portfolio to only HK$28
million.

Thanks to stringent investment guidelines, the Group maintained the high
quality of its bond portfolio and acquired better-quality and highly-liquid
securities. As at year-end 2012, 88% of the portfolio comprised of high quality
bonds rated A- or above, while fixed-rate and floating-rate bonds accounted
for 81.7% and 18.3% of the portfolio respectively. The average tenor for fixed-
rate bonds was 8.2 months. In general, the maturity tenor did not exceed 4.4
years.

“E-CEER
Annual Report 2012

031



032

E 1011

EMTHRBTE - B E NIRRT IS EHE Y
ERAKENRBESRR  BETHEENE
EREXREE RXEBEHE 20129 K
SEBTHEAEELNTRE - HPBEE
R44BE T UARBEHE - AR
HETEWRE  BEB—RIKDHEFFK
HENBEENEERBEEENE  AEEM
FHARPESLLEMEFLED HI/R59.4% K%
72.5% °

B & RIRERM I - A B & 515 150 A E
ARBEERITBHEREE  BAARBEEFR
MMEMHE  TEYFHERNTRES -
BASBZHEARBERERTEREER
MES HE20NFE AEBEMNARER
FERINBEREPTFFAI183% ° 201299 A 8
TH—HIBEARBWMFHRELELEL T A
EENARBEESE NI RFHRKR -

BTREBEARRENIBEBRR A&
B JRR2012F9R 81T 7 — 3B ETTMI0F
HI/ZEZ2E - BHE20NEE  AEEELX R
REIZEI82% - HEMEABENENRKRER
BREEURRRTEAGERNEERE
REK o

FREIRT (B BRAE
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Review of Operations

In view of the uncertainty and turmoil in the financial markets, TMG closely
monitored liquidity and pursued balance sheet management to insulate
CNCBI from potential shocks. In 2012, the Group issued HKS$15.4 billion
worth of Certificates of Deposit (“CDs"), of which HKS$4.4 billion equivalent
were denominated in RMB. Despite the tightening liquidity conditions, the
rollout of a series of successful customer deposit promotions and active asset
and liability management programmes enabled the Group to maintain
its average liquidity ratio and loans to deposits ratios at 59.4% and 72.5%
respectively.

TMG worked in tandem with WBG and PBG, building a bigger market
share and longer maturity profile in RMB deposits, which provided a sound
funding base for the Group’s various RMB business development plans. As
at year-end 2012, the Group’s RMB customer deposits accounted for 18.3%
of its total customer deposits. The issuance of RMB900 million of two-
year senior debt in September 2012 also helped to raise the Group's RMB
funding and improve its maturity profile.

For the purpose of maintaining the capital adequacy ratio level of the Group
and supporting business growth, a US$300 million 10-year subordinated
debt was issued in September 2012. As at year-end 2012, the Group's
capital adequacy ratio stood at 18.2%. This strong capital position has
enabled the Group to grow its business in future and respond to higher
regulatory and capital requirements for the global banking sector.
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The 2013 market environment is likely to remain volatile. On the European
front, although various tools have been introduced to bailed-out countries
at risk of default, unemployment rates across the continent have continued
to deteriorate. The Eurozone economy is expected to grow at a tepid pace
in 2013. This is likely to have a negative impact on the Group’s customers,
especially those exporting to Europe. On a positive note, however, volatility
may increase trading opportunities and banking institutions may take this
opportunity to provide customers with more hedging products and solutions.

In mainland China, growth is likely to remain modest. With the convergence
of onshore and offshore RMB FX rates set to continue, the window of arbitrage
opportunities will be narrowing further, adding pressure to interest income.
TMG's marketing team will be looking to product diversification so as to
increase related income. Central Treasury Unit will explore other investment
options to compensate for the decline in margin. A new investment
framework will be set up to enhance net interest income from investment in
securities.

TMG will focus on beefing up its RMB business by riding on CNCB and CITIC
Group's RMB franchises and client bases, as well as BBVA's support, to gain
a bigger market share. TMG will also pursue opportunities arising from the
collaboration with CNCB, CITIC Group and other CITIC companies, while
strengthening the breadth and depth of its support to PBG and WBG through
an extensive range of Treasury and Global Markets products with a view to
meeting the demand of specific client segments.

The phased implementation of the Basel Il regulatory framework starting
in 2013 will fortify the capital, leverage, and liquidity positions of banking
institutions, enabling them to better withstand the shocks brought on by
financial and economic fluctuations. The Group is well-prepared for the
fulfilment of Basel lll regulatory requirements.
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Review of Operations

Corporate Social Responsibility
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« More than 10,000 hours of volunteer service

- Awarded The Hong Kong Council of Social Service's “Caring
Company” logo for the 10th year

CNCBI has always been active in social service participation in its role as a
good corporate citizen, ploughing back resources into society alongside
the pursuit of business achievements. In 2012, the Group fulfilled its CSR
obligations on two established disciplines — caring for the disadvantaged
communities, and cultivating a harmonious relationship with the
environment. Aside from direct monetary contributions and sponsorships,
the Group made a point to encourage staff volunteering for various social
services and charitable activities. The Group recorded a total of more than
10,000 volunteer service hours in Hong Kong again in 2012 and its efforts
were acknowledged with The Hong Kong Council of Social Service's “Caring
Company” logo for the 10th year.
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Awarded by The Hong Kong Co_uncil of Social Service
St ERBHERAN

Caring for the Disadvantaged Communities

The Group is particularly concerned about the education needs of children
from underprivileged families and has since 2008 joined hands with
St. James' Settlement in the "CITIC Bank International Knowledge Angel
Project”, which has over the years contributed about HK$3 million and
successfully provided tutorial classes for more than 700 students from
underprivileged families. About half of these students achieved better
academic results in the major subjects of Chinese, English, and Mathematics.
In view of the encouraging results, the Group expanded the programme in
2012 into the “CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” to support the costs of
learning for 600 primary school students from underprivileged families over
a three-year period, involving about HK$7 million, which raised the Group's
total commitment to HK$10 million for the entire project.

Apart from tutorial classes, the "CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy”
encompasses English enhancement classes as well as second- and third-year
sponsorships to the Cambridge Young Learners English Tests to 90 of the
participants each year, helping them to prepare for a secondary education.
To facilitate whole-person development, meanwhile, the participants are
also engaged in a series of extracurricular exploration activities.

In addition to this, the Group partnered with St. James' Settlement again and
ran a “Summer Party and Movie Day” for 40 students from underprivileged
families, and mobilised 30 corporate volunteers and their family members
for a movie day-out and games, giving the students an opportunity to get
in touch with the movie culture in a caring social context.

Turning to elderly service, the Group arranged for 20 staff volunteers
together with 15 student volunteers to visit 30 senior citizens living alone
in Kwun Tong on a "Warm and Caring Day". Each of these senior citizens
was presented a gift set with food and daily necessities sponsored by the
Group as well as a scarf hand-knitted by the Group’s staff members from
an annual scarf-knitting campaign which received great staff enthusiasm
and support last year. The campaign saw 300 scarves turned out by 100
staff and distributed to senior citizen living alone in various districts through
St. James’ Settlement.
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Review of Operations

As regards donation and fund-raising, the Group last year sponsored
two teams of its staff members at Breakthrough'’s “Inner Challenge 2012"
adventure trail to raise funds for the organisation’s youth development
work. The Group also became one of the major donors for the second
consecutive year to “Operation Santa Claus” which was organised jointly by
South China Morning Post and Radio Television Hong Kong to raise funds for
various charitable projects.

Cultivating a Harmonious Relationship with the Environment

Climate change has emerged as a global concern for the international
community. As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
supporting environmental developments, especially through promoting
education for carbon dioxide emissions awareness. The CNCBI Green
Committee, which comprises representatives from various departments,
initiated a variety of environmental activities in a bid to promote green
living among its staff and the Hong Kong public.

In 2011/12, the Group offered its full support to Green Power for the launch
of Hong Kong’s first large-scale water-saving and low-carbon campaign
“5-minute Shower”. Due to satisfactory results, the Group scaled up the
2012/13 campaign and stepped up promotion for it. More than 20,000
students from over 70 primary schools pledged to take 5-minute showers
instead of baths or lengthy showers for 21 consecutive days. Besides
advertisements in various publications and on websites and public
transport, co-operation was forged with a radio station for the first time to
produce a special radio series. A large-scale “3-22 World Water Day Action”
was held, drawing the attention of more than 8,000 Hong Kong citizens
who subsequently made a pledge to 5-minute showers.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Internally, the Group built on the successful foundation of its previous
“Green Day” and "Green Week” and increased its strength of “green living”
promotion among its staff with the 2012/13 rollout of a month-long series
of “Green Month” activities. These have included:

Handing out green apples to staff members in green clothing to
encourage them to live green inside and out

A one-of-its-kind Green Cooking Competition
Two household carbon reduction luncheon talks
Guided eco-tours

A 21-day “5-minute Shower Challenge”, completed successfully by
more than 130 members of staff

Continuing the paper-reduction campaign and PC switch-off
campaign

Aside from these, the Group also encouraged its staff to take part in other
environmental activities. This included sponsoring staff to participate in
the “19th Green Power Hike" organised by Green Power, and Friends of the
Earth’s “Tree Planting Challenge 2012 for the sixth consecutive year. One
of the teams picked up a Corporate Charity Cup while another claimed
the Smartest Tree Planting Team title in the event. Meanwhile, the Group
encouraged its staff members to make donations in support of fundraising
event "The Community Chest Green Day".

Into the Future

The Group will adhere to its two CSR disciplines — caring for the
disadvantaged communities, and cultivating a harmonious relationship with
the environment, to drive worthy causes with a focus on developing the
"CNCBI Knowledge Angel Academy” and “5-minute Shower”, creating value
for its customers, employees, business, and the Hong Kong society at large.
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Biographies of Directors

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

(Chairman)

Appointed Director of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”)
on 17 January 2005 and elected Chairman on 28 August 2012. Dr. Chen is
currently Director and First Vice-Chairman of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited, Director of China Investment and Finance Limited, and Non-
executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. He is a
mentor for doctoral students and a visiting professor of Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics. Dr. Chen has 30 years of extensive experience
in banking. He was formerly an Executive Director and Vice President of
CITIC Group Corporation and President of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited. Before joining CITIC Group Corporation, Dr. Chen was a Director
and Executive Vice President of China Merchants Bank. Dr. Chen graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Finance. He
received his Master’s Degree in Finance from Xinan University of Finance
and Economics and his Ph.D. in Finance from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics. Dr. Chen was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by The
People’s Bank of China. From 2005 to 2011 consecutively, Dr. Chen received
the “China’s Top Ten Finance Figures of the Year Award” from The Chinese
Banker magazine. He also received the “Top Ten New Leaders in Finance
of the Year Award” from the China International Forum in 2006 and 2007.
In 2011, Dr. Chen was named “2011 The Most Valuable President of Listed
Companies in China” by Moneyweek in China.

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei

(Executive Director, President & Chief Executive Officer)

Appointed Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on 22
October 2012. Mr. Zhang is a Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited and Chairman of CITIC Bank International (China)
Limited. A veteran banker with nearly 30 years of experience in the
banking industries in mainland China and Hong Kong, Mr. Zhang had
held various senior positions at Agricultural Bank of China and Bank of
Communications. He was also Vice President of the Hong Kong Branch
of Bank of Communications and President of the Hong Kong Branch of
China Merchants Bank. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Zhang was Executive
Director, General Manager and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of Wing
Lung Bank. Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from the
Beijing Economics Institute and a Master's Degree in Monetary and Banking
from the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China.

Mr. Cao Guogiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009. Mr. Cao is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, Non-executive Director
of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and Director of China
Investment and Finance Limited. Mr. Cao has 24 years of experience in
China’s banking industry. Prior to joining China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited in 2005, he had held various senior positions at China Merchants
Bank, including General Manager of the Planning and Treasury Department
at its headquarters and at its Shenzhen Administrative Department
respectively. He had also worked at the Planning and Treasury Department
of the Shaanxi Branch of The People’s Bank of China from July 1988 to June
1992. Mr. Cao graduated from Hunan College of Finance and Economics
with a Bachelor's Degree in Money and Banking. He received his Master's
Degree in Money and Banking from Shaanxi College of Finance and
Economics.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Cao Tong

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009. Mr. Cao is Executive
Director and Vice President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and
Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited.
Mr. Cao has 23 years of banking experience in China. Prior to joining China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 2004, he had held various senior positions
at China Merchants Bank and had also worked at the Beijing Branch of The
People’s Bank of China from July 1990 to January 1994. Mr. Cao graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics
and a Master's Degree in Finance. He also obtained a Doctor’s Degree in
Economics from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Cao
was granted the title of “Senior Economist” by China Merchants Bank.

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Credit & Risk Management Committee of the Bank on 20 October 2003.
Mr. Gil-Tienda is Chairman of the Asia Pacific region and a member of the
Senior Advisory Board of Oliver Wyman. He is also an Independent Non-
executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Gil-
Tienda was formerly with Standard Chartered Bank and Citibank and has
over 25 years of banking experience. Mr. Gil-Tienda obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from The University of Oxford
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the University of
California, Berkeley.

Mr. Patrick Georges Gillot

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 6 December 2011. Mr. Gillot is Chief
Operating Officer, Asia and Managing Director of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. He is also a Non-executive Director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Gillot was formerly with Standard Chartered
Bank. He holds a Master's Degree in Political Sciences and Economy from
Sciences-Po Paris (Institut d'Ftudes Politiques de Paris) and a Master's
Degree in Business Administration from Hautes Etudes Commerciales Paris
respectively.

Mr. Ju Weimin

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. Mr. Ju is Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary to the Board of CITIC Limited,
Chairman of Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited and
CITIC Resources Holdings Limited, Non-executive Director of CITIC Pacific
Limited, CITIC Securities Company Limited, China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. He was formerly
Executive Director, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of CITIC Group
Corporation. Mr. Ju graduated from Renmin University of China with a
Master's Degree in Accounting.
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Biographies of Directors

Mrs. Helen Kan

(Executive Director, Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Personal
& Business Banking)

Appointed Director and Alternate Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
on 15 March 2013. Mrs. Kan is also Group Head of Personal & Business
Banking of the Bank. Mrs. Kan has 26 years of experience in the banking
and finance industry. Over the years, she had held various senior positions
across a broad spectrum of banking and finance exposures in Hong Kong,
mainland China and other global markets. These have included the
personal and consumer banking sectors. Prior to joining the Bank, she was
Standard Chartered Bank's Global Head of Distribution in charge of the
strategic development and performance of distribution channels across 33
geographic locations covering a global customer population in excess of 14
million. Mrs. Kan holds an Honours Degree in Management and Economics,
and a Master's Degree in Laws from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank on 17 January
2002. Mr. Lam is Vice Chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited.
He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited, China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, Far
East Consortium International Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited, Xinyi Glass
Holdings Limited and Yuzhou Properties Co. Ltd. Mr. Lam has over 50 years
of extensive banking experience. He was formerly Deputy Chief Executive
of Bank of China Hongkong-Macau Regional Office, Chairman of Po Sang
Bank Limited, Vice Chairman of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited, and
Director of Bank of China, BOC China Fund Limited and Henderson China
Holdings Limited.

Ms. Margaret Man

(Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Group Head of Wholesale
& Cross-border Banking)

Appointed Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Bank on
28 June 2012. Ms. Man is also Group Head of Wholesale & Cross-border
Banking of the Bank and Vice Chairman of CITIC Bank International (China)
Limited. She has more than 21 years of experience in China banking. Ms.
Man was formerly Division Chief of The People’s Bank of China and Deputy
Managing Director of China Venturetechno International Co. Ltd. Ms. Man
graduated from Shanxi Financial and Economics University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics and further studied for a Master's Degree in Banking
and Finance at the Graduate School of The People’s Bank of China.

Mr. Sun Deshun

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 March 2013. Mr. Sun is Vice President
of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. Mr. Sun has over 30 years of
experience in China’s banking industry. Prior to joining China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited in 2011, he had held various senior positions at The
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China as well as Bank of Communications,
and had also worked in The People’s Bank of China from April 1981 to
May 1984. Mr. Sun graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics with a Master's Degree in Economics. Mr. Sun was granted the
title of “Senior Economist” by The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 1 August 2011. Mr. Torano is Head of
Asia Pacific and Managing Director of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
He has been working with BBVA Group since 2002. Mr. Gonzalo is also a
Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited
and China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. Mr. Torano graduated from
Complutense University of Madrid.

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Appointed Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Bank on 1 September 2004. Mr. Tsang is also an
Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited and two listed companies
in Hong Kong, namely Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited and
L. K. Technology Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for more
than 27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired from
the firm on 31 March 2003. He graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(currently The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Higher Diploma in
Accounting. Mr. Tsang is a professional accountant and a Fellow Member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators.

Mr. Peter Warbanoff

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 1 January 2013. Mr. Warbanoff is Head
of Risk, Asia and Managing Director of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
He is also a Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. Mr. Warbanoff was formerly with Standard Chartered Bank. He
holds a Bachelor of Art Degree in Accounting and a Bachelor’s Degree in
Economics from the University of South Australia.

Mr. Zhang Qiang

(Non-executive Director)

Appointed Director of the Bank on 15 April 2013. Mr. Zhang is Vice
President of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited. He joined China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited in 1990 and has held various senior positions.
Mr. Zhang has over 24 years of experience in China’s banking industry. He
graduated from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics with a
Bachelor's Degree in Economics and obtained a Master's Degree in Finance
from Liaoning University. Mr. Zhang was granted the title of “Senior
Economist” by CITIC Group Corporation.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Roy Huang

(Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of
International Banking)

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is an Alternate Chief Executive
Officer, General Counsel and Group Head of International Banking of the
Bank. He is also the Group General Counsel of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Huang has more than 31 years of experience in legal
and regulatory affairs in Hong Kong and the United States. Before joining
the Bank, he was partner in charge of legal affairs Asia-Pacific at Andersen
Worldwide. Mr. Huang graduated from the University of California, Berkeley,
with an Artium Baccalaureus in History and from Georgetown University
Law School with a Juris Doctor Degree.

Mr. Woody Chan

(Treasurer)

Joined the Bank in October 2008 as Treasurer. Mr. Chan is responsible for
the Bank's funding and liquidity management as well as to spearhead the
development of its global markets and treasury business. He is a veteran
banker with more than 29 years of experience in the treasury markets
operations. Mr. Chan started his career in the money markets operations
of HSBC Hong Kong and later progressed to head its balance sheet
management operations in Asia Pacific with functional responsibilities
over 18 Asian sites. Before joining the Bank, he was General Manager
and Treasurer of Dah Sing Bank Limited in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong,
a Master’s Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University, and the
Chartered Financial Analyst designation.

Mr. Steve Wong

(Chief Financial Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2005 as Senior Vice President and assumed the
role of Chief Financial Officer in September 2005. Mr. Wong now also
serves as Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong has more than 34 years of accounting and
finance experience in the banking sector, with broad exposure to various
operational facets ranging from finance and administration, to information
management, operations and compliance. Before joining the Bank,
Mr. Wong had held senior management positions at Chase Manhattan Bank,
Manhattan Card Company Limited and DBS Bank. Mr. Wong graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy and is a Fellow Member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Edmund Poon

(Chief Operating Officer)

Joined the Bank in October 2004 as Head of Operations and was appointed
Head of Information Technology in June 2007. Mr. Poon is now Chief
Operating Officer of the Bank. He has more than 30 years of experience
in technology management, 23 years of which was in financial or related
industries. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Poon had held various senior local
and regional positions with Standard Chartered Bank and IBM Canada
Limited. Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor's Degree and a Master’s Degree in
Mathematics (Computer Science) from the University of Waterloo in Canada.

Mr. Jaime Azcoiti Leyva

(Chief Risk Officer)

Joined the Bank in January 2009 as Director of Risks. Mr. Azcoiti is
currently the Bank's Chief Risk Officer and is responsible for the Bank's risk
management and development of tripartite strategic alignment. He has
more than 21 years of experience in risk management. Before joining the
Bank, Mr. Azcoiti was Director of Risk for Global Clients & Structured Finance
in Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Mr. Azcoiti holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration from Universidad Pontificia de Comillas
and a Bachelor's Degree in Law from Universidad Nacional de Educacion a
Distancia in Spain.

Mr. John Lee

(Chief Personnel Officer)

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee is now Chief
Personnel Officer of the Bank and Head of Group Human Resources of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He started his banking career
at Standard Chartered Bank in an information technology function and
served for 20 years in various management positions in several business
and support functions, including consumer banking, human resources,
and post-merger integration in Asia Pacific. Before joining the Bank,
Mr. Lee headed the people development function in The Mass Transit
Railway Corporation Limited (now known as MTR Corporation Limited).
Mr. Lee holds a Bachelor's Degree in Economics from Carleton University,
Ottawa, Canada, and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from
Oklahoma City University, Oklahoma, US.

Ms. Rita Man

(Chief Compliance Officer)

Joined the Bank in February 2005 as Senior Counsel. Ms. Man is currently
the Bank’s Chief Compliance Officer and is responsible for managing the
overall compliance function of the Bank. Ms. Man has more than 30 years of
experience in the legal, compliance and banking areas. Ms. Man started her
career as a management trainee in a leading bank in Hong Kong and gained
comprehensive banking experience in a span of 10 years. Ms. Man spent
the following 10 years as a lawyer in private practice, offering professional
legal service in banking, financing and litigation to various banks in Hong
Kong and mainland China. Ms. Man holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong, and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws from Peking University. She was admitted as a solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Anna Li

(Chief Auditor)

Joined the Bank in June 2005 as Senior Vice President and Head of Audit
Group. Ms. Liis currently Chief Auditor of the Bank. She has more than 29
years of experience in auditing. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Li was Assistant
General Manager and Head of Business Planning & Development of Belgian
Bank. Ms. Li holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia and is a Fellow Member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate Member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Zoe Lau

(Director of CEO Office)

Joined the Bank in August 2007 as Senior Vice President and Head of Wealth
Management & Strategic Planning. Ms. Lau is currently Director of CEO Office
of the Bank and is responsible for coordinating various corporate initiatives
and activities for the Chief Executive Officer, as well as overseeing the Bank's
brand management, corporate marketing and corporate communications.
Ms. Lau has 15 years of experience in the areas of cards, payment services
and wealth management with major multinational banks in Hong Kong.
Ms. Lau had also worked extensively in the advertising and marketing
industry in Canada and Hong Kong. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Lau
was Head of Marketing, Greater China, American Express Hong Kong.
Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The University of
Hong Kong.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman
Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. Helen Kan (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Cao Tong

Mr. Patrick Georges Gillot
Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Sun Deshun

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

Mr. Peter Warbanoff

Mr. Zhang Qiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul (Chairman)
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

Registered Office

61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.cncbinternational.com

Auditors

KPMG
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Change of Name

The company name was changed from CITIC Bank International Limited to
China CITIC Bank International Limited on 16 November 2012.

Principal Place of Business

China CITIC Bank International Limited (the “Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at

1-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank operates overseas
branches in Macau, Shanghai, the Cayman Islands, Singapore, New York and
Los Angeles.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the
provision of general banking and related financial services primarily in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the state
of the Bank’s and the Group's affairs at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 52 to 203.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: an interim dividend of HK$1,624,609,207.59
(equivalent to US$208,648,560.66 at 1 September 2011) was paid to CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited in November 2011).

Property and Equipment

Movements in property and equipment are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Reserves
Profit attributable to shareholders before dividends of HK$1,556,558,000

(2011: HKS1,41 Other
movements in the reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of

0,213,000) has been transferred to reserves.

changes in equity.
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Report of the Directors

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank during the year are set
out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Directors
As at the date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Bank comprises:

Chairman
Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaowei (President & Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 22 October 2012)

Ms. Margaret Man (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 28 June 2012)

Mrs. Kan Ng Chau Yuk Helen (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 15 March 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Cao Tong

Mr. Patrick George Gillot

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Sun Deshun (appointed on 15 March 2013)

Mr. Gonzalo Torano

Mr. Peter Warbanoff (appointed on 1 January 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

During the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of the report,
the following persons have resigned as Directors of the Bank:

Mr. Huang Yi Nick (resigned on 16 April 2012)

Mr. Dou Jianzhong (resigned on 28 August 2012)

Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen (resigned on 22 October 2012)
Mr. Tsim Tak Chee Archie (resigned on 16 November 2012)
Mr. Jose Barreiro (resigned on 1 January 2013)

Mr. Kong Dan (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Mr. Chang Zhenming (resigned on 15 March 2013)

Mr. Zhao Shengbiao (resigned on 15 March 2013)

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, all present
Directors shall retire at the next Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests

At no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body corporate.

No contract of significance to which the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 comply fully
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaoxian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China CITIC Bank International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China CITIC Bank
International Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 52 to 203, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December
2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2013
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HZE2012F12 A31HILFZ (LABEE A5 AT)

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
P 5T BET T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FLE A Interest income 4(a) 4,847,356 3,573,280
FEXH Interest expense 4(b) (2,508,545) (1,711,533)
FERE WA Net interest income 2,338,811 1,861,747
EHNMAE2RA Fee and commission income 678,005 627,826
EBRMEESH Fee and commission expense (37,839) (38,035)
FBEAREESWA Net fee and commission income 5 640,166 589,791
FR WA Net trading income 6 718,456 803,962
BEABBEDIARMAAEMER Netgain from financial instruments designated
SR T EFWE at fair value through profit or loss 5,272 9,382
SFE R (E1E) Net hedging gain/(loss) 503 (1,124)
HEMMHEEEESFES Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities (27,523) (136,846)
E A A Other operating income 10 39,802 291,918
KA Operating income 3,715,487 3,418,830
e H Operating expenses 1 (1,808,312) (1,652,445)
I BRIR B ZE 8 A YA 208 R Operating profit before impairment 1,907,175 1,766,385
ERRBR N EMRERE Impairment losses (charged)/written back
R () Bl on loans and advances and other accounts 13 (91,216) 75,091
A EFE S RERIE Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities - (177,788)
WEEE Impairment losses (91,216) (102,697)
KERF Operating profit 1,815,959 1,663,688
HEYE N EREFEE Net loss on disposal of property and equipment (745) (11)
HEYEEHWE Revaluation gain on investment properties 26(a) 50,746 28,352
BADER Profit before taxation 1,865,960 1,692,029
FT15%i Income tax 14 (309,402) (281,816)
REEZF Profit for the year 15 1,556,558 1,410,213
BERAITRRNERS Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 1,556,558 1,410,213
F50BFIFE203EMM B AT ERE —Bo - The notes on pages 59 to 203 form part of these financial staterents.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HZE2012F12 A31HIEFZ (LABEE B8 AT)

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
P EE BET T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
REEZRF Profit for the year 1,556,558 1,410,213
AEEHMEEEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(RBEREH I EAER) (after tax and reclassification adjustments) 16
R EEINT B A B B SRR AY Exchange differences on translation of
[E N =58 financial statements of overseas subsidiaries 25,937 49,798
AIHHEES Available-for-sale securities
— AR EBENE - change in fair value 415,071 (413,105)
— HEREEER — transfer to income statement on disposal 21,093 136,303
— REREZIWER — transfer to income statement on impairment - 178,000
—(ky),/ EEELEHE — transfer (from)/to deferred tax (72,000) 16,794
390,101 (32,210)
AEEZEAKRZEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,946,659 1,378,003
BERAITRRNER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 1,946,659 1,378,003
F50BFIFE203EMM B AT ERE —Bo - The notes on pages 59 to 203 form part of these financial staterents.
5 —FEH
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2012412 A31 B (LATBHE BT )

Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
B &E BET T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets
Re RERIT ~ FRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Eth BT other financial institutions 18 5,290,053 12,944,105
TEIRIT ~ PRIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hih o B ER central banks and other financial institutions 19 43,501,215 35,838,843
RHHEBREE Trading assets 20 1,849,344 2,079,683
T ABRE SRR Securities designated at fair value through

N BEMNES profit or loss 21 91,500 355,677
BPERNBZ L EMERTA Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 22 107,474,923 96,365,280
AR ERS Available-for-sale securities 23 18,030,653 22,904,954
LIEYS L Property and equipment 26(a)

—IREYE — Investment property 238,348 187,602

—HmEREE - Other property and equipment 670,605 644,520
Al B I8 Tax recoverable 31(a) 6,038 3,038
FEIERIEE B Deferred tax assets 31(b) 28,761 102,423
EERARE Total assets 177,181,440 171,426,125
EzkBE Equity and liabilities
IRIT R E & mi s Deposits and balances of banks and

FREERF other financial institutions 27 3,685,575 5,121,298
BFEEFER Deposits from customers 28 130,719,661 127,040,396
AR AaE Trading liabilities 29 907,342 1,331,198
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 14,297,569 12,123,896
BEITERE Debt securities issued 32 1,119,747 397,436
AHAR TR Current taxation 31(a) 62,133 122,264
FEIERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 1,478 1,496
HEmaE Other liabilities 33 4,637,920 3,990,018
BEEE R Loan capital 35 6,698,159 8,192,926
EEHEE Total liaibilities 162,129,584 158,320,928
= Equity
R A Share capital 36(a) 7,283,341 7,283,341
# 1 Reserves 7,768,515 5,821,856
BERATRRMN Total equity attributable to equity

fERBEE shareholders of the Bank 15,051,856 13,105,197
ERRAEAE Total equity and liabilities 177,181,440 171,426,125
BEEEMN2013F3 A27 AW IR REEEA -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013

RANE B4 HRNE EIER

ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN Helen KAN Steve WONG
HITEE - ITRFTHAEE, HITEFRBITTHAEH HITEFREFTHAAH Bl ha Es

Executive Director, President and Executive Director and Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer

F50B BIFE203E MM B AT RER —Bo - The notes on pages 59 to 203 form part of these financial statements.

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2012412 A31 B (LATB#E BT )

Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
B aE BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
EE Assets
RE RELRIT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Hith & RMEBHET other financial institutions 18 5,992,525 11,725,857
ERTT ~ ARIBITR Placements with and advances to banks,

Hith & BB M KB central banks and other financial institutions 19 34,826,252 28,400,867
RHHEBREE Trading assets 20 1,841,273 2,075,004
T ABRE SRR Securities designated at fair value through

N BEMNES profit or loss 21 91,500 355,677
EEER LA L HMARIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts 22 97,098,220 86,666,715
Al EES Available-for-sale securities 23 17,143,921 22,205,469
R NGIE ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 24 8,651,330 8,201,586
MEBARKRE Investments in subsidiaries 25 1,274,990 1,274,990
LIEYNEEL = Property and equipment 26(b)

—REYE — Investment property 207,190 158,202

—H AW N ERAE — Other property and equipment 656,865 629,786
R IE A Deferred tax assets 31(b) 21,097 93,220
BEEAS Total assets 167,805,163 161,787,373
ExRkAE Equity and liabilities
RIT R E M S mEER Deposits and balances of banks and

GERKR&EE other financial institutions 27 2,237,959 4,360,231
BEFER Deposits from customers 28 124,395,829 119,175,347
RPAEEE Trading liabilities 29 907,079 1,321,019
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 14,297,569 12,123,896
BEITEBES Debt securities issued 32 1,119,747 388,383
ARERFR IR Current taxation 31(a) 46,022 112,299
EEFIEA G Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) - 18
HiafE Other liabilities 33 3,986,280 3,634,159
FEASTBT /8 A AR IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 34 226,743 2,273,113
BIEER Loan capital 35 6,698,159 6,242,919
BEAH Total liabilites 153,915,387 149,631,384
R Equity
[N Share capital 36(a) 7,283,341 7,283,341
[t Reserves 36(b) 6,606,435 4,872,648
BERERTRRMN Total equity attributable to equity

EEEH shareholders of the Bank 13,889,776 12,155,989
ERRAEAE Total equity and liabilites 167,805,163 161,787,373
EEER2013F3 27 BN IRE LR
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013.

RANE BA BRME EHER
ZHANG Xiaowei Margaret MAN Helen KAN Steve WONG
HITESE  ITRFTHAEH HITEERBTHAEZ HITEERELITHAEZR B iBE
Executive Director, President and Executive Director and Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chief Executive Officer Alternate Chief Executive Officer
F50B FIFE203E MM B AT BRE —Bo - The notes on pages 59 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
—E—-_FFIR JO55
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rEeEREEER Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

HE2012F12 A3 AL F R (LB RER) For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R5E
The Group
EX nE  RE HE REER
ERGE EMRE EfRE i KRG (Hi&E36d)

RA ROWE EAHE —MREE Exchange Property Investment A Requlatory REMF  Total ERAE
Share Share  Capital ~ General differences revaluation revaluation Statutory  general Retained reserves Total
capital premium  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits (note36(d)  equity
BETT ABTT AT BETR B%TR BT A%Tn ABTn A%Tr A%t A%t A%t
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

R201261818 At 1 January 2012 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 72213 4718 (314,018) 20,862 122,740 5525822 5,821,856 13,105,197
BZ0125M0EREF : Changes in equity for 2012:
AFEat Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 1,556,558 1,556,558 1,556,558
REEAM Other comprehensive
rENRER income for the year - - - - 25937 - 364,164 - - - 390,101 390,101
KEERE Total comprehensive income
et for the year - - - - 25937 - 364,164 - - 1,556,558 1,946,659 1,946,659
EBaREET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 12379 2,175  (14,554) - -
R2012#128318  At31December 2012 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 98150 4718 50,146 33241 124,915 7,067,826 7,768,515 15,051,856
R011%E1818 At 1 January 2011 7283341 282930 6589 100000 22415 4718 (2320100 11802 73636 5798382 6068462 13,351,803
BZ0NEMEEE : Changes in equity for 2011:
RERRT Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 1410213 1410213 1410213
TEEEM Other comprehensive
THREEE income for the year - - - - 49798 - (82,008) - - - (322100 (32210
AEERE Total comprehensive income
W for the year - - - - 49798 - (82008) - - 1410213 1378003 1378003

REESRETHRES  Interim dividend declared
(M5E36() and paid in respect of

the current year (note 36(c)) - - - - - - - _

(1,624,609) (1,624609) (1,624,609)

BERAEF Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 9060 49104  (58,164) - -
R2011F12A318 At 31 December 2011 7283341 282930 6,589 100,000 72,213 4718 (314,018) 20862 122,740 5525822 58213856 13,105,197
F50BE FIFE203E MM B AT FRE —Bo - The notes on pages 59 to 203 form part of these financial statements.

056| RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HZE2012F12 A31HILFZ (LABEE B8 6T)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
B =E BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
mEEK Operating activities
A58 A Y4 A Profit before taxation 1,865,960 1,692,029
JERESIEEAE Adjustments for non-cash items:
EPEREBFRREAMARIE Impairment losses charged/(written back)

MTEEEE?E\ %/( [B]43) on loans and advances and other accounts 91,216 (75,091)
Al H & ﬂfﬁ)@ﬂﬁ Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities - 177,788
HEAHNERAFFER Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities 27,523 136,846
HEWERREFEE Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 745 11
TEYEEGH W Revaluation gain on investment properties (50,746) (28,352)
RS 5 Amortisation of deferred expenses 68,276 58,978
Y N RAEITE Depreciation on property and equipment 101,574 87,754
EmBEHFRERA Dividend income from equity securities (5,303) (4,002)
BEFERFE Interest expense on loan capital 410,791 490,510
EH =% Foreign exchange differences 135,376 (129,894)

2,645,412 2,406,577
KEEEGLM, R (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
[REHA BB BE3E A MERTT Placements with and advances to banks,

HR R ERTT R H A & RS A central banks and other financial institutions

FRRER with original maturity beyond 3 months 4,796,934 (10,827,793)
FEE|EAH fBiE3(E A R B EH Treasury bills with original maturity beyond 3 months 829,626 (295,225)
JREIEAEEBA3ME A # Certificates of deposit held with original maturity

BB FRE beyond 3 months (2,494,558) (845,942)
TE5R®EE Trading assets 230,340 (446,026)
B RBIBER L/\Jiﬂﬁ% Securities designated at fair value through

DR BENE profit or loss 264,177 290,831
EFEF &;& XN E A BRIA Loans and advances to customers and other accounts (11,260,756) (5,634,052)
Al S Available-for-sale securities 6,835,143 2,286,006

(799,094) (15,472,201)
REaE/EEM CRd) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RIT M E & B B Deposits and balances of banks and

FER RS other financial institutions (1,435,723) 3,270,926
BPEGER Deposits from customers 3,679,265 13,574,283
RE5ABAaE Trading liabilities (423,855) (146,330)
EEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,036,639 5,310,722
BETERES Debt securities issued 714,667 165,814
Hip & & Other liabilities 797,453 1,345,148

________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5,368,446 23,520,563
RELEEBENRESEE Cash generated from operations 7,214,764 10,454,939
—E—FEH
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HZE2012F 12 A31HILFZ (LABEE B 56T

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
P 5T BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000

RELEEKNREE Cash generated from operations 7,214,764 10,454,939
2MEH Income tax paid

BERNBEENEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (325,800) (74,492)

BEAEINRIE Overseas tax paid (45,933) (33,463)
RELEEBNESTE Net cash generated from operating activities 6,843,031 10,346,984
REEK Investing activities

EERFESRE Dividends received from equity securities 5,303 4,002

BAYENEZE Purchase of property and equipment (126,880) (149,018)

HEME N RETSHKIE Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 63 54
ARRBREEBNRESFE Net cash used in investing activities (121,514) (144,962)
AL K Financing activities

2R E Dividends paid - (1,624.609)

BTEKE ARS8 Proceeds from loan capital issued 2,312,589 -

EEBEKER Redemption of loan capital (3,878,422) -

YHERE AT B Interest paid on loan capital (463,160) (471,022)
ARBEEENESFE Net cash used in financing activities (2,028,993) (2,095,631)
HeRBESEEENFERE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,692,524 8,106,391
MBE1ENBEERBEEEEEHR Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 39,009,923 30,903,532
R12A831EMNBERIBELEEEE Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38 43,702,447 39,009,923
REEREENRESREERE Cash flows from operating activities include:

[=Al &IPS Interest received 4,850,950 3,468,929

2 AR B Interest paid (2,047,201) (972,650)

F59A R FE203B MW B AT IEHRE—2B5 -

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 59 to 203 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)

Principal activities

The principal activities of China CITIC Bank International Limited (the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”), which
materially affect the results or comprise the assets and liabilities of the
Group, are the provision of banking and related financial services.

Significant accounting policies

China CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated
and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at 61-65
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Bank
and its subsidiaries.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)

(ii)); and

- investment property (see note 2(h)).

—B-CEEH
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CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b)

()

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (cont’d)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 48.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as
follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(i)

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to the
income statement over their expected life.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the
original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in
the present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprises all
gains and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued
coupon) of such financial assets and financial liabilities, together
with interest income and expense and dividend income
attributable to those financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases,
the fee is recognised as income in the accounting period
in which the costs or risk is incurred and is accounted for as
interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial asset
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when
the share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the income statement. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(e)(i)).

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)),
unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(s)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset or issue of the financial
liability. Transaction costs on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised using trade date accounting. Other financial assets
and financial liabilities are recognised using settlement date
accounting. From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition, but excludes those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
(note 2(g)) are accounted for as trading instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii)

Categorisation (cont'd)

The Group has the option of designating its financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

- the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract; or

- the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which will be classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss or as
available-for-sale; or (c) those where the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-sale.
Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and advances to
customers and placements with and advances to banks, central
banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any (see
note 2(1)).
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2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii)

Categorisation (cont'd)

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories above. They include financial
assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in the market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably, and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity securities are
carried at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to the
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2

(e)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced
at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, or
if the market for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques that provide a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs
are based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(e)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(vi) Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host
contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. The embedded derivatives are separated from the
host contract and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the
economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised
cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities, but as
receivables and are carried in the statement of financial position at
amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense respectively, over the life of each agreement using
the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(9)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Hedging
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or

loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and

the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the

financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged

items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and

on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues prospectively hedge

accounting when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,

terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair
value of recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain
or loss being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used, is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.

The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.
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(9)

(h)

(i)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Hedging (cont’d)

(i) Hedge effectiveness testing (cont’d)
For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method or regressive analysis as
effectiveness testing methodologies.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80 per cent to 125 per cent for the
hedge to be deemed effective.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and buildings held
for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the income statement. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iii).

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
Property, plant and equipment, issued by the HKICPA, with the effect
that other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Other property and equipment (cont’d)
The following items of property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note

2(0):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 2(j)(iii)); and

- other items of equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated.

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- Buildings — over 30 years or the unexpired terms of the land
leases, whichever is shorter.

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment — 3 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

—B-CEEH
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of leased assets
Assets that are held by the Group under leases and which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee are classified as operating leases.

(i) Finance leases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances to
customers. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
finance leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l).

(iii)  Operating leases
Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies, as set out
in note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(I). Revenue
arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance with
the Group's revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)

(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
possession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”. The Group does not
hold the repossessed assets for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less costs to
sell at the date of exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower;

- disappearance of an active market for financial assets because
of financial difficulties; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

—B-CEEH
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of loans
and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that borrower/
investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables
with a short duration are not discounted if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances and collective
impairment allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i)

Loans and receivables (cont'd)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio size,
concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate
the required allowance, the Group makes assumptions both
to define the way the Group models inherent losses and to
determine the required input parameters, based on historical
experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Group believes that the impairment
allowances on loans and advances to customers are reasonable
and supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
loans and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

—B-CEEH
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables (cont'd)

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-
sale security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified to the
income statement. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity securities and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Such impairment losses are not
reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(iii)

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts); and

investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

—B-CEEH
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(m)
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Other assets (cont'd)

- Reversal of impairment losses
In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first 6
months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the year (see notes 2(I)(i) to (iii)).

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within 3

months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Staff retirement scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund
and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions
are charged to the income statement as and when the
contributions fall due.
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Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

—B-CEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(o)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Income tax (cont’d)

Where investment properties are carried at the fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates
that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends
are recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(o)

(p)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Income tax (cont’d)

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transactions
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in gains
less losses from trading securities or financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss. All other exchange differences
relating to monetary items are presented as gains less losses from
dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

—B-CEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(p)

(q)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Translation of foreign currencies (cont’d)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the

exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified

from equity to the income statement when the profit or loss on

disposal is recognised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received)
is initially recognised as deferred income within other liabilities.
Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its subsidiaries,
the fair value of the guarantee is estimated and capitalised as
the cost of investment in subsidiaries and deferred income
within other liabilities.

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with note 2(g)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2  Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(cont'd)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities (cont’d)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control orjoint control over the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same Group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
Group of which the other entity is a member);

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

—B-CEEH
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2

(r)

(s)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Related parties (cont’d)
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(s)

(t)

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

Non-current assets held for sale (cont’d)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank are concerned
are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

—B-CEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial
statements:

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
transfers of financial assets

- Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period. The impacts of
the above developments are as follows:

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —
transfers of financial assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosure information
on transfer of financial assets that enables users of the financial
statements:

- to understand the relationship between transferred financial
assets that are not derecognised in their entirety and the
associated liabilities; and

- to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s
continuing involvement in derecognised financial assets.

The disclosure in respect of these transfers of financial assets of the
Group is included in note 40 and no disclosure on comparative period
is required for the first year of adoption.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets

Following the amendments to HKAS 12 effective in 2012, deferred
tax on investment property, carried at fair value under HKAS 40,
Investment property, will be measured on the presumption that an
investment property is recovered through sale. The presumption is
rebutted if the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

As a result, the Group has reviewed its investment properties
and concluded that the related deferred tax has been measured
on the presumption that their carrying amounts are recovered
entirely through sale. As the Group considered that there is no
material impact on the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12,
this accounting policy change has been applied prospectively.
Accordingly, the deferred taxation impact of approximately
HKS$12,552,000 related to prior periods has been credited to the
income statement in the current year.

—B-CEEH
Annual Report 2012

087



B TSR MY

4 FEBRARFEXE

(@) FEUWA

Notes to the Financial Statements

4  Interest income and interest expense

(@) Interestincome

2012 2011
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
LTES Listed securities 3,284 20,681
ELEHHES Unlisted securities 390,717 435,832
E At (F3E) Others (Note) 4,453,355 3,116,767
L AR EBEFT AEEN Interest income on financial assets that
DREEMNEHA are not at fair value through profit or loss 4,847,356 3,573,280
(b) FEZH (b) Interest expense
2012 2011
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE - RITREMESREER Deposits from customers, banks and other
FR KRB EITERE R EAM financial institutions, certificates of deposit
issued and others 2,084,184 1,220,786
EEITEBRES Debt securities issued 13,570 237
BETEIFE N Loan capital issued 410,791 490,510
JEIE R AR BEFTAEEN Interest expense on financial liabilities that
SRBENTEXE are not at fair value through profit or loss 2,508,545 1,711,533
Hoho: Of which:
BE - RITREMESREER Deposits from customers, banks and other
FHARBBITERE financial institutions, certificates of deposit
REF AR ER issued and others repayable after 5 years - 6,254
DETEEERNNSFLAREE Loan capital issued repayable after 5 years 161,165 270,364

FiEE -

HZE20NFNANBLEFE  E4fERAR
R E© R & ZE 5 FE T F)E WA 855,240,000
JC (20114F : B #223000007C) * HF 2 BEEE
SRR BT L B B A9 A1 B U A #55,120,0007T

Note:

(20114F  ##12,151,0007T) (H5E22(0)) ©

088] HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
of HK$5,240,000 (2011: HK$22,300,000), which includes interest income on the
unwinding of the discount on loan impairment losses of HK$5,120,000 (2011:
HKS$12,151,000) (note 22(b)) for the year ended 31 December 2012.



B TSR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

BERAERESWA 5 Netfee and commission income
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERRASUA Fee and commission income:
ERAe Bills commission 124,387 109,898
EAREBKRA Card-related income 24,218 20,871
— AR IRTTARTS General banking services 80,795 79,294
{RER Insurance 190,645 168,296
KENEBEREER Investment and structured investment products 96,533 101,377
B S YTMhpEER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 160,819 147,433
At Others 608 657
678,005 627,826
ERNAEeSH Fee and commission expense (37,839) (38,035)
640,166 589,791
Hep o Of which:
FEARESRA Net fee and commission income (other than
(T EREBIETEERMER the amounts included in determining
S88)  BERIIEEAR the effective interest rate) relating to financial
SABHRENSRMEERAE ©  assets and liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss:
—BRARASWA - Fee and commission income 185,037 168,304
—EBRARAEIH — Fee and commission expense (13,509) (14,487)
171,528 153,817
FERZWA 6 Nettrading income
2012 2011
BETT M TIT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BB NS U R E 1R Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 277,918 407,435
BEERXR AR FRERER Gains less losses from trading securities 735 2,364
H B BEEE W m=REE Gains less losses from other dealing activities 489,194 430,062
THBEMNESH Interest expense on trading liabilities (49,391) (35,899)
718,456 803,962
—z-—zey

Annual Report 2012



B sR R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

7 EEEBEBEBERFURBMAABERN 7 Net gain from financial instruments designated at fair
SR T BFINE value through profit or loss
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FU Net gain 2,901 625
LAY A Interest income
— kW — Listed 921 4,963
—JELm - Unlisted 1,450 11,502
FEZH Interest expense - (7,708)
5,272 9,382
8 FEIPWE (EE) 8 Net hedging gain/(loss)
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
RABEYFFRS(E8) Net gain/(loss) on fair value hedge 503 (1,124)
9 HEUHHERSFFER 9  Net loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
R EERENFEHEER Net revaluation loss transferred from reserves (21,093) (136,303)
FERNELERNFER Net loss arising in current year (6,430) (543)
(27,523) (136,846)
10 HM&KEWA 10 Other operating income
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
A B R B SR B WA Dividend income from available-for-sale equity securities
— — Listed 103 102
—3EEk ~ Unlisted 5,200 3,900
WEMERSIWA Rental income from investment properties
B B 2 A #276,0007T less direct outgoings of HK$276,000
(20114F = & #253,0007T) (2011: HK$253,000) 4,823 5,049
HAb (FsE) Others (Note) 29,676 282,867
39,802 291,918
PisE - Note:
ARITH2008F F12009FF ST FTEIEH & = K EE & During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Bank wrote back approximately
TR E S 5T 4978 #5298,000,0007T © FA20114F12 8 HK$229,000,000 to the income statements, which represented substantial
IR LFREAARTE HREFE I IERED Bt recovery of the Lehman Brothers Minibonds compensation provisions of
TREE - #97515229,000,0007T B = UL IR o approximately HK$298,000,000 made in 2008 and 2009.

090 HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

K H 11 Operating expenses
2012 2011
BT T T TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(a) BIRA (a) Staff costs
FehEME TKAKA Salaries and other staff costs 1,027,081 944,595
RIRERA (FizE37) Retirement costs (note 37) 67,356 60,860
1,094,437 1,005,455
(b) 1TE (b) Depreciation
M RBEITE Depreciation of property and equipment
(Mt3E26(a)) (note 26(a))
—IREBELLEHERENEE — Assets held for use under operating leases 21,374 27,515
— Hih&E — Other assets 80,200 60,239
101,574 87,754
(c) & (c) Other operating expenses
LEY L Property and equipment expenses
(TEEIE) (W) (excluding depreciation) (Note)
—MEHEE — Rental of properties 180,451 158,913
— HAt - Others 125,466 108,176
Z RN B & Auditor’s remuneration 6,494 6,211
BEE Advertising 43,596 33,756
BEELE - ORI ER S Communication, printing and stationery 67,863 66,805
EEREEXEA Legal and professional fees 28,865 27,864
HAh Others 159,566 157,511
612,301 559,236
weET A Total operating expenses 1,808,312 1,652,445
BaE - Note:

Hin@E T HERREEERES NN RER-N
AELH  2RlARERES HB%20950007T
(20114F : B#26550000T) MEMEEMRES H
(BEYMEMS) 11724880007 (20114F © 7
#152,666,0007T) ©

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payments under
operating leases of HK$2,095,000 (2011: HKS$2,655,000) for the hire of
equipment, and HK$172,488,000 (2011: HK$152,666,000) for the hire of other
assets (including property rentals).

—B-CEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Directors’ remuneration

The Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

e BN Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
2012 2011
BT T T TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EEWe Directors’ fees 2,775 2,695

e EMREDAE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

(B EMZE i) (Notes (i) to (i) 31,485 19,209
FIETEAT Discretionary bonuses 7,411 3,451
RIRET MK Retirement scheme contributions 974 1,010
42,645 26,365

() WBERNTHORBHBE (RAETH
Bl FR20NFEZN TFTEBRITESNE
4+ 45 B) 5 75 13,3850007T (20114F © 7 #
3,633,0007T) °

() WRBERIPEETSE (58] &K A
THRES—THEMNGEE - BEEZD
SABURRE ERBIEIFEARITTEEMNERR
EBEEAE - REETEBNSEMT B
20124F A7 #5,000,0007T (20114F © B
14,000,0007T) EEHREMEE TR - WE3E
M E B NAEUE o

—IER IR BN RIEEE R0 FF
UL RERSRITHABFHME R
FHRNFXINNRSRBA/EE
1,324,0007T ©

(iii)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes:

(iii)

Under the Bank’s retention incentive scheme (using a deferred
mechanism), cash benefits amounting to HK$3,385,000 (2011:
HK$3,633,000) were paid to the executive directors of the Group in
2012,

Under the long-term incentive scheme ("LTI"), eligible persons will
be granted a number of Appreciation Rights. Payment for each
Appreciation Right is determined by the appreciation in the Bank’s
net asset value over a three-year performance period. In 2012,
HK$5,000,000 (2011: HK$14,000,000) was accrued in the staff costs,
including the amount payable to the directors based on management’s
best estimation.

A special grant of LTI was approved in 2011. Cash benefits amounting
to HK$1,324,000 were paid in 2011 to ensure the competitiveness of
the executive remuneration.



B TSR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

13 BEXRBRREMBERE EHE) 13 Impairment losses (charged)/written back on loans and
=] 43 advances and other accounts
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEE (&), [# Impairment losses (charged)/written back
— BRI — Loans and advances (83,101) 15,131
— HAhERIA - Other accounts (8,115) 59,960
(91,216) 75,091
ERNBAREEMBRIEREREE  Impairment losses (charged)/written back on
CEg) /O loans and advances and other accounts
(FFE22(0)) (note 22(b))
— @RI FEH - Individual assessment (154,125) 62,965
— 2B FHE - Collective assessment 62,909 12,126
(91,216) 75,091
Hrh (ME2200)) Of which (note 22(b)):
— hEH - Additions (227,916) (220,071)
— o143 - Releases 107,885 265,940
— W El$ & — Recoveries 28,815 29,222
(91,216) 75,091
—F- =58
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14

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

REWRRA TSR 14 Income tax in the consolidated income statement
FEWERFITHEH (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
AEBIIE - BFRFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FRNEE(HIFE3@) Provision for the year (note 31(a)) 237,983 225,194
BAFERBEER(ORE), IR (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years (922) 4,723
237,061 229917
REAFLIE — BN IE Current tax - Overseas
FNERF Provision for the year 64,555 39,549
BEFERIBLEEMIE, (A1)  Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 1,113 (2,162)
65,668 37,387
ERERIE Deferred tax
Ta it EREE A (M5E31(0)) Origination of temporary differences (note 31(b)) 6,673 14,512
309,402 281,816
NFEBHAENESHMIBENFEMETE The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is calculated at 16.5%
R B g A IR B E16.5% (20114F : 16.5%) &T (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
B o BHIMNITT R B A R TR IE R R AR RS for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
BIREESE R T R B - current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
BEXHESHEFIRERABETEBRRN (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
HERE applicable tax rates
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
¢ A4 A Profit before tax 1,865,960 1,692,029
RAB BE R E A RS Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated at
TERAE RIS the rates applicable to profits in the
MEZERIE countries concerned 322,695 296,170
e[ HIR S H e F a2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 40,893 19,386
JEERTIM AT IBR 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (43,369) (34,144)
BAFEHIBEBHRE Under-provision in prior years 191 2,561
Hith Others (11,008) (2,157)
BERHIES H Actual tax expense 309,402 281,816

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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15 ANTRREAGEF

AT R E(RR A M BEE T ARITH
%R R A & A1) #51,363,282,0007T (2011
£ /51 159,491,0007T) °

16 HfttZHEWzE

BARE2E RS AARSS R E

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank

16

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank
includes a profit of HK$1,363,282,000 (2011: HKS$1,159,491,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.

Other comprehensive income

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

income
2012 2011
BlalgE HEIY REEFE UolE HERE BRERTE
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount benefit amount
BETT B¥Tr BY¥Tx BET BBTr B¥%Tn
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
HHEFINKT B A AR Exchange differences on translation
IBGEEED of financial statements
[E =58 of overseas subsidiaries 25,937 - 25,937 49,798 - 49,798
AHHEES Available-for-sale securities
—IHEEEAR — Net movement in
NRBEERE available-for-sale fair
EiE value reserve 436,164 (72,000) 364,164 (98,802) 16,794 (82,008)
Hip 2wk Other comprehensive income 462,101 (72,000) 390,101 (49,004) 16,794 (32,210)
—E-_FFH
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DEHEMNERTARKEIRBTZLER

A RIEE BB K A BF T2 AR TE a0 fa] 2
FLERMFZRIRA T A~ - NEEHER
TUATOREZZHDHE ©

RANBEREHERBBLBINITHEE
RITRBMAPBIRTTRS - BERITEHE
%@% AEERREER EHMENRR

£ - BIMIITEREREENEERAE

i% LB DTT - PERTRFEIER

% AR B TE-TEMEBRT - UK
REBEBNTFERITEBEERAE

BAANBABRITESETERFEFRFLOR
% EEMELS - Ei\{m/ﬁ;%fﬁff‘ Bk
RE RPN EEER  MEEERERLA

ER1T ©

MEMRERMSEHBEERERINER 5 R
% Beminng  BEREESFNMPRR
TEHE -

HEESBTEaRERCEERBEMIREGE
WO A R - BITREES -

AoBMBEMS - KEWANDERBRIEA
ERER B GI RRE S RN a5 D BB 555
DEPLE - KA D ERRIBEZZHDANE
BERANAEEEDEEFERTEEHD
BB ERRITMERELNTEREERBRRN
[E ] R TR0 B REL S WA R E XK
7 BP0 ERFR AR S

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

17

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented consistently with reportable
segments which are regularly reviewed or evaluated internally by the
chief operating decision-maker to allocate resources to the segments
and to assess their performance. The Group has identified the
following four main reportable segments.

Wholesale and cross-border banking business includes wholesale
banking business in Hong Kong and overseas branches, and China
banking. Wholesale banking mainly comprises corporate lending and
syndicated loans, trade financing and cash management. Overseas
branches include the management office unit in Hong Kong and the
branches operated overseas. China banking mainly includes a branch
and a subsidiary bank in China, and the China banking management
office in Hong Kong.

Personal and business banking mainly comprises deposit account
services, residential mortgages, other consumer lending, credit card
services and Small and Medium Enterprises (“SMEs") business, wealth
management services and private banking.

Treasury and markets covers the provision of foreign exchange
services, money market activities, the management of investment
securities and central cash management.

Others mainly comprises unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to the
business segments based on the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective business segments and the apportionment of
overheads on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental
charges at the market rate for the use of bank premises are reflected
as inter-segment income for the ‘Others’ segment and inter-segment
expenses for the respective business segments.
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17 2EER (&)

(a) TEKDE

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Segment reporting (cont’d)

(a)

Reportable segments

TEH
The Group
2012
NAR BAR
BIEER R ERIT MER
Wholesale & Personal & BREHiE
cross-border business Treasury and Hith oy
banking banking markets Others Consolidated
BT T BET T BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERBWA () Net interest income/(expense) 1,711,640 920,084 (339,068) 46,155 2,338,811
Hibagg A Other operating income 362,423 463,929 558,419 19,428 1,404,199
HEMMEHEFS Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
FEES(E518) available-for-sale securities 2,454 - (29,977) - (27,523)
BEWA Operating income 2,076,517 1,384,013 189,374 65,583 3,715,487
T Operating expenses (438,200) (491,998) (65,423) (812,691) (1,808,312
DEEZ4EE (KH),/BA  Inter-segment (expenses)/income  (236,871)  (327,318) (98,521) 662,710 -
HBREEEREN 2 Operating profit/(loss) before
@*ﬁ‘)ﬁ*ﬂ/(@?ﬁ) impairment 1,401,446 564,697 25,430 (84,398) 1,907,175
BERRBR L EMRE Impairment losses (charged)/
SEEIE CEMR) /[ written back on loans and
advances and other accounts (88,858) (2,846) - 488 (91,216)
BERA(FA) Operating profit/(loss) 1,312,588 561,851 25,430 (83,910) 1,815,959
HEWE KR Net loss on disposal of
TREE property and equipment (27) (249) - (469) (745)
WEMEEE S Revaluation gain on
investment properties - - - 50,746 50,746
BASF (BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,312,561 561,602 25,430 (33,633) 1,865,960
FTiSRL Income tax - - - (309,402) (309,402)
REERAN/(BR) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,312,561 561,602 25,430 (343,035) 1,556,558
HhnEER - Other segment items:
e Depreciation 22,374 17,739 1,153 60,308 101,574
PHEE Segment assets 89,435,758 36,158,116 66,827,598  (15,240,032) 177,181,440
SEEE Segment liabilities 84,101,987 70,618,597 24,557,741 (17,148,741) 162,129,584
rEEEEN Capital expenditure incurred
BEXEX during the year 65,637 29,380 5,367 26,496 126,880
—E—FFR 097
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17 OZER (8) 17 Segment reporting (cont’d)
(@) TEMRPEF (&) (@) Reportable segments (cont’d)
REHE
The Group
2011
(&%) (BIzE)
NSIDN
BEER ‘
(Restated) fELA K ‘ (E51) (M3E)
(Note) RIS IRTT HER Hit
Wholesale & Personal & REKTS (Restated)
cross-border business  Treasury and (Note) ra
banking banking markets Others  Consolidated
BT T BT T BT BT BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FRBMA () Net interest income/(expense) 1,331,379 695,554 (193,551) 28,365 1,861,747
Hibggg A Other operating income/(expenses) 359,459 680,726 675,058 (21,314) 1,693,929
HEAHRHPERS Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
FU S (FE) available-for-sale securities 21 - (136,867) - (136,846)
BN Operating income 1,690,859 1,376,280 344,640 7,051 3,418,830
KETH Operating expenses (404,016) (455,927) (79,683) (712,819) (1,652,445)
DEBRE 2 8% () /WA Inter-segment (expenses)/income (204,302) (305,397) (77,889) 587,588 -
HBRRELEER 2 Operating profit/(l0ss)
mgss/ (B18) before impairment 1,082,541 614,956 187,068 (118,180) 1,766,385
BERNBZ N HAMRE Impairment losses written back
BRI on loans and advances
and other accounts 65,808 5,475 - 3,808 75,091
AREEEFRERSRE Impairment losses (charged)/
() /o1 written back on
available-for-sale securities - - (178,000) 212 (177,788)
RERBEEE,(EE) Impairment losses written
back/(charged) 65,808 5475 (178,000) 4,020 (102,697)
fmgar/ (ER) Operating profit/(loss) 1,148,349 620,431 9,068 (114,160) 1,663,688
HEWE KR Net (loss)/gain on disposal
F(BE), W of property and equipment (19) ) - 14 an
REMEEGR SR Revaluation gain on
investment properties - - - 28,352 28,352
BanaF, (E8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,148,330 620,425 9,068 (85,794) 1,692,029
Fri8x Income tax - - - (281,816) (281,816)
AEERN,/ (EBE) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,148,330 620,425 9,068 (367,610) 1410213
Hihn#IEE - Other segment items:
e Depreciation 17,801 14,606 334 55,013 87,754
DEEE Segment assets 84,193,786 33,863,664 62,546,194 (9,177,519) 171,426,125
nEaE Segment liabilities 83,059,215 64,256,967 22,206,581 (11,201,835) 158,320,928
KEEEER Capital expenditure
BARAY incurred during the year 62,389 31,401 16,127 39,101 149,018

098] HIFIRIT (EIBR) BIR AR
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(b)

2 ERER ()
A2/ H I (&)
GEE

EIRITR201NF EFFERKER - FTOQF
KBRS R R ERITAMME [Ef] 5
HEHMHEA T RRITEEIE ML © Bt
R20NENRAJNBIEFEMNHEBHEREE
Bl - DME—BUMELLE ©

EHER

BB RRIEMB AR TR ER
PREIR - SIRBARREXENHEENE
BEARARNITREDTTALE T AR

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Segment reporting (cont’d)

(@) Reportable segments (cont’d)

Note:

As the wholesale banking business was restructured in the first half of 2012,

the new wholesale and cross-border banking business comprises the previous
wholesale banking business and the China banking business, while the China
banking business was previously reported under the ‘Others’ segment. In
response to this change, the comparatives for the year end 31 December 2011
were restated for consistency.

(b) Geographical information

The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the

principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,

of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

rEE
The Group

2012
REEERARE
BiATER FTON Contingent
Profit before HEE FN=Ri Operating liabilities and
taxation Total assets Total liabilities income commitments
BT T BT BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Hong Kong 1,531,465 164,052,152 149,648,756 3,067,651 50,472,916
R Mainland China 161,947 15,768,774 14,089,151 338,587 3,585,517
ESEi United States 48,600 2,332,154 2,245,266 84,859 384,394
s Singapore 89,520 9,090,833 9,010,369 180,199 3,357,070
Hitb Others 34,411 1,100,193 1,070,164 44,357 1,757,384
D HEPFEITE E Inter-segment items 17 (15,162,666)  (13,934,122) (166) -
1,865,960 177,181,440 162,129,584 3,715,487 59,557,281
ZE-ZFFR
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17 2EER (&)

(b)

18

FREIRT (B BRAH

EHER (F)

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Segment reporting (cont’d)

(b) Geographical information (cont’d)

REH
The Group
2011
B BEMRE
BATEF, (E58) LEWA Contingent
Profit/(loss) BEE BwaE Operating liabilities and
before taxation Total assets  Total liabilities income  commitments
BT T BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 1,531,819 156,160,679 143,567,767 2,929,392 43,446,840
HREIA Mainland China 161,591 15,636,529 14,087,474 294,921 1,378,711
Ee United States 12,853 2,486,245 2,424,020 53,070 975,226
B Singapore 2,581 5,760,368 5,759,463 105,643 1,341,223
Hih Others (16,854) 1,602,848 1,609,798 35,937 1,498,659
HEEIEER Inter-segment items 39 (10,220,544) (9,127,594) (133) -
1,692,029 171,426,125 158,320,928 3,418,830 48,640,659

BRERERT PRETREMBEHE

18 Cash and balances with banks, central banks and other

BENEE financial institutions
AEH RKIT
The Group The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
Re Cash in hand 218,535 202,274 217,985 201,727
FERRIBITHET Balances with central banks 1,263,007 1,120,805 317,170 101,396
ERTTHETR Balances with banks 1,911,261 10,256,612 3,560,120 10,058,320
TEHMESREERNETF  Balances with other financial institutions 1,897,250 1,364,414 1,897,250 1,364,414
5,290,053 12,944,105 5,992,525 11,725,857

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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20

Notes to the Financial Statements

19 Placements with and advances to banks, central banks

e YN E S E and other financial institutions
rEE 17
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT T BT BEETTT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERITHER Placements with banks 34,819,543 24,146,120 27,522,498 16,708,144
FEIRITHIEA R Advances to banks 8,681,672 11,692,723 7,303,754 11,692,723
43,501,215 35,838,843 34,826,252 28,400,867
FIEAA - Maturing:

—1ME AN - Within 1 month 24,982,655 13,245,092 21,202,437 8,952,045
—EAZIFERN - Between 1 month and 1 year 18,480,773 22,593,751 13,623,815 19,448,822
—1F1% — After 1 year 37,787 - - -

43,501,215 35,838,843 34,826,252 28,400,867

HZE2012E K20114E128318 - KNEFE LR
TREM S BN P ERBERR
MR T EZ B FUR BHEE R EYERE -

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial
institutions at 31 December 2012 and 2011, nor were there any
individually assessed impairment allowances made for them on these

two dates.
XERREE 20 Trading assets
KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
REES Investment funds 2,662 2,965 2,662 2,965
PTETEAEMERAAREE Positive fair values of derivatives
(B 5F44()) (note 44(b)) 1,846,682 2,076,718 1,838,611 2,072,039
1,849,344 2,079,683 1,841,273 2,075,004
LA ETAE BB THIELNT & Issued by:
% Corporate entities 2,662 2,965 2,662 2,965
R ETHER AT Analysed by place of listing:
LT Unlisted 2,662 2,965 2,662 2,965
—E—-FFHK |01
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Notes to the Financial Statements

21 EEABEABFRUNMAABENSS 21 Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss
KEERKLT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEB R RE Certificates of deposit held 30,950 200,613
BEIES Debt securities 60,550 155,064
91,500 355,677
LA ETEE R BITHE T ¢ Issued by:
TR 1 Sovereigns 12,642 18,835
RITREM S LS Banks and other financial institutions 30,975 212,954
1% Corporate entities 47,883 123,888
91,500 355,677
MU B AT Analysed by place of listing:
REBAIMD R FTH Listed outside Hong Kong - 78,285
JEET Unlisted 91,500 277,392
91,500 355,677

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

EFERRBA R EMRIEREEERE (@) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

impairment allowances

AEH AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT T BETT T IT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
BREBER NI ERE Gross loans and advances to customers 105,091,832 93,718,132 95,094,376 84,136,441
B ZEE (B 5E22(b)) Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— AR FEE — Individually assessed (265,356) (195,660) (225,964) (195,660)
— 255 — Collectively assessed (280,985) (346,898) (275,357) (346,859)
104,545,491 93,175,574 94,593,055 83,593,922
FEET A2 R B Ath BRIE Accrued interest and other accounts 2,931,040 3,191,927 2,505,785 3,073,413
B ZEE (B5E22(b)) Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— @R FF A — Individually assessed (1,608) (2,221) (620) (620)
2,929,432 3,189,706 2,505,165 3,072,793
107,474,923 96,365,280 97,098,220 86,666,715
BEEERNBRES Included in loans and advances to
B customers are:
B5ZEE Trade bills 9,470,863 3,046,382 9,457,310 3,046,382
B 2 (BT 5E22(b)) Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— 4R A A — Collectively assessed (552) (507) (552) (507)
9,470,311 3,045,875 9,456,758 3,045,875

HE01F12A31BIEFE - HMRIEAR®
FE—IEREEE A5 1174,602,0007T 45 E
PEEE  WEERFAWE —BERE
ERESTELRBREEZERELETE
VE=ZE R AEBRISBEHAR
273,194,0007T (B BRABEARZ K AN) © 18
B 1B 5 18 [2] 48 49 78 #558,078,0007T LA M /% I
I #) 7 #30,057,0007T B £ & £20115F 127
B EFERRERTER -

During the year ended 31 December 2011, a held-for-sale asset with
a carrying value of HK$174,602,000 included in other accounts, which
had been acquired through the recovery of an impaired loan, was
disposed of by the Group to an independent party through a share
transfer agreement. Accordingly, the Group received approximately
HKS$273,194,000 net of related transaction costs. A reversal of
impairment loss of approximately HK$58,078,000 and a net gain
of approximately HK$30,057,000 were recognised in the income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2011.

—E-—FEH
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22 BEFERRBRREMIRE (8)

(b) FFERRBRREMBREREEENEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(cont’'d)

(b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts

rEE
The Group
2012 2011
8B REE [EGIERE e
Individually Collectively #%  Individually  Collectively k|
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BT T BT T BETT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
M A At 1 January 197,881 346,898 544,779 363,345 359,960 723,305
W RTIZH Impairment losses charged
MEEE(EE13) on the income statement (note 13) 199,893 28,023 227,916 127,097 92,974 220,071
ez = BB Impairment losses released to
W EEE(FEE13) the income statement (note 13)  (45,768) (90,932)  (136,700) (190,062) (105,100) (295,162)
parkisE e Amounts written off (102,864) (8,877) (111,741) (111,849) (8,657) (120,506)
B LAESEE B hes  Recoveries of loans and advances
NERRIT written off in previous years 22,942 5,873 28,815 21,501 7,721 29,222
BIRERE Unwinding of discount on loan
35 1B 4 (Pff5E4) impairment losses (note 4) (5,120) - (5,120) (12,151) - (12,151)
M12A31H At 31 December 266,964 280,985 547,949 197,881 346,898 544779
A (f322@) © Deducted from (note 22(a)):
BTEERLBT Loans and advances to customers 265,356 280,433 545,789 195,660 346,391 542,051
H At ARIA Other accounts 1,608 - 1,608 2,221 - 2,221
EOES Trade bills - 552 552 - 507 507
266,964 280,985 547,949 197,881 346,898 544,779

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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22 BEFERRBRRHEMIRE (&) 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(cont'd)
(b) FEFERRBIRHEMRDREEEGENEE (H) (b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to

customers and other accounts (cont’d)

1T
The Bank
2012 2011
BRI  GREFEME ERIFHE  &HREFTHE
Individually Collectively #E  Individually  Collectively pak]
assessed assessed Total assessed assessed Total

BT OBMTRT OBMTR  BNTRT  BETR  BETR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

»1 AR At 1 January 196,280 346,859 543,139 358,238 359,901 718,139
W RTIZH Impairment losses charged on

EERE the income statement 173,274 22,426 195,700 127,073 92,974 220,047
R B Impairment losses released to

WEEE the income statement (44,628) (90,723)  (135,351) (189,651) (104,504) (294,155)
e Amounts written off (102,864) (8,877) (111,741) (108,319) (8,658) (116,977)
W B LA EE 2 h8s  Recoveries of loans and advances

MERRBR written off in previous years 22,663 5,672 28,335 21,090 7,146 28,236
BIRERE Unwinding of discount on loan

735 [o] impairment losses (4,292) - (4,292) (12,151) - (12,151)
5 M E bR Exchange and other adjustments (13,849) - (13,849) - - -
W12A318 At 31 December 226,584 275,357 501,941 196,280 346,859 543,139
B 8 (Fif322() ©  Deducted from (note 22(a)):

EFERRBR Loans and advances to customers 225,964 274,805 500,769 195,660 346,352 542,012

H At BRIE Other accounts 620 - 620 620 - 620

EOES: Trade bills - 552 552 - 507 507

226,584 275,357 501,941 196,280 346,859 543,139
—E-_FFF 105
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(cont’'d)

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts

X (c) Loansand advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
definitions used by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA").

Hj °
rEE
The Group
2012 2011
EFER HEEF BEFER HEERP
RBUREHE ERRBR REF 4B ERRBHR
Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers  to customers to customers to customers
BET T BETT BB BB
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THEER Industrial, commercial and financial
—EERE ~ Property development 10,762 - 4,000 -
—MERE ~ Property investment 14,165,266 - 12,905,620 -
— SR E - Financial concerns 1,785,418 - 2,951,325 -
—BREER - Stockbrokers 31,000 - 35,000 -
“PERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 7,984,910 30,630 6,352,248 29,934
—BEx - Manufacturing 3,401,071 46,821 6,153,567 69,018
— B REGRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,604,952 3,963 2,532,195 4368
—IREEE B ~ Recreational activities 189,213 - 269,183 108,966
— BB ~ Information technology 1,336 - 1,456 -
—Hfp - Others 2,208,005 1,879 2,557,801 31
BA Individuals
- BEIEEBEE - Loans for the purchase of flats under
2 [RAZER the Home Ownership Scheme,
LREEHE IR Private Sector Participation Scheme
[HEBEEEE and Tenants Purchase Scheme
HEFER 20,100 - 23,124 -
—-BEHEMEEDE - Loans for the purchase of other
HER residential properties 9,671,193 4,818 10,135,734 11,154
—fEAREX ~ Credit card advances 288,991 868 283,061 497
—HAh - Others 6,132,235 4,281 5,335,304 3,636
EEAFEANER Gross loans and advances for use
&Lk in Hong Kong 48,494,452 93,260 49,539,618 227,604
BHME Trade finance 13,930,092 83,966 10,372,639 108,460
EEBAIMERNER Gross loans and advances for use
R aE outside Hong Kong 42,667,288 298,694 33,805,875 364,537
REER NS AL Gross loans and advances to customers 105,091,832 475,920 93,718,132 700,601

FREIRT (B BRAH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 BEFERRBREHEMIRE (&) 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(cont'd)

RITEINNEFERRBR (H) (c) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

(cont’d)
PN
The Bank
2012 2011

EFEX HEEF %:)Effr)\ MEEF

RBHREHE ERRBR R 4EE BRRER

Gross loans Impaired loans Gross loans  Impaired loans

and advances

and advances and advances and advances

tocustomers  tocustomers  tocustomers  tocustomers
BETT BETT BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEER Industrial, commercial and financial
— YR ~ Property development 10,762 - 4,000 -
—WERE ~ Property investment 12,698,464 - 11,622,656 -
— &R E - Financial concerns 1,785,418 - 2,951,325 -
—RELR - Stockbrokers 31,000 - 35,000 -
—HENRTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 7,984,729 30,630 6,352,027 29,934
— Rl - Manufacturing 3,400,506 46,821 6,152,892 69,018
— B NERRE ~ Transport and transport equipment 2,595,631 3,963 2,519,998 4368
—IREEE B ~ Recreational activities 189,213 - 269,183 108,966
— BB - Information technology 1,336 - 1456 -
—HAt - Others 2,205,212 1,879 2,556,380 31
EA Individuals
-BEIEEBEE ~ Loans for the purchase of flats under
2] [RRAZER the Home Ownership Scheme,
SEEEE R Private Sector Participation Scheme
[MEBEHERE and Tenants Purchase Scheme
HRBTER 20,100 - 23,124 -
—EEAEMEEDE - Loans for the purchase of other
NEZ residential properties 6,697,456 4,818 7,403,237 11,154
—ERRBR - Credit card advances 288,991 868 283,061 497
—EHfth - Others 4,718,446 3,321 4,183,588 3,636
EEEFER E’\]E%}h\ Gross loans and advances for use
NEhaa in Hong Kong 42,627,264 92,300 44,357,927 227,604
Zo5ME Trade finance 13,930,092 83,966 10,372,639 108,460
EE\;‘%LAQI\@FHE’UE%X Gross loans and advances for use
BRAEEE outside Hong Kong 38,537,020 221,336 29,405,875 308,187
REER MBS Gross loans and advances to customers 95,094,376 397,602 84,136,441 644,251
—E-_FFIR |07
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22 BEFERRBIRRHEHMIRE (&) 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(cont’d)
(d REEZEFERRBR (d) Impaired loans and advances to customers
A AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT T BEET T BT
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BEREFPERR Gross impaired loans and advances
B AEER to customers 475,920 700,601 397,602 644,251
BB Impairment allowances
— @RIz - Individually assessed (265,356) (195,660) (225,964) (195,660)
210,564 504,941 171,638 448,591
EER R R EEE Gross impaired loans and advances
HBRFER KRR as a % of total loans and
BEAR R DX advances to customers 0.45% 0.75% 0.42% 0.77%

HEERLBRET2REENEAREDN
FERE - MEEBIBERENER -

KEBFERREEED T EAEE LA
THELERRBAAAFRBRAAI R
B1E & 75 15249,667,0007T K& 78 204,094,000
7T (20114 : 7B 5348580007 K & #&
481,536,0007T) c EEEIFMEEHEEK
REMERBESNEANEBMNR ST A
EJZ °

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such
loans and advances of HK$249,667,000 and HK$204,094,000 (2011:
HK$534,858,000 and HK$481,536,000) of the Group and the Bank
respectively. This collateral mainly comprises mortgage interest over
residential or commercial properties and cash with the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(cont’'d)

(e) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor
vehicles, and equipment leased to customers under finance leases
and hire purchase contracts which have the characteristics of finance
leases. These contracts usually run for an initial period of 5 to 20 years,
with an option of acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The
total minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts and their present values at the year end are as

follows:
KEE
The Group
2012 2011

RIXHEE RIXEE REHE RERE

ARBAE (REE L HERE OBk

Present value Total Present value Total

of the minimum minimum  of the minimum minimum

lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments

BETR BETR BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
1R Within 1 year 230,295 265,899 257,660 310,603
1FER5F After 1 year but within 5 years 324,120 391,879 475172 596,036
5% After 5 years 731,762 842,411 1,367,210 1,599,598
1,286,177 1,500,189 2,100,042 2,506,237
A% Impairment allowances:
— AR - Individually assessed (234) (1,156)
—IRA - Collectively assessed (36) (113)
BMEMRERD BT Net investment in finance leases
BHMIREEE and hire purchase contracts 1,285,907 2,098,773
—e——gEg
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22 BEFERRBIRRHEHMIRE (&) 22 Loans and advances to customers and other accounts
(cont’d)

(e) MEHERSHARENNRERE (B) (e) Net investment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts

(cont’d)
{T
The Bank
2012 2011

REHE REHE RELE REMAE

NEBEE NEaE B E (RE k]

Present value Total Present value Total

of the minimum minimum  of the minimum minimum

lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments

BET T BETR BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1A Within 1 year 229,671 265,061 256,826 309,491
1EESF After 1 year but within 5 years 321,481 388,525 471,916 591,853
5Fi% After 5 years 725,705 835,554 1,359,103 1,590,291
1,276,857 1,489,140 2,087,845 2,491,635
A% Impairment allowances:
— @ RIFEE ~ Individually assessed (234) (1,156)
—IRA Y ~ Collectively assessed (36) (113)
MEMERS BT Net investment in finance leases
BHRREFE and hire purchase contracts 1,276,587 2,086,576

110 HERIT (B BRAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AHHESS 23 Available-for-sale securities
EE 1T
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RBNFHRE Certificates of deposit held 4,671,149 2,176,591 4,671,149 2,176,591
BB BEA Debt securities 7,581,974 14,020,172 6,695,242 13,439,276
B & 4 (B FE O NEE Treasury bills (including
HEZE) Exchange Fund Bills) 5,718,900 6,661,256 5,718,900 6,542,667
RS Equity securities 58,630 46,935 58,630 46,935
18,030,653 22,904,954 17,143,921 22,205,469
LA ETHE R BITHE T ¢ Issued by:
T4 8 Sovereigns 6,533,226 7,402,616 6,156,019 6,912,806
RITREM S ghLE Banks and other financial institutions 10,000,576 12,410,202 9,491,051 12,200,527
1 Corporate entities 1,496,851 3,092,136 1,496,851 3,092,136
18,030,653 22,904,954 17,143,921 22,205,469
R LB AT Analysed by place of listing:
REALAIMEE ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 198,373 197,455 198,373 197,455
JE LT Unlisted 17,832,280 22,707,499 16,945,548 22,008,014
18,030,653 22,904,954 17,143,921 22,205,469
R R B E TS E 5 Fair value of individually impaired
A EEME) debt securities (Note) - 214,378 - 214,878
PEE Note:

20114 - FERERIEA
RIBITHNERESNARBEKNE TR A%&E
EEEATHAEBIIFENEEEEESFNE
EEETRREL EBZR F AR o« Bt - &
E201NFNANALEFE  AEBEEF—EH2FHEY
BE BETHREEMRERTEBRERER

R ARMEIER -
PE KLY /B8 2 RIFRIR

LA R FEBUM A

for the year ended 31 December 2011.

24 Amounts due from subsidiaries

During 2011, in response to the European debt crisis and the substantial
drop in the fair value of debt securities issued by a European corporation, the
Group's management decided to recognise an impairment to the profit or loss
on the carrying value of these debt securities held by the Group. As a result,
an investment revaluation reserve deficit of approximately HK$178 million was
transferred to and recognised as an impairment loss in the income statement

e RARITTREMS R ER4ETE  Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
ERTT MR & BB ER
WEBARIER R L EMERTA

Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Loans and advances to subsidiaries and other accounts

RIT

The Bank
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
395,839 887,744
8,161,827 7,203,597
93,664 110,245
8,651,330 8,201,586
—E-_FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25 Investments in subsidiaries

w7
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE_ET R (R ARR) Unlisted shares, at cost 1,274,990 1,274,990

2012812318 » T HEEAREBHZE
& BENBBEEEAFENTIENBAT
15 o BRIER B - TRIFTERMHERY

The following list contains the particulars of the principal subsidiaries
at 31 December 2012 which materially affect the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

REER - otherwise stated.
BERS BETR
A% BRERA
NCIEL: HMRY EEHE % of shares FEXHK Issued and
Name of company Place of incorporation/operation held Principal activities paid up capital
ERERERAR B0 100% WERE BT
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Property holding HKS2
RERITER (R E)BRAT REARAE([HE]) 100% ]I AR #1,000,000,0007C
([ {EERITRIER (B ]) Banking RMB1,000,000,000
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited People’s Republic of China
("CBI (China)") ("Mainland China")
PlERREBAR DA B0 100% R4 75,000,0007T
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
CKWB-SN Limited REHs/ B8 100% BITHBERENERE E817T
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of structured notes ~ USST
and investments
CKWH-UT2 Limited FEHS/BE 100% FIRERE E81T
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of subordinated notes USS1
BEEAUBARAF Bt 100% HERE 7#£200,000,00075
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
BBEARIT(REBA)ERAR EE 100% REARE A H5,0007T
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Nominee services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited
RERITUEE)BERAF BE 100% EFEIR 7 #3,000,0007T
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited Hong Kong Trustee services HK$3,000,000
BEEBERAR B0 100% RIBRE BT
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Mortgage financing HKS2

112] HERT (B BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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26 YIENFE 26 Property and equipment
(@) Z&EHE (@) The Group
&/ BE
RERZE
BEYE Hibypz Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and 4z
properties premises equipment Total
BT IT BT T BT T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RS GE : Cost or valuation:
R2012F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 187,602 641,814 934,266 1,763,682
40 Additions - - 126,880 126,880
k== Disposals - - (39,290) (39,290)
EHAR Surplus on revaluation 50,746 - - 50,746
ME 5 A% Exchange adjustments - - 2,958 2,958
20125128318 At 31 December 2012 238,348 641,814 1,024,814 1,904,976
L& ER AR The analysis of cost or valuation
HEIFOT : of the above assets is as follows:
B A% Cost - 624,217 1,024,814 1,649,031
HE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20124 -2012 238,348 - - 238,348
238,348 641,814 1,024,814 1,904,976
201181 A1H At 1 January 2011 159,250 641,814 785,450 1,586,514
Bl Additions - - 149,018 149,018
HE Disposals - - (2,824) (2,824)
BEER Surplus on revaluation 28,352 - - 28,352
PE 5 3% Exchange adjustments - - 2,622 2,622
2011F12831H At 31 December 2011 187,602 641,814 934,266 1,763,682
L& ER AR The analysis of cost or valuation
HEIFOT : of the above assets is as follows:
D@ Cost - 624,217 934,266 1,558,483
HE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20114 -2011 187,602 - - 187,602
187,602 641,814 934,266 1,763,682
REHIFE - Accumulated depreciation:
R2012F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 - 257,577 673,983 931,560
KEZHEMFI1(D) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 13,928 87,646 101,574
A 5 i [0 78 Written back on disposals - - (38,481) (38,481)
PE 5 A% Exchange adjustments - - 1,370 1,370
A2012512H831H At 31 December 2012 - 271,505 724,518 996,023
R20114E1 A1H At 1 January 2011 - 243,490 601,278 844,768
REZHFEFTE11(D) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 14,087 73,667 87,754
A & i [ Written back on disposals - - (2,759) (2,759)
VE 5, e B Exchange adjustments - - 1,797 1,797
20118 12A318 At 31 December 2011 - 257,577 673,983 931,560
BREDEE : Net book value:
A2012%12H31H At 31 December 2012 238,348 370,309 300,296 908,953
2011128318 At 31 December 2011 187,602 384,237 260,283 832,122
—T-EFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (cont’d)

(b) ZAT (b) TheBank
&/ BE
HEREE
REM* Hib¥ Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and EE
properties premises equipment Total
BETIT BT BT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RS GE : Cost or valuation:
R2012F1 A1H At 1 January 2012 158,202 641,814 878,282 1,678,298
40 Additions - - 121,802 121,802
k== Disposals - - (38,596) (38,596)
sHAK Surplus on revaluation 48,988 - - 48,988
VE W% Exchange adjustments - - 2,032 2,032
20125128318 At 31 December 2012 207,190 641,814 963,520 1,812,524
L& ER AR The analysis of cost or valuation
HEIFOT : of the above assets is as follows:
D@ Cost - 624,217 963,520 1,587,737
HE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20124 -2012 207,190 - - 207,190
207,190 641,814 963,520 1,812,524
201181 A1H At 1 January 2011 133,897 641,814 736,194 1,511,905
Yl Additions - - 144,395 144,395
HE Disposals - - (2,299) (2,299)
Bih A% Surplus on revaluation 24,305 - - 24,305
PE i 32K Exchange adjustments - - (8) (8)
2011F12831H At 31 December 2011 158,202 641,814 878,282 1,678,298
L& E AR The analysis of cost or valuation
HEIFOT : of the above assets is as follows:
D@ Cost - 624,217 878,282 1,502,499
HE Valuation
— 19854 - 1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20114 - 2011 158,202 - - 158,202
158,202 641,814 878,282 1,678,298
REHIFE - Accumulated depreciation:
R2012F1 818 At 1 January 2012 - 257,577 632,733 890,310
REZEHTE Charge for the year - 13,928 81,414 95,342
A 5 i [0 48 Written back on disposals - - (37,794) (37,794)
VE Exchange adjustments - - 611 611
M2012%12H31H At 31 December 2012 - 271,505 676,964 948,469
201141 A1H At 1 January 2011 - 243,490 568,456 811,946
REEZHFE Charge for the year - 14,087 66,906 80,993
A H & i e Written back on disposals - - (2,285) (2,285)
FE X, % Exchange adjustments - - (344) (344)
20118128318 At 31 December 2011 - 257,577 632,733 890,310
BREDEE : Net book value:
A2012%12H31H At 31 December 2012 207,190 370,309 286,556 864,055
2011128318 At 31 December 2011 158,202 384,237 245,549 787,988

FREIRT (B BRAH
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TEB BRAREAFRMEEEAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

All investment properties of the Group and the Bank were revalued
on 31 December 2012 by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited,
an independent firm of surveyors, on an open market value basis.
The revaluation surpluses of HK$50,746,000 and HK$48,988,000 were
recognised by the Group and the Bank respectively (2011: revaluation
surpluses of HK$28,352,000 and HK$24,305,000 were recognised by
the Group and the Bank respectively), which have been credited to
the income statement. Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited has
among its staff fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors who
have recent experience in the locations and categories of properties
being valued.

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$5,099,000 (2011: HK$5,302,000).

There was no disposal of investment property during the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

The analysis of net book value of investment properties and other
premises is as follows:

KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2017 2012 2011
BET T BT T BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Fizh= Leasehold
HE Held in Hong Kong
—RHHEE - Long-term leases 80,296 79,467 80,296 79,467
—HHIEE - Medium-term leases 492,779 459,052 492,779 459,052
EARE MR Held outside Hong Kong
—HHEE - Medium-term leases 35,582 33,320 4,424 3,920
608,657 571,839 577,499 542,439

AREERATETHMMECRBAFEE
TEM - IMRELEYERAKKRZFTITE
ABR - NREERAITR20129F12A31BHE
fth 4 3 BR T VFE FE &8 165,175,0007T (2011
& ¢ ##55239,0007T) °

Some of the other premises of the Group and the Bank have been
revalued in previous years. The net book value of other premises
of the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2012 would have been
HK$5,175,000 (2011: HKS5,239,000) had they been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation.

—E-—gEyg
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and equipment (cont’d)

renegotiated.

properties are receivable as follows:

Property and equipment leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years, with an
option to renew the leases after that date, at which time all terms are

The Group's and the Bank’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for investment and subletting

KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
1R Within 1 year 3,276 4,583 2,975 3,174
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 1,530 1,230 1,530 935
4,806 5813 4,505 4,109
27 SRITRHMEMEBEBNETERRER 27 Deposits and balances of banks and other financial
institutions
rEE T
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT IT BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
RITHFER N 4ETF Deposits and balances from banks 3,685,575 5,121,298 2,237,959 4,360,231
28 BEFEN 28 Deposits from customers
FEM 1T
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BETIT BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEARAERERTER Demand deposits and current deposits 16,005,718 14,622,800 15,106,951 10,794,526
MEFER Savings deposits 25,269,118 20,749,497 25,198,990 20,703,902
TEHA - BDHEA K2 5E Y Time, call and
P SIRER notice deposits 89,444,825 91,668,099 84,089,888 87,676,919
130,719,661 127,040,396 124,395,829 119,175,347

116] HIERTT (EIR) BRA R
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

REARERE 29 Trading liabilities
KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T B TT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
PETEMBRAREE Negative fair value of derivatives
(MF5E44(b)) (note 44(b)) 907,342 1,331,198 907,079 1,321,019
O TR 30 Certificates of depositissued
rEBRALT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R GAE Non-trading 14,297,569 12,123,896

BRI R AR Y PGBt

31 Income tax in the statement of financial position

B RR R REAS AR B A (@) Current taxation in the statement of financial position
represents:
KEE AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BET T BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
REFBRANESHERH Provision for Hong Kong Profits
(BF3E14@)) Tax for the year (note 14(a)) 237,983 225,194 221,806 203,531
AR TR £ 8 Tax credit to be claimed
MIEER - (3,476) - (3,476)
2~ 4 K 1B 5 Provisional Profits Tax paid (225,387) (24,023) (203,725) -
12,596 197,695 18,081 200,055
BT FE AR Balance of Profits Tax provision
ST EBE L relating to prior years - (96,359) - (96,359)
12,596 101,336 18,081 103,696
AN TE Provision for overseas taxation 43,499 17,890 27,941 8,603
56,095 119,226 46,022 112,299
Hoh: Of which:
A] U [2] 5 I8 Tax recoverable (6,038) (3,038) - -
ARHARIA Current taxation 62,133 122,264 46,022 112,299
56,095 119,226 46,022 112,299
—E-—FFRH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

31 BB IRRRFATREAER (8) 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position (cont’d)
(b) EBEIANELEHEEERESE (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
BRI BRARERELERIE (BE),/ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
BENESERNEERNNEES DT statement of financial position and the movements during the year

are as follows:

3T
The Group

RERHE  EIRER IRHERS

BBRERE HEER S B

Depreciation  Impairment Eff#Z  Revaluation

allowances in allowances  Revaluation adjustments for
excessofrelated ~ forloansand  adjustments available-for-sale HEEE Htt am
depreciation advances  for properties securities Tax losses Others Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
BERBRE : Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2012F1818 At 1 January 2012 25,947 (55,778) 14,902 (62,648) - (23,350) (100,927)

RAUEEN Charged/(credited) to
s,/ (E8) (FE4@)  income statement (note 14(a) (2,563) 18,643 (12,552) - (757) 3,902 6,673
BN A Charged to reserves - - - 72,000 - - 72,000
B 5 R A% Exchange and other adjustments 178 (5,080) 1 (1) - (127) (5,029)
R2012%12R318 At 31 December 2012 23,562 (42,215) 2,351 9,351 (757) (19,575) (27,283)
R011E1A18 At 1 January 2011 13,347 (58,464) 13,153 (45,854) (385) (20173) (98,376)
FalmRA Charged/(credited) to

HisH /(B (H3F14())  income statement (note 14(a)) 12,609 2687 1,750 - 385 (2919) 14512
[EERE R Credited to reserves - - - (16,794) - - (16,794)
B R E AR Exchange and other adjustments 9) (1) (1) - - (258) (269)
R011E12A31H At 31 December 2011 25947 (55,778) 14,902 (62,048) - (23,350) (100,927)

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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31 BB IRRRFATREAER (8) 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position (cont’d)
(b) EBEIANELEHEBEERERS (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (cont’d)
K17
The Bank
FERHE  ERRER HLERS
BRERNE HEER nE EftRE
Depreciation  Impairment E4HZ  Revaluation
allowances in allowances  Revaluation adjustments for
excessofrelated  forloansand  adjustments available-for-sale REER Hit am
depreciation advances  for properties securities Tax losses Others Total
BT BETT BT BETT BETT BT BT
BERERA : Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201261818 At 1 January 2012 28,525 (55,774) 13,484 (62,648) - (16,789) (93,202)
FAUEEN Charged/(credited) to
s/ (E) income statement (2,450) 19,732 (12,552) - (757) (454) 3,519
GBI Charged to reserves - - - 73,215 - - 73,215
EH REMAR Bxchange and other adjustments 182 (4,770) - - - (41) (4,629)
R2012F128318 At 31 December 2012 26,257 (40,812) 932 10,567 (757) (17,284) (21,097)
R011E1A1E At 1 January 2011 17957 (58445) 11,454 (45,854) (389) (13,409) (88,682)
FalmRA Charged/(credited) to
g/ (E) income statement 10,569 2672 2,030 - 385 (3.331) 12,325
BB Credited to reserves - - - (16,794) - - (16,794)
EHRAMAE Exchange and other adjustments (1) m - - - (49) (51)
R011F12A318 At 31 December 2011 28525 (55,774) 13484 (62,648) - (16,789) (93,202)
A% #47
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BETIT BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FER AR R R IERR Y Net deferred tax assets
FIRETIBEE recognised on the statement
of financial position (28,761) (102,423) (21,097) (93,220)
FER RS AR R R IERR Y Net deferred tax liabilities
FEERRIBEE recognised on the statement
of financial position 1,478 1,496 - 18
(27,283) (100,927) (21,097) (93,202)
—E—-ZFFR 119
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31 BB IRRRFATREAER (8) 31 Income tax in the statement of financial position (cont’d)
() FREIANELEFHRBEEE (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
AR AKAEE S BN BB IEHEN The Group and the Bank have not recognised deferred tax assets in
ER ST B EEERE AeEEL respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$2,633,000 (2011: HK$5,309,000)
RTW AR EA R BEEOELERIE and HKSNil (2011: HKSNil) respectively, as it is not probable that
BED P ABEE 6330007 (20114 : B future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
5,309,0007T) N0 (20114F : JBHE0TT) © available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do
RIEIREBAEY - ELEFIEEER A 2 H not expire under current tax legislation.
E o
32 ERITEEHES 32 Debt securities issued
FEH AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BEFR  BETT BETR OBMTR
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ERFGUBBITEBES Non-trading debt securities issued 1,119,747 397,436 1,119,747 388,383
AT RARITHBAREITNIERHEE The amounts of HK$1,119,747,000 and HK$Nil (2011: HK$388,383,000
BEHSED R BB 1,119,747,0007T &7 and HK$9,053,000) represented non-trading debt securities issued by
¥&o7T (20114F © 7 #5388,383,0007T K& /& ¥ the Bank and a subsidiary of the Bank respectively.

9,053,0007T) ©

33 HthafE 33 Other liabilities
AEH rIT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B H A& RS ltems in the course of transmission
%EFEHIE ] to other financial institutions 126,867 - 126,867 -
e K E A e~ BRIE Accruals and other payables 4,511,053 3,990,018 3,859,413 3,634,159
4,637,920 3,990,018 3,986,280 3,634,159
34 FENHMEBARRE 34 Amounts due to subsidiaries
RKIT
The Bank

2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hi&E Other liabilities 32,515 145,485

R1T R H A& BB/ Deposits and balances from banks and
FRk&EF other financial institutions 77,335 83,679
BEER Deposits from customers 116,893 2,043,949
226,743 2,273,113

120] HERIT(BEFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35 EFEEE 35 Loan capital
AEH AT
The Group The Bank
2012 2017 2012 2011
BT T BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBEAE9125% ° Subordinated notes with
EI{EZE7T250,000,0007T  US$250 million 9.125%*
EOFEIEE TS - 1,950,007 - -
FRERMBIETT Subordinated notes with
R Z4F 5 M1.75% - US$250 million
E{E3£7T250,000,0007  1.75%+LIBOR rate**
EORESEEET - 1,941,913 - 1,941,913
FREE6875% Subordinated notes with
E{E3E7C500,000,0007T  US$500 million 6.875% ***
B 18 18 SR g e 4,390,437 4,301,006 4,390,437 4,301,006
FRBEAE3875% Subordinated notes with
ME{E370300,000,0007C  US$300 million 3.875% ****
EORERIEES7: S 2,307,722 - 2,307,722 -
6,698,159 8,192,926 6,698,159 6,242,919

*%

F B K 59125% ™ B %E 7$250,000,000
7T (Z{E 7% #51,944,100,0007T) 12 B Z 4%
R2002F5A23HEATTHE2ENE R A
CKWH-UT2_Limited# 1T » W& B IR FIESE
ZHRER o RTEGH R AT B E T E
=R FTE B S BEERER - 12012
F12A8318 1F 1 R - CKWH-UT2_Limited 2
5[0 4F B 3K 50.125% H) 5K AR (B -

2007F12ANMAB AKX 17 R B E T
2,000,000,000 B EASEHEETE] - BHITFE
EAEMEAELFREARBBERTTRIZEN
B M.75% [ B 3 7T250,000,0007T (&
B & #1,949,500,0007T) HFENF| RIZ(ER
B BEEREMNERIMBMR AT L
W WA R2017F128128 B 51 - 72012
FNRANBIEHRK XIT2EEBERET
250,000,0007CH) R BF ENFI R ES o

2010F6 4248 » RITIRIBU EWPHAR
AT 8 X 7A2010F6 A 8 R B & 5@ 1
% 77 ™ B 3% JT500,000,0007C (5 B 7B #
3,888,900,0007T) * & 1T B & £6.875%H)
BEEE - BEFEBRAEFINEZISBR
Na)l b WG 20205F6 A24B BIHE o

*%

Subordinated notes with a coupon of 9.125% per annum and with face
value of US$250 million (equivalent to HK$1,944.1 million) were issued
on 23 May 2002 by CKWH-UT2 Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Bank, and have been qualified as Tier 2 capital. Full redemption of
these 9.125% per annum perpetual subordinated notes was exercised
by CKWH-UT2 Limited during the year ended 31 December 2012.

On 11 December 2007, the Bank, under a USS$2 billion Medium-Term
Note Programme (“the Programme”), issued subordinated float rate
notes with a coupon of 1.75% per annum above the LIBOR for three-
month US dollar deposits with face value of US$250 million (equivalent
to HK$1,949.5 million). The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and will mature on 12 December 2017. Full
redemption of these US$250 million subordinated float rate notes was
exercised by the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular which was issued
in June 2010, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 24 June 2010
with a face value of US$500 million (equivalent to HK$3,888.9 million).
The notes bear an interest rate at 6.875% per annum, payable semi-
annually. The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and will mature on 24 June 2020.

—B-CEEH
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35 EBER (&) 35

woe D0129F9H27H - RITRBA LR EIE
Bt B R R2012F8 A B M B EE K
%% 17 T B 3= JT300,000,0007C (5 B 7
2,326,100,00070) BIE BRI - BITETF
BHEAB3875%  FHFIREZE2017F9H28
I BRATERLSERTEERERE - 8
HETFEXRAEREFRFRERHES
A3 25%F F K o BB INHER 5
FIBRAR ET - WiEH 202299 A28 A F

Loan capital (cont’d)

***% Under the Programme and the new Offering Circular which was issued
in August 2012, the Bank issued subordinated notes on 27 September
2012 with a face value of US$300 million (equivalent to HK$2,326.1
million). The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.875% per annum,
payable semi-annually until 28 September 2017 and are fixed at an
interest rate of the prevailing 5-year US Treasury bonds yield plus 3.25%
per annum thereafter if the notes are not redeemed early at the option
of the Bank. The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and will mature on 28 September 2022.

H -
36 B BHERRE 36 Capital, reserves and dividend
(@ mB’=X (@) Share capital
FEER B BHITRA Authorised and issued share capital
2012 2011
BT BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EER Authorised:
EREEEB TS BR 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
8,000,000,000/% 8,000,000 8,000,000
ERTRBERA Issued and fully paid:
MIATBR12A318 ¢ At 1 January and at 31 December:
FREEBE T ERR 7,283,341,176 (2011: 7,283,341,176)
7.283,341,176A% (20114 : ordinary shares of HKS$1 each
7,283,341,176/%) 7,283,341 7,283,341

BRERAE AR BB E RS - 71
BRENATHNEHE LRER-FENTAR
R A EBRIEERFHUZTAERAITH
RIHREE

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at the shareholders’ meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Bank's residual assets.



B TSR MY

36

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BR FERKRE (8) 36 Capital, reserves and dividend (cont’d)
RERRA RIS B (b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank
NEB IS EREERIBONRNEN EELR The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
HARNERE S HER VNG EESEEER each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
A o NTHARIREZS 2B Z D N EY) L ELR consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
e EBIZEY T ¢ in the Bank’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
NGy
The Bank
ES RE REAE
EffRE EfREE (HfzH36(d)
RE RGEE EXEE -MEE  Property Investment REREF Total EHEH
Share Share  Capital  General revaluation revaluation Retained  reserves Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  (note 36(d)) equity
BETT ABTR BE%TR AETn BBTR A%TR BETn B¥Tr A%Tx
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
B0NEIAH At 1 January 2012 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 4718  (317,049) 4,799,146 4,872,648 12,155,989
BE0NEHEREET . Changes in equity for 2012:
KEERE Profit for the year - - - - - - 1363282 1,363,282 1,363,282
MEEEMZA Other comprehensive income
ek for the year - - - - - 370,505 - 370,505 370,505
TEERENEEE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 370,505 1,363,282 1,733,787 1,733,787
#2012%128318 At 31 December 2012 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 4718 53,456 6,162,428 6,606,435 13,889,776
B011ETAH At 1 January 2011 7,283,341 282,930 2903 100,000 4718 (231822 5264264 5422993 12,706,334
HEONFHERES Changes in equity for 2011:
REERE Profit for the year - - - - - - 1159491 1759491 1,159491
MEEEMANRES Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - (85,227) - (85227) (85227
TEERENEEE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - (85227) 1159491 1074264 1,074,264
FEEERPHRE Interim dividend declared and
paid in respect of the current year - - - - - - (1624609 (1,624,609 (1,624,609
R011E1A3IA At 31 December 2011 7,283,341 282930 2903 100,000 4718 (317,049) 4799146  4872,648 12,155,989
’RE (c) Dividend

AITREZE2012FN2A3BEFERSLEE
AR B o RITE R B ZE2011F12H318 1
¢§W5ﬁ¢%hu%MmmwwwwE
(5 1H 3 7T208,648,560.667C) T 1 {5 B
BIERABMR AT o

No dividend was declared and paid during the year ended 31
December 2012. An interim dividend of HK$1,624,609,207.59
(equivalent to US$208,648,560.66) was declared and paid to CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited during the year ended 31
December 2011

e
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36 EX #HERRE (B)

(d) fEE
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

HERBH

R =E

B s EAR A FE A X BB CRFHEBID
SBASBIGFTE EE o

Bl
BARREHEII AT DR TR ©

— Rt
— AR BN R AR B RIS 1 — 205 5k
7 A AF SR TR -

(B 5 E5E A
[EREZRFEREMERRERIIE
BRMBERAMELENELZR - I
IRIBMIEE2(0) FTE A B 5T BUR B IR

YWEEMHE

MEEMFEEREN E20MENE
TR - WEAAI DR TR -
RRBEEE R BHED) F79BQ)1%
MES  BLHETBNEEREN -

REEM#E
REERFEHEERNGEEBFANRA
HEEBHFN RS FAABEES
WERBEM T2 ST R R
e

EEBEAE

RBEFBOEPIRE » PERITEE
(hE) FERESFHOMBENPE
B0%ERTRED K TR ENETE B8R
NE BEEAERBKABEERER

7R 7 50% 897K F o

JEE—RIAE

RFBEFPBERITESR > PERTEE
(B BRIDETE — KRR BB
EEENMBEOR  BEREBERER—
REERS LA AR ISR B IR R
RENZERENAREEEHEHR
MARRREE M 1%:T 8 < JAE —RER
AERITRE I VAR R D ©

124] HIERTT (IR BRA R

CHINA CITIC

BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital, reserves and dividend (cont’d)

(d)

Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by
section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve is not available for distribution to
shareholders.

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of retained
earnings, and is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statement of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set out in note 2(i) and is not
available for distribution to shareholders because it does not
constitute realised profits within the meaning of section 79B(2)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a non-
distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has reached
50% of its registered share capital.

Regulatory general reserve

Pursuant to the banking regulations of mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve through
a direct transfer from the current year's profit appropriation, as
determined based on the 1% of the total risk assets at the end
of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential loss
exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.
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36 EX #HERRE (B)

(d)

(e)

37

REMEEREN (&)

(ix) RE@F
BREEEBGRITEKRD) BAEE
EEMHAE  AMIEERERETSH
HEBRELCHERMEBENEE K
AREEANERRBRNREERL
TR LHEBCERE RENE
FEEETRBBEMASIE - 72012
F12A318 - REBMNFBEEELE
BUYBRETARITRENESER
B 11,440,192,0007T (20114F = & #&
1,340,028,0007T) ° 1B A 1T P K 3% B 2B

BHAEER °

fRE R 2R

20126124318 - RBE AR A EHI)
IEBIZE7BIGH R EIERETE - AIEEDIRT
AT AR R A B 48 58 R B 164,665,431,0007T
(20114 © 7 #3451,301,0007T) ° LA £ @]
5 R &9 5 5 78 #54,665,431,000 (20114 :

75 #3,451,301,0007T) B2 AR $% B FE36(0)FT
HARITHIR BB i ) 7 %6,162,428,000 (2011
& B ¥479914600000) 2RI ERE T B
ETBEREREREMWENREYE R it
HERITEE B e -

BERAKETE

AEBERE-HEATHERIEEHE ([
RINGHED) - Bt - AEBEAELAENME
BEAHD10%H SR o LR EIE—1E
SRIES RS REREE LA R E AT
BExRES - REDAELEAER - 1R
EEHEESE2HHIARER - ARENEH
18 B P ) SR EIR D IR By ey (KRR
&R A R HREA—EELNENES
YR RRZRINET I B HIE -

Br T R R IR &5 AR 5 B 8520005124
1R th2E—IBRARESEE - REE
KRR B IR EIEE - ARE D RIE
sRAE S AT R E RSB HI AL D HytEF o

AEERN AEBEFELFTEEDME
R L BB 67356,0007T (20114F 7 &
60,860,0007T) (BIEE11(a)) °

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital, reserves and dividend (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

37

Nature and purpose of components of reserves (cont’d)

(ix)  Retained profits
A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans and
advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2012, HK$1,440,192,000 (2011: HKS1,340,028,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect, which
was distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to
consultation with the HKMA.

Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under
the provision of section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
was HK$4,665,431,000 (2011: HKS$3,451,301,000). The difference
between the aggregate distributable reserves of HK$4,665,431,000
(2011: HK$3,451,301,000) and the Bank's retained profits of
HK$6,162,428,000 (2011: HKS4,799,146,000) as reported in note 36(b)
mainly represents the inclusion of general reserve and the exclusion
of unrealised revaluation gains on investment properties and the
above regulatory reserve of the Bank.

Staff retirement scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund ("MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution,
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme'’s members.

In addition to the Retirement Scheme, the Group also participated in
an approved MPF scheme effective from 1 December 2000 to provide
a choice of schemes to both existing and new employees. Mandatory
benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$67,356,000
(2011: HKS60,860,000) (note 11(a)) to these schemes.

—B-CEEH
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38 HEkBHESEHEEH

Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Cash and cash equivalents

K%M
The Group
2012 2011
BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(i) ZEHERERANRER (i) Components of cash and cash equivalents in
ReEEER the consolidated cash flow statement
e RERIT - PRIETR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hith e B Ea &1 and other financial institutions 5,290,053 12,944,105
FIRTT » PRIBITREMB S EEE Placements with and advances to banks,
T RER(RA3MEARE ) central banks and other financial institutions
with original maturity within 3 months 32,900,528 20,441,222
BlE A kBN FHRE (RR3MEA Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
MEIE): with original maturity within 3 months:
— AN EES - Available-for-sale securities 5,511,866 5,624,596
43,702,447 39,009,923
(i) BEAHBERRRNEIR (ii) Reconciliation with the consolidated statement
of financial position
He RERT - PRIETR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hith e BB &E1T and other financial institutions 5,290,053 12,944,105
FEIRTT » PRIRITREM S BIEE Placements with and advances to banks,
NTER R central banks and other financial institutions 43,501,215 35,838,843
BB % R BB HF RRE Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held:
— AIHHEES - Available-for-sale securities 10,390,049 8,837,847
REMBMR R RREE Amounts shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position 59,181,317 57,620,795
W REHBEE3EANEER Less: Amounts with an original maturity of over 3 months (15,478,870) (18,610,872)
RABRSREXRANRE R Cash and cash equivalents in the
REEAERE consolidated cash flow statement 43,702,447 39,009,923

HE201F2A3HLE RekReEE
HENE BEXIMEEEE KA FER & F
RIFITREMSRBBENRSETRBE
982,111,0007¢ (20114F : &#918,102,0007T) °

126] HERIT(BEFR)BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The balances of cash and cash equivalents included cash balances
with central banks and other financial institutions that are subject
to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
HK$982,111,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$918,102,000).
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39

40

Notes to the Financial Statements

FEERNEE 39 Assets pledged as security
KEBERAELT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
BT BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HEEES Available-for-sale securities 85,403 85,739
PisE - Note:

REEMNAE RN EE AR T XM E R E
BEAATEH -

AHEROBEE

HZE2012F128318 - AEBEEBEFIRITHK
TEMERERT Y T HE R HE R FHEE
& (TazmEl)  ZHEFTAEEESFNL
FHEMER - HZ2012F128318 © %W
FWBIMREDFT A [RIT R EM D BKE
WERRERF] R - - MAKETEREEE
BENFE2HENERIEERNSREE -

REEZ W% - HEEZAAER A ERHR
A NRTEB R EITIRTT - BR - ARERH]
[RAA] &SR ERRRE 75 - BRIFETT R
BERLTY - Bt - BEABEESFLTEN
BITSRR AR ILRERR - (BB RS Al IR
FERTAEERERNENBRENGE -

40

The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the overseas
branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in the
United States.

Assets subject to sale and repurchase transactions

At 31 December 2012, the Group entered into repurchase agreements
(the "Agreement”) with certain banks or financial institutions to
sell available-for-sale securities which subject to the Agreements
to repurchase these securities at the agreed dates and prices. The
consideration received under the Agreements was reported as
‘Deposits and balances of banks and financial institutions’ at 31
December 2012. At 31 December 2012, there were no outstanding
transferred financial assets in which the Group has a continuing
involvement, that were derecognised in their entirety.

According to the Agreements, there was no transfer of the legal
ownership of these securities to the counterparty banks during the
cover period. However, the Group was not allowed to sell or pledge
these securities during the covered period unless both parties mutually
agree with such arrangement. Accordingly, these securities were not
derecognised from the financial statements but regarded as ‘collateral’
for the secured lending from these counterparty banks, whom could
only claim the collateral when an event of default exists.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

40 Assets subject to sale and repurchase transactions

(cont'd)
THEER AN SR EERATEENMEE Carrying amounts of financial assets and associated financial
HWERasE liabilities not qualifying for derecognition
AEBRARLT
The Group and
the Bank
2012
BT
HK$'000
Bit AR EREEES Included in available-for-sale securities 643,176
EETARITRH M S REERN Included in deposits and balances of banks and
TR &ET other financial institutions 604,700
EbNGL Y 41 Material related party transactions

BRAEABRREMBORENZ H LA

N REBHEITTIATER@BHAIRS °
HEBATNRS

M

KFEERN AEBEEATRITES
MIEP G T T ZERS B
FERIBERE  BEXREFRAERF
o 2EBEER - ERBFITRSH
HNERZ 5 o BERGMELNTEBRIZ
RBEETRRSENEBTISHNER
E WHEREHAAEEEMIS AR
BEPMNERER -EFeRA - BL
R G EIRIE B R FIGTETT

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(@) Transactions with group companies

(1) During the year, the Group entered into a number of
transactions with related parties in the normal course of its
banking business including inter alia, lending, the acceptance
and placement of inter-bank deposits, participation in loan
syndicates, correspondent banking transactions and foreign
exchange transactions. The transactions were priced based on
relevant market rates at the time of each transaction, and were
under the same terms as those available to other counterparties
and customers of the Group. In the opinion of the directors,
these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEXREBEMARTS (8) 41 Material related party transactions (cont’d)
HEFRATNKTS (8) (@) Transactions with group companies (cont’d)
NEENXN - B AT SHEBELRRG (1) The amount of related party transactions during the year and
EHBSER T - outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
B 2 (Kizk i)
EEERAST BREER EREREAR AZNELR Bena () Related companies
The Group and the Bank Ultimate controlling party ~ Immediate parent Fellow subsidiaries Associates (note (i) (note (ii))
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BRTn  ERTL  AMTn AT BETn BUTn BETn ARt BETn AT
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FERA Interest income - - - - 16,802 14,392 3,126 6,639 683,935 196,858
HEZH Interest expense (2234) (0758 (5024) (313 (M416) (96955 (485200 (32749 (174,051) (16963
=X N Other operating income - - - 131 - - 29,592 42190 - -
mey Operating expenses - - (3,367) (2757) (5,808) (4,60) (4,720) (10,174) (630) (5)
RAREMETR Trading (loss)/gain on
(E#8)/ s derivatives - - - - (447) DI - - 339280 136539
EE Assets
tHEES Available-for-sale securities - - - - - - - - - 015564
MESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - 397459 27708)
Eth RS Other receivables - - - 17 4736 2,088 757 2900 61,20 75002
& Liabilities
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - 51,511 162,163
EERER Other payables - 237 4116 055 2624 66171 1811 4984 28480 4070
BRER Loan capital - - - - - 878069 46,154 - 2195219 3160298
BRIEEES Debt securities issued - - - - - - 115,504 - - -
gD Lending activities
#2318 At 31 December - - - - 540,068 576,588 205,000 200000 17,783,405 7571854
TEETILE Average for the year - - - - ST6791 435577 181,839 286139 17,198,980 6823122
BEER Acceptance of deposits
RA3A At 31 December 1 228629 425,860 452171 8,279,000 5171920 3,980,800 5477570 679,969 2353346
REETHLHE Average for the year 889,069 942,968 435,120 438088 5285669 5915378 3,987,656 3598012 1,237,462 761824
BERRENER Off-statement of
financial position items
ELEZR  ERR Acceptances, quarantees
ERE and letters of credit
-RlE% - contract amounts
B/ (Ef) receivable/{payable) - - - - - (1069 B000) (3000 - -
HEAE Lease commitments - - - - 2313 B3 10,983 - - -
{LEHEE QOther commitments - - - - 542,606 699,302 291,030 91,000 - -
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments
-£588 - otional amounts - - - - - 499609 - - 15850782 19509444

I bl BB U5 B K B A SRR R

B2 °

No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above

loans to and placements with related parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Material related party transactions (cont’d)

(@) Transactions with group companies (cont’d)

T S5 NG|
The Bank Subsidiaries
2012 2011
BET T PEEETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FLE A Interest income 232,246 114,781
FMEZH Interest expense (73,840) (177,846)
H g A Other operating income 352 2,259
RHRBETEERE Trading loss on derivatives (9,464) (455)
BRE Notes:

(ii)

o B R AT A S R B R
RBIRA T R B IR A R B
AT -

WM AR EERREAREE
By e —REBZREATNR
%o

7N %5 [B 4% A fFarmington Finance

Limited ([Farmington]) 277 37 722010
FREMENNEARE  AEED
FE B FEE B Farmington B im R B TSR
HEHIZL T MO REEERETL56

(Eo

(FEBH35489(87T) MERE

MEBEH MR REBREER
Bt TFrarmingtony B B E K EH E 5
EEENRE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(i) Associates of the Group and the Bank include the associates
of the ultimate controlling party and immediate parent,
respectively.

(i) Related companies refers to shareholders of the immediate
parent, which exercise significant influence on the immediate
parent.

Regarding the Group's capital notes investments issued by
Farmington Finance Limited (“Farmington”) which were fully
impaired in 2010, the Group had entered into two credit
default swaps (“CDS") with a notional value of US$456 million
(equivalent to HK$3,548.9 million) in previous years with the
senior loan provider of Farmington, as partial credit protection
against the non-performance of a term loan to Farmington
provided by this senior loan provider.
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RUAGFE  AEEQEHAEFEE
BERF - PEBEESBRIZRERA
B ([REES]) - 25 7TMHBER
W%k - RIEZHE - PEREREE
EASERERENEHRANEERN
I BERAES THBBET456/ET
(FEEM35489187T) o KB IR K
B /A 10 B AR 19 s MO 16K B E2011
FNRANALEFA AEBEHFH
EREFBEELNEIIBEL (FE
75 #52,5808 7T) © I E20116F12A31H
IFEAREBEEAB U LR EMERS
BHBRBAHORRNSAERREE
% 15 35 7T208,648,560.667C (55 1B 78
1,624,609,207.597T) ° AR EHF FEH &
FRaT LB BRREHE - FillEE BT
eHAEENEZE2011F12A318 1
FEMNREREEFEVE -MHE
ERBEEAEER20NFRRRE
BRHEEEEALIRENERENE
HAHBERIE -

RIREBEAEBNRS
REBRAITEFEEBAEMEBEWNT

DRIARBEEN TAITEZNFIE - Fi5 0

Notes to the Financial Statements

41

(a)

(b)

Material related party transactions (cont’d)

Transactions with group companies (cont’d)

2

The Group had entered into two sub-underwriting agreements
with its immediate parent, CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited ("CIFH") in previous years, where CIFH agreed
to undertake any potential CDS loss up to a total maximum
of US$456 million (equivalent to HKS$3,548.9 million). In
consideration of CIFH's agreements herein for the above two
sub-underwriting agreements, the Group had paid CIFH annual
fees of approximately US$3.3 million (equivalent to HK$25.8
million) for the year ended 31 December 2011. During the
year ended 31 December 2011, the Group settled the two
CDSs with the senior loan provider for an amount totalling
US$208,648,560.66 (equivalent to HKS$1,624,609,207.59) and
CIFH reimbursed the same amount to the Group. Due to
the sub-underwriting arrangements with CIFH, there was
no net impact to the income statement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011. The two sub-underwriting
agreements were terminated upon the settlement of the two
CDSs with the senior loan provider in 2011.

Transactions with key management personnel

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group and the

Bank, including amounts paid to the Bank's directors as disclosed in

T note 12 is as follows:
AEBERAKRT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EAEEET Short-term employee benefits 82,750 66,526
BEE 2R Post-employment benefits 2,819 2,615
85,569 69,141
BeaEe st A TBITARAI(FE11@) - Total remuneration is included in ‘staff costs’ (note 11(a)).
L
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41

(b)

Material related party transactions (cont’d)

Transactions with key management personnel (cont’d)

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members, as well as to companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them. The credit facilities were provided in the

BUALTS (ER) BE(ES ETR L ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as for
BT Z RGN AR © comparable transactions with persons of a similar standing or, where
applicable, with other employees.
AEERAELT
The Group and the Bank

2012 2011
BT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
R1ATHRNES At 1 January 11,981 9,416
M12A31 BRI At 31 December 10,876 11,981
FRTE=AERREE Maximum amount during the year 12,785 12,856

REBLEREIEETIEABRNFANBRE
HEREREEE  tWRERTRERAR
At PO SRR B R A 45 R BRE Rk M8 Bl 5F A
ERL(E2EH -

() THABER
KITIRIBEEE (R RVED) 16185 BT
BABRHEZRIT .

()

No impairment losses were recorded against outstanding balances
with key management personnel during the year, and no individually
assessed impairment allowance was made on balances with key
management personnel and their immediate relatives at the year end.

Loans to officers
Loans to officers of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

T
The Bank
2012 2011
BEET T BT IT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R12A31 BARTTIRER Aggregate amount of relevant loans made
BREERE KRBT by the Bank outstanding at 31 December 21,769 30,581
REFENRITIRHER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans
BHEERE S KGR made by the Bank outstanding during the year 24,344 32,770

R2012FE K201 128318 » NEBRE A
EL

LE TR -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at 31
December 2012 and 2011.
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Financial risk management

This section presents information about the Group’s exposure to risks
and its management and control of risks, in particular the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments as follows:

- Credit risk: The risk of financial loss due to the failure of a
customer or counterparty to fulfil its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: The risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group's
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: The risk of being unable to meet financial
obligations as they fall due. This may be caused by a funding
liquidity problem such as the inability to liquidate assets or
obtain funding to meet obligations, or may be attributable
to a market liquidity problem resulting in market disruptions,
thus hindering the Group's ability to unwind or offset specific
exposures without lowering market prices significantly.

- Operational risk: The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor these risks and limits continually by means of reliable
and up-to-date management and information systems. The Group
continually modifies and enhances its risk management framework
and infrastructure in keeping with the market, product offerings and
international best practice. The Group's internal auditor also performs
regular independent audits to ensure due compliance with internal
policies and regulatory requirements.

In addition to the Group’s exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the Group's
capital management.
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(a)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the failure of a customer
or counterparty to fulfil its contractual obligations. Credit exposure
principally arises in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills
and trading derivatives, as well as in the credit risk from financial
arrangements in the off-statement of financial position such as loan
commitments. The Group has developed standards, policies and
procedures to measure, monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending
business. The policies and procedures are reviewed as required, to
respond quickly to the changing market environment to better reflect
the risk factors for the Group's credit considerations.

Credit risk management and control is centralised in the Risk
Management Group (“RMG”") under the oversight of the Credit
Committee, and is reported to the Credit & Risk Management
Committee ("CRMC") at the board level on a quarterly basis. These
committees provide appropriate oversight on the Group’s risk
management practices by defining the Group's policies and risk
appetite and providing the RMG with the means to implement
measures to mitigate credit risk arising from the Group’s adopted
strategy.

Credit risk imbedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by the Credit Committee, depending on the
case.

The Group mitigates credit risk by taking collateral and entering into
offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers and counterparties,
as the case may be, should such clauses and agreements be legally
established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group’s
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified among geographic, industry and product sectors. Credit
risk concentration of the Group’s respective financial assets is
disclosed in notes 20 to 23.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a)

Credit risk management (cont’d)

Credit risk for treasury transactions is managed in the same way as the
Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied to
the debt issuers with individual credit limits set.

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitored regularly according to our
Group's Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The
policies are implemented together to effectively assess and control
credit limits and tenors made available to the respective financial
institutions under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grades
1-11 for performing loans and Grades 12-14 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies’ Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework
into the Group's reporting structure has enabled more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segments (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, etc.) which enables the ranking of the credit quality
of each customer and the governing of the credit exposure for
individual customers or counterparties.

—B-CEEH
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42 SREIEREIE (F) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(a) EEERERBEE (&) (@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(i) EEEXE (&) (i) Credit quality (cont'd)

BUNEFPFHNERIAESEEH R Customers' risk ratings are reviewed regularly and amendments,
N WIREBEEREEN LHEHAE where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly in
SEIAYTH IS5 R N 202008 M 4 RS times of fluctuating market conditions such as the financial crisis
o AEFNMELZECR S THER in 2008. The Group also maintains a committee to regularly
BN EE (BRMER A3E114%) oversee weaker credits (which have lower risk ratings of 8-11) to
DEERNEBREREEAHNELD - V5% preserve the Group's quality portfolio. The table below outlines
HI| RN B /Y 5T 4y B XE AR PR By SN 38 the Group's rating scale benchmarked against external credit
EEMERTA agencies:
AEBFF AR R ECAIFFAR (B &E(i))
(14— 5) (B Bl E8)
Internal Rating ECAI Rating (note(i)) PR R Al
System (14-grade) (S&P/Moody’s/Fitch) Rating Principles
1 AA-/Aa3/AA- or above/SKIA - ERAETERAR

- BRIR A EE N BT I & TS
— Borrowers are almost risk-free

- Extremely strong ability to meet financial obligations

2 A-/A3/A-ZEA+/AT/A+ - ERAF R/ E LD E R
- WIEE MR N BT ET
— Borrowers with minimal risk of default
- Very strong ability to meet financial obligations

3 BBB/Baa2/BBBZBBB+/Baal/BBB+ - ERABFEBEAEORR
- EREE N EITHBER
— Borrowers with very low risk of default

— Strong ability to meet financial obligations

4 BBB-/Baa3/BBB- - {ERABEMNELRE
- BREREE BT RES

- Borrowers with low risk of default

— Satisfactory ability to meet financial obligations
5 BB+/Bal/BB+ - ERABERFANER
- PERRIT AR —E R IE

- Borrowers with below average risk

- A medium grade which possesses certain speculative
characteristics

6 BB/Ba2/BB - fERAB IR R
- BRENENBITHRER

— Borrowers with average risk

— Satisfactory ability to meet financial obligations

136] HERIT(BEFR)BRAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a)

Credit risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Credit quality (cont'd)

R TRER ECAIZRAR (B EE())
(14— 4% 51) (BE 1Bl B8])
Internal Rating ECAI Rating (note(i)) FEAR R B
System (14-grade) (S&P/Moody’s/Fitch) Rating Principles
7 BB-/Ba3/BB- - BRABAINRES - B FHEKTEHRR
— Borrowers with acceptable but above average risk
8 B+/B1/B+ - BRAFRERLNER
- Borrowers with moderate risk of default
9 B/B2/B - ERABERBENE
— Borrowers with substantial risk of default
10 B-/B3/B- - BRABEHNRERR

- Borrowers with high risk of default

11 FEINEE
Special Mention

C/C/CZECCC+/Caal/CCC+

- fERANB RN R AT R E

— Borrowers with clear difficulties meeting financial

obligations
12 NaiEE D/-/D - ZEREF D BEBEERFHTEBE R (M)
Substandard - Identical to Substandard of Loan Classification Policy
(note (ii))
13 Al&E - - ZEREBEFRDEBRFHAISRER
Doubtful - - Identical to Doubtful of Loan C|a55|ﬂcation Policy
14 &8 - -ERERDBEHREPHNEBRER
Loss - — Identical to Loss of Loan Classification Policy

PiEE Notes:

()  ECAIRSNBIZFARTIAHELS o () ECAIstands for External Credit Assessment Institution.

(i) EXROEHEMBERATE T HBEE (i) The Loan Classification Policy sets out a system for classifying
EITHE - KBRS E RELMES relevant assets in accordance with the Loan Classification
RO - FIHEEERR—HIEE Guideline issued by the HKMA such that consistent criteria and
MEFE D BABTHE B timing for the grading of relevant assets shall be put into effect.

—B-—FER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Exposure of credit risk

% FBR - ke The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
MERFAEHER@mE
Tt RUBHARARTEBESREER
HRERRELEBEENREERE - 5

1= FA 1R period, without considering any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. A summary of the
maximum exposure is as follows:

iy 3 F17
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BB BT T BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Be RERT - FRIBITR
Hiv & BN ET

TESRAT » FRRERIT REA
SRBENTRRBN

RGPEEE
EEABBREARR
AR BENES

BFERRBTR
ﬁ@%ﬁ

%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
BRENREEE

BERAERAMEER
BRHALE

Cash and balances with banks, central
banks and other financial institutions 5,290,053 12,944,105 5,992,525 11,725,857
Placements with and advances

to banks, central banks and other

financial institutions 43,501,215 35,838,843 34,826,252 28,400,867
Trading assets 1,846,682 2,076,718 1,838,611 2,072,039
Securities designated at fair value

through profit or loss 91,500 355,677 91,500 355,677
Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 107,331,436 96,206,144 96,961,940 86,512,917
Available-for-sale securities 17,972,023 22,858,019 17,085,291 22,158,534
Financial guarantees and other

credit-related contingent liabilities 9,469,348 7,200,367 6,384,622 6,003,900
Loan commitments and other

credit-related commitments 50,087,933 41,440,292 49,587,142 41,319,490

235,590,190 218,920,165 212,767,883 198,549,281

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a)

Credit risk management (cont’d)

(iii)

Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group dedicates great effort and resources to mitigating
credit risk, and this takes many forms. In general, risk on the
Group’s ultimate credit exposure is mitigated by recognised
collateral and credit risk enhancement. The Group continuously
seeks to enhance its level of credit risk mitigation, and it was
particularly successful at safeguarding its credit quality during
the financial crisis in 2008.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
includes mortgages, cash collateral, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, accounts receivable (“AR”")
assignments, standby letters of credit and listed debt securities
acceptable to the Group. In some cases, depending on the
customer’s position and the types of credit products, loans may
be granted on a clean basis, backed by corporate or personal
guarantees.

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied by the
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are
subject to regular review to ensure they comply with the
stipulated conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate
credit risk, but it is the Group’s policy to assess the repayment
ability of individual customers or counterparties rather than just
solely relying on security.

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2012 and
2011, excluding impaired exposure, is broken down as follows:

rEE T
The Group The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011

BT BETT OBETR B%TR

HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERRBFBERERE Lower of gross loans and advances
AReREEHFmR and fair value of collateral and
HipERRANAAEE other credit enhancements held
WEBIEE A against financial assets that are:

— 8B BHRE - neither past due nor impaired 60,387,453 56,690,999 51,741,951 48,682,785

—m AR ERE - past due but not impaired 406,573 869,419 311,862 754,255

60,794,026 57,560,418 52,053,813 49,437,040

—E-—FFR
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a)

Credit risk management (cont’d)

(iv)

Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management — Risk-based Pricing Model

As part of the Group's portfolio management practices,
it adopted the Risk-based Pricing Model with the aim of
introducing a minimum pricing threshold on different types of
transactions in order to improve the overall return for the Group
(value creation), after taking into account the risks, and thus
the capital required, to support the loan exposure and other
costs. This tool strikes a balance between price and accepted
risks while taking into consideration the differing customers,
products and transactions. The key components required to
estimate the risks and thus the pricing are Probability of Default
and Loss Given Default. Both measures of risk take into account
the mitigation techniques put in place in the Group in order to
encourage its use.

Definitions:

- Probability of Default ("PD") is the likelihood, expressed
as a percentage, of a default event in a one-year time
horizon, for that customer.

- Loss Given Default (“LGD") is an estimate of the severity of
the loss that the Group is likely to incur in the event that
the customer defaults.

- Exposure at Default ("EAD”") is the exposure to the
counterparty in the event that the default occurs.

Risk concentration

A Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the Group frequently
reviews its loan exposure to monitor the concentration risk
relating to customers, countries, market segments and products.

Capital adequacy

The Bank went through an Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process ("ICAAP") in 2012 to evaluate the risk
position of the Bank and compare it to its capital position,
achieving satisfactory results. Further developments in this area
will continue in 2013.
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(v)  Credit quality of loans and advances
The Group uses every means to manage and monitor its risks,
and has a prudent Loan Classification Policy and Impairment
Assessment Policy in place to govern this aspect.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, all loans and advances to banks
are not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to
customers is analysed as follows:

rEE T
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEERNBRESE Gross loans and advances to customers
—REBHATIRE - neither past due nor impaired 104,132,732 92058662 94,308,305 82,648,485
—BRBERERE - past due but not impaired 483,180 958,869 388,469 843,705
—BRE — impaired 475,920 700,601 397,602 644,251
105,091,832 93,718,132 95,094,376 84,136,441
Hrep Of which
AW Af
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BT BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
REBBSRENEFEZR  Gross loans and advances to
PEES customers that are neither
past due nor impaired
—EFBEFRIE - Pass includes Grades 1to 10 102,902,110 90,557,674 93,104,868 81,147,497
— B EIEA - Special Mention includes
Grade 11 1,230,622 1,500,988 1,203,437 1,500,988

104,132,732 92,058,662 94,308,305 82,648,485

—B-—FER
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42 cEBEREE (&) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(@ FERKRER (&) (@) Credit risk management (cont'd)

v) EBHRERBHHEEEES (&) (v)  Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)
EEEERBERENEFERRBR The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
RERERDATIO T - past due but not impaired is as follows:

i 1T
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETRT BB BETRT AT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
B HER B RER Gross loans and advances to
HPER R BB customers that are past due
but not impaired
— @ HE A AT - Overdue 3 months or less 483,180 958,869 388,469 843,705
R2012F12831H MR A AEFHHE Loans and advances that would have been past due or
G ERESURBENEREB R impaired had the terms not been rescheduled amounted to
1% 775 %687,311,0007T (20114F = B HK$687,311,000 at 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$688,562,000).

688,562,0007T) °

BRITE MR E - OIREE R Further detailed analyses of the impaired loan by industry sector
B R D B2 RM 20 R ARLE or by geographical location are provided in note 22(c) and note
BEZHTMBERMZEOQ - (O) of the unaudited supplementary information respectively.

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(a)

Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v)

Credit quality of loans and advances (cont’d)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
The credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same
way as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk
grading is applied to the debt issuers with individual credit limits
set. In response to the recent debt crisis in European countries,
the Group performed credit and market risk assessments at 31
December 2012 for certain European debt securities and has
significantly reduced the exposures in the region.

The following table presents the credit quality of investments
in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit
assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or its
equivalent), at the end of the reporting period. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Group has reassessed the credit
ratings for these debt securities and they are represented by

SEAG - BB E{T A EITRHR K B the issue, the issuer or sovereigns ratings. Ratings designated
& AT EESEES T EsEED for the issuers or sovereigns are reported if there are no issue
=Rl ratings, certain comparatives for the following credit rating
analysis have been restated accordingly.
KEH
The Group
2012
B U R
MRABENEZ ATHEERZS
Securities designated Available-
at fair value through for-sale W
profit or loss securities Total
BT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - 907,118 907,118
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal - 7,276,346 7,276,346
A3EAT A3 to Al 43,618 7,554,390 7,598,008
A3 Lower than A3 - 1,587,067 1,587,067
43,618 17,324,921 17,368,539
AT Unrated 47,882 647,102 694,984
FEk] Total 91,500 17,972,023 18,063,523
—E-ZFFR
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v)  Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(& (cont'd)
T
The Bank
2012
B U B
AREENES OHUEEES
Securities designated Available-
at fair value through for-sale s
profit or loss securities Total
BT T BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - 907,118 907,118
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal - 7,276,346 7,276,346
A3EAT A3 to Al 43,618 6,667,658 6,711,276
KRAA3 Lower than A3 - 1,587,067 1,587,067
43,618 16,438,189 16,481,807
RETR Unrated 47,882 647,102 694,984
A% Total 91,500 17,085,291 17,176,791
REE
The Group
2011
ETE RiBA
B 25 DA Bl
AREEMNES [AHIEEES
Securities designated Available-
at fair value through for-sale PR
profit or loss securities Total
BT BETIT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Aaa Aaa - 620,175 620,175
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal 18,344 12,208,140 12,226,484
A3EA1 A3 to Al 291,731 7,836,115 8,127,846
ERA3 Lower than A3 - 1,719,958 1,719,958
310,075 22,384,388 22,694,463
KRR Unrated 45,602 473,631 519,233
ek Total 355,677 22,858,019 23,213,696

144] RIERTT (BIR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR MY

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 SREIEREIE (F) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
ECERBEE (8) (@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
) BRRBZHEEEESE (& (v)  Credit quality of loans and advances (cont’d)
1T
The Bank
2011
EE ARE
B DA R
AnEENFESF FHEEES
Securities designated Available-
at fair value through for-sale W@
profit or loss securities Total
BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Aaa Aaa - 620,175 620,175
Aa3ZEAal Aa3 to Aal 18,344 12,208,140 12,226,484
A3EAT A3 to Al 291,731 7,136,630 7,428,361
ERA3 Lower than A3 - 1,719,958 1,719,958
310,075 21,684,903 21,994,978
AT AR Unrated 45,602 473,631 519,233
HE Total 355,677 22,158,534 22,514,211
TERREE (b) Market risk management
Fh 32 B R AT H TS AR 7 S ET Market risk arises from all financial instruments sensitive to market risk,
DR f\7|\[ A BREFISTA T including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and derivative
AR AT A R A £ o instruments, as well as available-for-sale securities (“"AFS”) or structural
IE’J Fﬂ SRR Egﬁ%x%ﬁﬁﬁ /_\&—”ﬁ positions. The Group mainly separates exposures to market risk into
HeEBEMA « X EABRELBEALTS trading and AFS portfolios. Trading portfolios include positions arising
A M EAIRTEST A o At ey from proprietary position-taking and other mark-to-market positions

IZERKEAEERESRENTRE @ B
TFHW@#% JHHEI‘JZﬁHf’E %ﬁﬁtﬁ’\] °

Z:'ELBZ %W ﬁﬁTTﬁﬁ’%a’f%iﬂ/\E’Mﬁf i
LRIRREIR E S o Zliﬁﬁbgﬁﬁ
REETZRBRNFELERERMERS

BEE MR EAES - miﬁﬂﬁEEEE’JETT

= .
xE -

—  BBRRANEMmER - BRI RS

miﬁﬂ CIRBEAKEN—REAE

MMETELFAERE SRR

R EERTE  UWERESREEAS
ﬁéﬁuiﬁﬁgﬁ’ﬂﬁkﬁﬁ ;

- Z2ZEk
R Rk

72 ] 0 4 28 bA 3% 98 3 75 4

- ﬁ&{%ﬂ AA/\@#& |J@%E@$?§T °

designated to the trading book. AFS portfolios include positions that
primarily arise from the Group's investments in securities, which are
neither intended to be held to maturity nor purchased for trading
purposes. The change in valuation for the trading portfolios from
market risks affects the income statement, while that for the AFS
portfolios affects the investment revaluation reserve. The Group
needs to ensure impacts on both the income statement and the
reserves from market risks have proper prudent controls. The
objectives of market risk management are to:

identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through the
measurement of the risks; establish position limits, sensitivity
limits and value at risk ("VaR") limits based on the Group's Tier 1
capital base; and communicate risks to senior management;

- support business growth with reference to a risk-controlled
framework; and
- ensure a proper balance between risk and return.

—E-—gEyg
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b)

RZBRAEE

Trading Portfolios

Market risk management (cont’d)

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite as set out through the
establishment of a limit structure, early warning alerts and policies
for the trading and AFS portfolios. Limits are categorised into the
hierarchy of policy limits, business limits and transaction limits. This
market risk appetite has been approved by the Asset and Liability
Committee ("ALCO") and is endorsed by the Board through the CRMC.
The hierarchy of the limit structure is set up to control the position
size, profit and loss, and sensitivities from the portfolio level to the
individual trader level. All business units with market risks are required
to strictly comply with the policies and the limits. The Treasury is the
primary business unit involved in market risk exposures.

The Market Risk and Liquidity Modelling ("MR&LM") is an independent
risk measurement and control unit overseen by the Head of Market
Risk and Liquidity Modelling, who reports to the Chief Risk Officer.
MR&LM uses a set of quantitative techniques to identify, measure and
control the market risks, which are regularly reported to ALCO and
the Board through the CRMC. These techniques include sensitivity
analyses, VaR and stress tests, which are measured relative to the
Group's capital base.

The following table provides an overview of quantitative measures in
various market risk reports:

AHEERSFES
AFS Portfolios

AEpER Risk type EL
SN Foreign exchange &M {E
I Interest rate

75 G Commodity = fe (B
[i% 4 Equity [B bz E
ERAE Credit spread i
HeER Portfolio type

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

[\ B2 18 K %2

BRI - HEER
LZibE

Risk measures & BB Risk measures

VaR ANiE A Not applicable

VaR and sensitivity BB (E R EKE VaR and sensitivity

VaR N iE A Not applicable
VaR BRE Sensitivity

Not applicable [R\ B (B B XS VaR and sensitivity

A - BRE R
R R

VaR, sensitivity and VaR, sensitivity and

stress test stress test
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(b)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Market risk management (cont’d)

Market risk framework (cont'd)

The Group's approval process for new products is controlled by the
“New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” (“the New Product
Policy”) approved by the CRMC. According to the New Product Policy,
new products are subject to risk clearance by various support units,
including Financial Management group, Operations and Technology
group, Risk Management group, the Legal department and the
Compliance department. After obtaining functional clearance,
the sponsoring Business head shall submit the Product Evaluation
Proposal for the joint approval of Chief Risk Officer and the chief
executive officer ("CEQ")/alternate chief executive officer ("ACEO”).

Methodology and characteristics of the market risk model
The following explains the types of quantitative risk measures the
Group adopts.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions of
each type of risk exposure. For example, the present value of a basis
point movement in interest rates and the present value of a basis
point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are used for
monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur
on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and prices
over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
The model is designed to capture the different risk types including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk,
commodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR models used by the Group are predominantly based on
historical simulations, and Monte Carlo simulations are also used as
a reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios from
historical market rates and prices, taking into account the correlation
of different markets and rates such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of embedded
options of the underlying exposures.

—B-CEEH
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) ‘rﬁ%ﬂ,lﬁ%‘“ﬁ (&) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)
eE () Value at risk (cont'd)
K’%l}iﬁ}‘”)ﬂ HESLERENBRE T T The historical simulation model used by the Group includes the
= following elements:
— BB ERHAEZ2B IEENE - Potential market movements are calculated with reference to
EXSEAGNEBEMENTHBES data from the prior year for the trading portfolios and from the
S EBEENEE - BIEELTET previous 2 years for the AFS portfolios, including the historical
R BRNBERRKE o market rates, prices and associated volatilities.
—  HEARSEE - EBEZA9%H(E - For the trading portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99%
OIKE R LA KB B AT E (ki - confidence level and for a 1-day holding period.
THARESE 2012025 ARASAKRE TIHRAMRESE 2011 FR 3 AREEARE
Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2012 Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2011
12 12
g i “N\ §°
5 WA ]
¥ : WA \
w3 W 3 A’ |/ e Wi = VJ\
0 T T 0 T
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
A1 Month A1} Month
— YAIHHERSFREAS  ERER —  For the AFS portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99% confidence
LA99% Y 1E /0y 7K S J2 LA250K #1575 Ef level and for a 250-day holding period; and
RETEIRE R
AR —2012F W HER 250K ARE TIEAREE - 2011 F A HIHER 250K ARE
Trend in Market Risk — AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2012 Trend in Market Risk — AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2011
1,200 1,200
_5 1,000 A § 1,000 M /\/J\
: \\w\ : r/\/ \\\r—
£ a0 £ 50 V
IR \ R W\/\r/
B o0 "’fw\"\/ B 600 VMW
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b AWANEEN h
200 T T T T T T 200 T
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 " 12
A3 Month A3 Month
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

Value at risk (cont'd)

Through backtesting started in 2009, the Group routinely
validates the accuracy of its VaR model for its trading portfolios
by comparing the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss
results, adjusted for items including fees and commissions,
against the corresponding VaR numbers. Statistically, the Group
expects to see losses in excess of VaR only 1% of the time over
a one-year period. The actual number of excesses over this
period can therefore be used to gauge how well the model is
performing. For the year ended 31 December 2012, there were
no exceptions in the backtesting results (2011: two exceptions),
which corresponds to the green zone specified by the HKMA
and the international Basel principles.

2012F A EEEREAHERWER SR ES
The Group’s Actual Profit and Loss Backtesting Model in 2012
15
OF S ER(E Hist VaR B EBRULES Actual Profit — m R EIE Actual Loss
= 10
2
T .
v
X
T
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IR
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-15
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2011 FAKEEEYHAERWER K EREE
The Group’s Actual Profit and Loss Backtesting Model in 2011
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HZE2012F12A31BIEMFE  K1THAE
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530,0007T (20114F : & #549,0007T) + % H
W AIR R Z BB #1,191,0007T (2011
& ¢ F5%1,306,0007T) © T BB E £2012
FR20NMNFNANAEFEREEIETER
BEWAZERDMHE -
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

Market risk management (cont’d)

Value at risk (cont'd)

While VaR calculated using this approach can serve as a good guide
for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its limitations.
For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may not encompass
all potential events, and the events beyond the 99% confidence
interval are not considered. In order to mitigate such limitations, the
MR&LM provides ALCO with the stress test results reflecting potential
extreme events on the market risk exposures for the trading and AFS
portfolios.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the average daily mark-
to-market revenue from the Bank's trading portfolio and fund
investments was a gain of HK$530,000 (2011: HK$549,000). The
standard deviation of the daily revenue was HK$1,191,000 (2011:
HK$1,306,000). The graphs below show the histograms of the Group's
daily mark-to-market revenue for the year ended 31 December 2012
and 2011 respectively.

BE2012F 12831 B FERSFHEGERAZERSHE
Histogram of Daily Mark-to-Market Revenue for year ended 31 December 2012
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Histogram of Daily Mark-to-Market Revenue for year ended 31 December 2011
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Value at risk (cont'd)
The tables below show the VaR statistics for the trading book.

BRERZBHTHAR - —REREI%
Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - 1 day VaR 99%

2012 2011
=) RiE ¥ BZF12A8318 & & ¥ EHENANA
Maximum  Minimum Mean At31December Maximum Minimum Mean At 31December
BETR BTz BE¥Txn BETT BETT BY%Tr BETR BETT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
NEEL Foreign exchange risk 5,469 998 3,326 2,389 3,195 880 1,798 2,089
FE R Interest rate risk 4,235 965 2,128 1,445 6,055 646 1,588 975
EREERS Total VaR 10,377 3,086 7,021 4711 6,662 2,368 3,691 3,008
HHERSASNTEER
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio
2012 2011
=41 BiE ¥4 BZE128318 5] 5qliy ¥ #HZ12A31H
Maximum  Minimum Mean At31December Maximum Minimum Mean At 31December
BETT BTz B¥Txn BRI BETL BRI BETo BT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS$'000
FIEE R Interest rate risk 145,944 54376 111,915 54,376 215,650 144134 173359 144,905
FENZRR Credit spread risk 976,851 240,515 498,538 329,459 1,076,007 483767 711,094 931,402
BOREREERRE Total 250-day VaR 1,020,047 250,901 515,052 312,408 1,158,725 509523 711476 980,663
TE-FFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Market risk management (cont’d)

Stress testing

Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the VaR
model in order to capture remote but plausible events. The Group
uses the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:

- sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single
risk factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured by
the VaR model, such as breaking the HK dollar and US dollar
currency peg; and

- historical scenarios, which incorporate the historical observation
of market moves during previous stress periods which would
not be captured by the VaR model, such as the impact on
valuation under the crisis scenarios.

Stress testing results are reported to ALCO, which provides an
assessment of the financial impact that such events would have on
the Group's income statement and reserve. The daily losses for the
trading portfolio and the yearly negative reserve impact for the AFS
portfolios experienced in 2012 were below the stress loss alerts and
limits.

Credit spread risk

In addition to being characterised by interest rate risk and extreme
market volatility, the financial crisis that started in the middle of 2007
was also characterised by the significant widening of credit spread,
which heavily affected the valuation of the AFS portfolios. Also, the
extreme market conditions made the availability of market prices for
some of the securities infrequent, and to a certain extent, less reliable,
which further increased the challenge and complexity for the portfolio
valuation of some of the securities in the AFS portfolio.

In order to strengthen the risk control of the AFS portfolios, the
MR&LM has established and developed a framework that enables the
estimation of the fair values of option-adjusted spreads in order to
calculate the fair values of illiquid securities, as well as the calculation
of a 250-day credit spread VaR, credit spread sensitivity risk statistics,
stress testing, and the establishment of a limit structure and early alert
indicators. The objective of the choice of the 250-day credit spread
VaR statistics is to measure the potential adverse impact on the
Group's reserve on an annual basis.
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SREKREE (& 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
RE 9
TERREE (&) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)
SMNE 7 f Currency risk
RNEBMIIEREBEAINEESTH « IMERL The Group’s foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
5~ INEFZEIRE - NEBLEINS TN exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign
BATIREIE o REFERINEES ERIRZEY currency securities, and operations of the Group and its overseas
BRABENABBZESE - BUAEES branches and subsidiaries. The Group's foreign exchange positions
ERAIEEaIEER S NEREEE£%E are subject to exposure limits approved by ALCO. Methods adopted
AR BURKJE tNGreeks CGEARRINERRRE) o & to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
E012F1N2ANBIFEE - KEEINEES limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
BRI E R SBR AR B 425000 positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
IC (20114F : B #4150007T) R HIEHER = options). For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's average
B 7S #59,208,0007T (20114F @ 7 #5978,000 daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
TT) ° profit of HK$425,000 (2011: HK$415,000) with a standard deviation of
HK$1,208,000 (2011: HK$978,000).
REZEHHEAIMNER BT Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:
rEE
The Group
2012 2011
HER Equivalent in EXn ARE  HtE#% Fot X% ARE  HpEE Fk]
BETT HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total usb RMB Others Total
REBE Spot assets 57,070,920 44,646,981 2,471,373 104,189,274 56,453,603 30,482,056 4,089,798 91025457
REAR Spot liabilities (39,101,835) (30,439,250) (12,203,069) (81,744,154)  (39857,172)  (24,163,466) (12,866,936) (76,887,574)
RHEA Forward purchases 69,140,302 41,340,778 17,450,341 127,931,421 71872830 44111233 20091778 136075841
EZHE L Forward sales (85,439,312) (55,288,591) (7,893,574) (148,621,477)  (87,385354) (49892,395) (11,289,714) (148567463)
HEREE Net options position (782,680) 530,762 165431 (86,487) 6,033 - (780) 5253
&/ (B)BFHE  Netlong/(short) position 887,395 790,680 (9,498) 1,668,577 1,089,940 537428 24146 1651514
HEERTE Net structural position - 747,770 48,544 796,314 - 612,510 48527 661,037
ZE-FFR
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42 cEBEREE (&) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(b) TWIEEKRERE (&) (b) Market risk management (cont'd)
SMNER B () Currency risk (cont'd)
#4T
The Bank
2012 2011

HER %2 AR®  HEW faxm % AR  EpE% e
BETT Equivalent in HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total usb RMB Others Total
REEE Spot assets 56,026,674 36,140,811 2,471,357 94,638,842 55,006,564 22,322,680 4,090,701 81,419,945
RERE Spot liabilities (37,201,937) (23,398,057) (12,154,281) (72,754,275)  (38,174074) (16588,295) (12,868,161) (67,630,530)
RHEA Forward purchases 68,113,723 41,340,778 17,449,692 126,904,193 70,617,421 43,469,601 20,090,878 134,177,900
EZHE L Forward sales (85,434,096) (53,778,537)  (7,941,646) (147,154,279)  (86,400,100) (48625393) (11,289,714) (146315207)
MR RE Net options position (782,680) 530,762 165,431 (86,487) 6,033 - (780) 5,253
R/(5)BFE  Netlong/(short) position 721,684 835,757 (9,447) 1,547,994 1,055,844 578,593 2924 1657361
HEERTE Net structural position - - 48,544 48,544 - - 48,527 48,527
HREA R R 2 IR RS E BT EmE X (E The net options position is calculated using the Model User Approach,
e =] which has been approved by the HKMA.
SN B B B R T Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures
() 20128128318 » B FE T (i) At31 December 2012, if the HKD had weakened by 10% against

GG E A S B (B 10930 B 28 E b T other currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables

LIS AEEAEERATY held constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group

(i)

B B4 A s A1 25 B3 AN A& 678,118,000
E&,amz@s 1,0007T (20114 = 9 B
#8078 #556,157,0007T M & #60,151,000
L) FERRIEBETENCREE
MME H RS IE B EN SR AR
HOBE 5 ST FT R S ol BX

and the Bank would have been higher by HK$78,118,000 and
HK$82,631,000 respectively (2011: higher by HK$56,157,000
and HK$60,151
exchange gains on the translation of non-HKD denominated

,000 respectively), mainly as a result of foreign

financial assets compensated by foreign exchange losses on the
translation of non-HKD denominated financial liabilities.

MR M o G0 R 3E T AN H A Conversely, if the HKD had strengthened by 10% against
R FHE 0% R ERFT A & i R ER other currencies (other than the USD) with all other variables
B NEEAREBRANITZEERS held constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group
FI 485 BISH A P 578 118,0007T & 75 #& and the Bank would have been lower by HK$78,118,000 and

82,631,0007T (20114 = 7 BllE 2 78 #E
56,157,000 K& #560,151,0007T) ©

REBRATHARZZEERR
ERENAETHENMBIA (T
B ¥ A R #600,000,0007T K B P9 #
50,000,0007C Ky & MESNEFF &) © EE
RETTEEE I - NREBRAITR
AETHEAKERZH M| BNEE
FERHAEBRAITEBEERNTE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(ii)

HK$82,631,000 respectively (2011: lower by HK$56,157,000 and
HKS$60,151,000 respectively).

The Group or the Bank is exposed to currency risks primarily
arising from financial instruments that are denominated
in USD, excluding structural foreign exchange positions of
RMB600,000,000 and MOP50,000,000. As the USD is pegged
to the HKD, the Group or the Bank considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b)

Market risk management (cont’d)

Interest rate risk

The Group's ALCO oversees all interest rate risks arising from the
interest rate profile of the Group's assets and liabilities. The Group
has interest rate risk exposures from both its banking and trading
books. The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by maturity
gaps, basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks, yield curve
movements, interest rate repricing risks and risks from embedded
options, if any. The Group’s management of the interest rate risk in
the banking book is governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management
Policy for the banking book (“the Policy”). Moreover, the Treasury and
Markets department manages the interest rate risk in the banking
book according to the Policy.

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, mainly interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and
liabilities such as AFS and non-trading liabilities ("NTL"). The Group
has also adopted hedge accounting principles, under which the
fair value changes of the AFS/NTL and the corresponding fair value
changes of the hedging derivative instruments offset each other.

The Group's management of the interest rate risk in the trading book is
guided by the Market Risk Policy. The Group mainly uses the present
value of a basis point movement and VaR to measure its interest rate
risk exposure in the trading book. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group's average daily trading profit and loss from interest
rate positions was a gain of HK$105,000 (2011: HK$131,000), with a
standard deviation of HK$770,000 (2011: HK$883,000).

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting a sensitivity analysis on the interest rate exposure on a
quarterly basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of
movements in interest rates on the Group's earnings are assessed
assuming that the interest rates of two major currencies (HKD
and USD) will rise by 200 basis points on the repricing dates (the
midpoint of the corresponding time bands) of each asset and liability.
Nevertheless, the Group does not expect the interest rates of these
two major currencies to decrease by 200 basis points on the repricing
dates because of the current low level of interest rates. The impacts
on both the on- and off-statement of the financial position items are
included in the assessment.

—B-CEEH
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Interest rate risk (cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (cont'd)

rEE
The Group
2012 2011
BT EY BT T
BERBETT Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD usD HKD UsD
W= _E 2001852 % Impact on earnings over the next 12
RR12EANBRZE months if interest rates rise by
200 basis points 372,472 (148,998) 264,803 (184,196)
HF = _FF200EEZE L Impact on economic value if interest
KEEBENTE rates rise by 200 basis points (61,922) 21,467 66,734 63,713
4T
The Bank
2012 2011
BT EY BT Vi
HERBE TR Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD usb HKD UsD
i) %= _E F200(E EL 20 Impact on earnings over the next 12
RRDAEARBFZE months if interest rates rise by
200 basis points 327,954 (153,859) 206,722 (181,961)
8 F =R | FH2001E 2204 Impact on economic value if interest
KEEENTE rates rise by 200 basis points (43,473) 24,211 97,107 66,631
ZHBRESTERARAREEEN - KIBE This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
ERBBENNEXRAREEL - BT of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.

IRIBIA TREETT -

The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

() e ERphR AR HIBFITE () Thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates;

() AR WA EE) ;

(i BRLBEEFEERER

/T)\J—_HEA/¥ L,\/\Zl')\ P54

(i) There are no other changes to the portfolio;

EAREHE (i) No loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans are on
a floating rate base; and

vy BELEEBETHHENGERNERE (iv) Deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be

l-‘-!g °
o

repriced on the next day.

M= FRAMBRMAEEER S LlﬁU\&Z&_(}EE Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
ENERZEHEZEREDITHER value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the

B -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

results of this sensitivity analysis.
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42

(b)

Market risk management (cont’d)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next
repricing dates (or maturity dates, whichever are earlier) for the

) ZHERD o interest bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period.
bS]
The Group
2012
AR
(BFERY) 33EAML 1550E
3 months BF B5F Fst B
or less Over Over SERE Non-
#%  (including 3months  1yearto Over interest
Total overdue) to 1year 5 years 5 years bearing
BT BETn B¥Trn B%Tx  B%TR  B%Tn
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
EE Assets
BERERIT - BRI[IT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMEREENET banks and other financial institutions 5,290,053 5,071,519 - - - 218,534
81T hREITREM  Placements with and advances to
SRILENGER RS banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 43,501,215 41,195,985 2,305,230 - - -
RHRBEE Trading assets 1,849,344 - - - - 1,849,344
ETARBERARE Securities designated at fair value
RABENE through profit or loss 91,500 30,951 25 12,642 - 47,882
REENREIRL Loans and advances to customers
E At BRIE and other accounts 107,474,923 93,671,427 10,357,024 375,007 9,744 3,061,721
At & S Available-for-sale securities 18,030,653 11,286,824 3,031,811 3,649,388 - 62,630
EHEEE Non-interest bearing assets 943,752 - - - - 943,752
EELE Total assets 177,181,440 151,256,706 15,694,090 4,037,037 9,744 6,183,863
=t Liabilities
BITREM S RIEER Deposits and balances of banks
BER R and other financial institutions 3,685,575 3,036,454 - - - 649,121
EPER Deposits from customers 130,719,661 101,494,654 22,174,786 1,128,103 - 5922118
RERGAE Trading liabilities 907,342 - - - _ 907,342
BRETEAE Certificates of deposit issued 14,297,569 6,795,404 6,278,171 1,223,994 - -
BEITEKES Debt securities issued 1,119,747 - - 1,119,747 - -
BHREAR Loan capital 6,698,159 - - 2307,721 4,390,438 -
I EEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 4,701,531 - - - - 4,701,531
REAR Total liabilities 162,129,584 111,326,512 28,452,957  5779,565 4,390,438 12,180,112
ARGREER Interest rate sensitivity gap 39,930,194 (12,758,867) (1,742,528) (4,380,694)
—E-—FFR
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

FIZEEfE (&) Interest rate risk (cont'd)
rEE
The Group
2011
AR
(RHESH) 3EANML 1ERE
3 months 2F Z5F I E
or less Over Over SEF Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1 year to Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
BT ATt B¥Tr  A%Tr  BETr  A%Tx
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
BE Assets
BLRERIT PREIT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMERIEENET banks and other financial institutions 12,944,105 12,741,831 - - - 202,274
FRIT - hREBITREAM  Placements with and advances to
SRMENTEI R B banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 35,838,843 28,486,324 7,352,519 - - -
RHREEE Trading assets 2,079,683 - - - - 2079683
EEABBIBRE R Securities designated at fair value
RABENES through profit or loss 355,677 96,630 170,584 42,861 - 45,602
XEETNBTN Loans and advances to customers
Hi R and other accounts 96,365,280 78,844,384 13,825,403 290,376 8,074 3,397,043
A HEES Available-for-sale securities 22904954 12,641,161 4917341 5295517 - 50935
FBBE Non-interest bearing assets 937,583 - - - - 937,583
EELE Total assets 171,426,125 132810330 26265847 5,628,754 8074 6,713,120
=0 Liabilities
BITREMSREEDN Deposits and balances of banks
R RiE and other finandial institutions 5121298 4,599,671 155353 - - 36674
ZERH Deposits from customers 127,040,396 107,493,558 12,500,759 2,662,951 - 4,383,128
RHREaE Trading liabilities 1,331,198 - - - - 1,331,198
BETENE Certificates of deposit issued 12,123896 5294947 4854136 1782971 191,842 -
BETEKES Debt securities issued 397,436 388,383 9,053 - - -
EBER Loan capital 8192926 1941913 1,950,007 - 4301006 -
F:EBE Non-interest bearing liabilities 4113,778 - - . _ 4,113,778
BEAE Total liabilities 158320928 119718472 19469308 4445922 4492848 10,194,378
AEGREEB Interest rate sensitivity gap 13001858 6796539 1,182,832  (4484,774)

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 cEBEREE (&) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(b) TWIEEKRERE (&) (b) Market risk management (cont'd)
FIEE 2 (& Interest rate risk (cont'd)
X7
The Bank
2012
AR
(B#FEaE) 3MEANRL 1§H0E
3 months Z1F B5E iR
or less Over Over SELE Non-
#%  (incduding 3months  1yearto Over interest
Total overdue) to 1year 5 years 5 years bearing

BT BRTn ERTr  EMTR  E¥TR  B%Tn
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

EE Assets
BEREIRIT - BREEIT  Cash and balances with banks, central
REMEREBENET banks and other financial institutions 5,992,525 5,774,540 - - - 217,985

HRT RRBTREM  Placements with and advances to
SRMENTES RS banks, central banks and other

financial institutions 34,826,252 34,716,422 109,830 - - -

RHRBEE Trading assets 1,841,273 - - - - 1,841,273
EEABBIBRE AR Securities designated at fair value

AR EEMES through profit or loss 91,500 30,951 25 12,642 - 47,882
REETRETR Loans and advances to customers and

Hib AR5 other accounts 97,098,220 83,991,088 10,118,225 375,007 9,744 2,604,156
A EES Available-for-sale securities 17,143,921 11,137,272 2,808,581 3,135,438 - 62,630
L ENENGERE Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,651,330 7,719,479 35,000 - - 896,851
FtBBE Non-interest bearing assets 2,160,142 - - - - 2,160,142
EESE Total assets 167,805,163 143,369,752 13,071,661 3,523,087 9,744 7,830,919
=0 Liabilities
FITREM S REER Deposits and balances of banks and

BHR &R other financial institutions 2,237,959 1,588,838 - - - 649,121
EPER Deposits from customers 124,395,829 98,720,607 19,414,847 338,257 - 5922118
RHRABEE Trading liabilities 907,079 - - - - 907,079
BEITEIE Certificates of deposit issued 14,297,569 6,795,404 6,278,171 1,223,994 - -
BERES Debt securities 1,119,747 - - 1,119,747 - -
NG b Amounts due to subsidiaries 226,743 - - - - 226,743
BHER Loan capital 6,698,159 - - 2307,721 4,390,438 -
I EBE Non-interest bearing liabilities 4,032,302 - - - - 4,032,302
SRAE Total liabilities 153,915,387 107,104,849 25,693,018 4,989,719 4,390,438 11,737,363
NEHREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 36,264,903 (12,621,357) (1,466,632) (4,380,694)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

FIZEEfE (&) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
K17
The Bank
2011
AR
(BERH) 3EAMNUE 1EH L
3 months kS B5%F E )
or less Over Over SEPAE Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1 year to Over interest
Total overdue) o 1year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT  A%TT  A%Tr A%t A%Tr A%
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
BE Assets
B RERT - ARiET  Cashand balances with banks, central
RS iR &R banks and other financial institutions 11725857 11,524,130 - - - 201727
81T hREITREM  Placements with and advances to
SRBENTEI RS banks, central banks and other
financial institutions 28400867 22249514 6,151,353 - - -
RHMBEE Trading assets 2,075,004 - - - - 2075004
b *#,LL}EEM&H% Securities designated at fair value
ARBEME through profit or loss 355,677 96,630 170,584 42,861 - 45602
REEURETR Loans and advances to customers and
ﬁﬂ@EIE other accounts 86,666,715 69,527,297 13,617,150 290,376 8074 3223818
A e Available-for-sale securities 22205469 12492248 4490877 5171409 - 50,935
NG E Amounts due from subsidiaries 8201586 1938251 5791452 - - 471,883
EABEE Non-interest bearing assets 2,156,198 - - . . 2,156,198
EESE Total assets 161,787,373 117,828070 30221416 5,504,646 8074 8225167
=X Liabilities
RITREM S REER Deposits and balances of banks and
BRERER other financial institutions 4360231 3,838,604 155,353 - - 366,274
BPEX Deposits from customers 119,175,347 102324292 10633113 1834814 - 4383128
RoBRaE Trading liabilities 1321,019 - - - - 1321,019
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 12123896 5294947 4854136 1,782,971 191,842 -
BE%E S Debt securities 388,383 388,383 - - - -
FERTHIB AR A Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,273,113 62054 2045772 - - 165,287
BHER Loan capital 6242919 1941913 - - 4301006 -
EFEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 3,746,476 - - - - 3,746,476
afEeE Total liabilities 149631384 113850193  17,688374 3,617,785 4492848  9982,184
ARGBEZEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 3977877 12533042 1886861  (4484,774)
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42

(c)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses. Such funding liquidity risk is a result
of the maturity mismatch of the assets and liabilities that the Group
manages.

The liquidity risk management framework comprises the following:

- The management of the Group's liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, approved by the ALCO and
endorsed by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group's liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO, delegated by the CRMC, is the governing body
responsible for formulating and implementing policies,
strategies, guidelines and limit structures. It also identifies,
measures and monitors the liquidity profile to ensure current
and future funding requirements are met. The ALCO also
monitors a set of Global Risk Indicators for liquidity risk. Regular
liquidity stress testing, which includes general market-wide,
institution-specific and combined (general market-wide and
institution-specific) stress scenarios is conducted by the Risk
Management Group; and the stress results are reviewed by
ALCO on a regular basis to assess the current risk tolerance level
and the level of the liquidity cushion. A Contingency Funding
Plan, which is also developed by the Central Treasury Unit, is
reviewed and approved by the ALCO on a regular basis.

—B-CEEH
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

- Daily liquidity management is managed by the Central Treasury
to monitor funding requirements, which is supported by other
functional departments including the Financial Management
Group and Risk Management Group which monitor the
liquidity risk and provide regular reports to the management,
committees and local regulatory bodies. Limits for net cash
flow per different time buckets under normal and stress
scenarios have been set to ensure that adequate funding and
liquid assets are available to meet liquidity needs under normal
and stress scenarios. Moreover, limits or triggers or alerts are set
for other liquidity risk indicators such as liquidity ratio and loan
to deposit ratio. The limits, triggers or alerts are monitored by
Financial Management Group or Risk Management Group and
are reported to the ALCO on a regular basis. The Internal Audit
department performs periodic reviews to ensure liquidity risk
management functions are carried out effectively.

Liquidity management is conducted at the Group and the Bank
levels, at individual overseas branches and at subsidiaries. Financial
subsidiaries and overseas branches are responsible for implementing
their own liquidity management policies under the framework
established by the ALCO and local regulatory requirements. Their
liquidity situation is monitored as a whole by the ALCO. Policy and
respective counterparty limits are set for overseas branches and
subsidiaries in respect of the funding support extended to them.
The Group expects all business units to contribute to the success
of managing liquidity under normal and contingency situations
by maintaining a rapport with depositors, customers, interbank
counterparties, related companies and the HKMA.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet the obligations
payable under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset
growth and to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio. To achieve
this, the following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios
regularly, using the net mismatch gap between assets and
liabilities to estimate the prospective net funding requirement;
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42

(c)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

Monitoring the liquidity ratio, loan to deposit ratio and maturity
mismatch ratio against internal and/or regulatory requirements;

Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources,
through monitoring the structure, the stability and the core
level of the deposit portfolio;

Projecting the liquidity ratio regularly for the short to medium
term to permit early detection of liquidity issues and to ensure
the ratio is within statutory requirements and internal triggers;

Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding
structure during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient
funding and an appropriate funding mix;

Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product;

Maintaining high-quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities as a cushion against unexpected
funding needs. Standby facilities are also arranged to provide
unexpected and material outflows;

Maintaining access to the interbank money market to activate
facilities;

Maintaining a funding programme to tap debt funding on a
regular basis;

Maintaining a contingency funding plan, which integrates with
the results of the scenarios and assumptions used in the stress
test, including setting early warning signals (including internal
and market indicators), and describing actions to be taken in
the event of a stress crisis, so as to minimise adverse long-term
implications for business.
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(c)

Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source,
primarily from our core retail and corporate customer deposits. At
the same time, it also participates in wholesale funding through
the issuance of HKD and USD certificates of deposit (“CDs”") so as
to secure a stable source of term funding. At 31 December 2012, a
total of HK$15.6 billion equivalent (2011: HK$9.77 billion) was raised
through several successful CD issuances. Deposit tenor mix and debt
maturities are regularly monitored to ensure there is an appropriate
funding maturity mix.

An appropriate level of liquidity ratio was always maintained to ensure
that the Group could handle sudden drains in market liquidity due
to adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2012, the Group's
average liquidity ratio was 59.35% (2011: 43.57%). The Group holds
a portfolio of high-grade securities with short maturities which
can generate liquidity if necessary, either through the repurchase
arrangements or outright selling in the secondary market.

The Group has always maintained sufficient cash and liquid positions
as well as a pool of high-quality assets as a liquidity cushion that can
be liquidated under the stress scenarios.
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

REBESRREE (F) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

(i) 1RIBEATEBEEHNEERBEEDHT (i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
UTREHRSTIRAGERES HE The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period
AR B NEARS A o at the end of the reporting period date to the contractual

maturity date.
ARG RAEEMRA LR Hm As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity, or
HeE  MEPLFRBTN LTS HIZH deposits from customers may mature without being withdrawn,
ISR TRIE - Bt - 2458 the contractual maturity dates do not represent the expected
TREFEESRKRES TS AL - dates of future cash flows.
K&
The Group
2012
"AALLE  3EAMNL 1E0E
Z3f8R 2E B5E
M EE MBAR  3months 1year 5 years SELLE
#BE  Repayable Within  orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over EIHAH
Total  ondemand Tmonth overTmonth over3months over 1year 5years Undated
BETT  BETn  BETn  BMTn  AMTn  B¥Tn  B¥Tn B¥Tr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEREET R Cash and balances with banks,
ROREMER central banks and other
EENET financial institutions 5,290,053 4,307,942 - - - - - 982,111
FRIT PRBIR Placements with and advances
Hih o pigan to hanks, central banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 43,501,215 - 24982,655 14,600,334 3,880,439 37,787 - -
RIFREE Trading assets 1,849,344 1,846,682 - - - - - 2,662
ETABBBHENR  Securities designated at fair value
BAREEBNER through profit or loss 91,500 - - 30,950 25 12,642 - 47,883
REETRBH Loans and advances to customers
REMERE and other accounts 107,474,923 2,771,949 9,571,741 13,331,666 31,419,078 25,835,889 21,230,817 3,313,783
At EES Available-for-sale securities 18,030,653 - 6,181,650 2,141,448 4,788,108 4,333,189 527,627 58,631
AE A Tax recoverable 6,038 - - - 6,038 - - -
EXARYEE Undated assets 937,714 - - - - - - 937,714
BELE Total assets 177,181,440 8,926,573 40,736,046 30,104,398 40,093,688 30,219,507 21,758,444 5,342,784
& Liabilities
BIREMSREE  Deposits and balances of banks
R RER and other financial institutions 3685575 645200 1,834,988 892,047 313,340 - - -
ZPEH Deposits from customers 130,719,661 41,244,043 37,139,081 30,594,171 20,355,006 1,387,360 - -
RHBBERE Trading liabilities 907,342 907,342 - - - - - -
BREOFHRE Certificates of deposit issued 14,297,569 - 610,312 3,883,239 7,084,547 2,719,471 - -
BETERES Debt securities issued 1,119,747 - - - - 1,119747 - -
pi: i) Current taxation 62,133 - - - 62,133 - - -
EtBE Other liabilities 4,637,920 - - - - - - 4,637,920
EBER Loan capital 6,698,159 - - - - 2307,722 4,390,437 -
EABABEE Undated liabilities 1,478 - - - - - - 1,478
B4 Total liabilities 162,129,584 42,796,585 39,584,381 35369457 27,815026 7,534,300 4390437 4,639,398
EE-8BEE Asset-liability gap (33,870,012) 1,151,665  (5,265,059) 12,278,662 22,685,207 17,368,007
—E-—FFR
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42 SREREE (8) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(0 FEBELRREE (FE) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  RIBEA T RIRHEH B EER BEDIT (&) (i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
58
The Group
2012

MEANE 3@EALE 1850k
23@A 2E B5%F

MiEE 1MBAR  3months 1year 5 years SERLE
%  Repayable Within  orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over #E:IBHAMN
Total  ondemand 1month over 1 month over3months over 1year 5 years Undated

ARTR  BETn  EMTR  RAMTn  BETR  EMTn BBTR AR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

B Of which:
BENGERE Certificates of deposit held
—BAAREARA - included in securities
BRUARBAR designated at fair value
EENER through profit or loss 30,950 - - 30,950 - - - -
—BHATHHEES  -included in available-for-sale
securities 4,671,149 - 564,852 1,293,924 2,133,082 679,291 - -
4,702,099 - 564,852 1,324,874 2,133,082 679,291 - -
EHRS Debt securities
-BAAETARA - included in securities
BRURBAAL designated at fair value
EBENES through profit or loss 60,550 - - - 25 12,642 - 47,883
-BEHATHHEES  -included in available-for-sale
securities 7,581,974 - 716,616 314,172 2,369,662 3,653,897 527,627 -
7,642,524 - 716,616 314172 2,369,687 3,666,539 527,627 47,883
BRIFHE Certificates of deposit issued
-BEAAERZAR - included in non-trading debt
BETEBES securities issued 14,297,569 - 610312 3883239  7,084547 2719471 - -

166| RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
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42 SREREE (8) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(0 RBELEKRER (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont'd)
() WRIEEF THERHEHEER BEDH (1) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
T5HE
The Group
2011
WEAME  3EAME Y
X 2IE B5F
MEEE MEAAR  3months 1 year 5 years SENF
% Repayable Within -~ orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over E:FIRE
Total  ondemand I'month over Tmonth over3months  over 1 year 5 years Undated
AETT  EETr AT AT B%Tr AT AETr B%Tx
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
BEREST Fk Cash and balances with banks,
ROIREMER central banks and other
BENLETE financial institutions 12,944,105 12,026,003 - - - - - 918,102
T BRBTR Placements with and advances
Hip 2 BigiEm to banks, central banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 35,838,843 - 13245092 11877583 10716168 - - -
REABEE Trading assets 2,079,683 2,076,718 - - - - - 2,965
BERBBERNR Securities designated at fair
AL EENES value through profit o loss 355,677 - - 96,630 170,584 42861 - 45,602
REEHRRBH Loans and advances to customers
REMER and other accounts 96365280 2414957 5448740 12146163 24045261 27280975 21205144 3824040
IEHEES Available-for-sale securities 22,904,954 - 4197723 3927346 5705534 8341722 685,694 46935
mEHE Tax recoverable 3038 - - - 3038 - - -
BHRAREE Undated assets 934,545 - - - - - - 934,545
EELE Total assets 171426125 16517678 22891555 28047722 40640585 35665558 21890838 5772189
&% Liabilities
BORE SR LE Deposits and balances of banks
NERRET and other financial institutions 5121298 320441 2992093 1046519 762,045 - - -
LIS Deposits from customers 12704039 35372207 48238341 28066287 10577830 4663139 122502 -
RoREaE Trading liabilties 1331198 1,331,198 - - - - - -
BRIERE Certificates of deposit issued 1212389 - 588256 2005557 6454117 2882193 193773 -
BRTERES Debt securities issued 397436 - - 3,000 394436 - - -
RHEIFE Current taxation 122,264 - - - 122,264 - - -
EtBfE Other liabilities 3990,018 - - - - - - 3990018
EHER Loan capital 8192926 - - - 3891920 - 430,006 -
EXRASNEE Undated liabilities 149 - - - - - - 1496
BREE Total liabilities 158320928 37,0393 51818890 31121363 22202612 7545332 4617281 3991514
BE-8fBEE Asset-liability gap (20506258)  (28927335)  (3,073641) 18437973 28120226 17273557
—E—-FFR |67
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42 SREREE (8) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
() FRBESEBRERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  RIBEA T RIRHEH B EER BEDIT (&) (i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
pie-3: |
The Group
2011
WHANE  3EAME 1E0E
F3fEA EYE 5%
BREER MEAR  3months 1 year 5 years SEN F
%% Repayable Within -~ orlessbut  orlessbut — orless but Over EFHHE
Total  ondemand I'month over T month over3months ~ over 1 year 5 years Undated
AT BT AETR  A%Tr  A¥Tx  B¥Tr  A%Tr BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Her: Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
-BHAEEARA ~included in securities
BRUARBAR designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 200,613 - - 18,344 152,195 30,074 - -
-DHARBHEES  -included inavailable-for-sale
securities 2,176,591 - 300,071 294,805 634,581 947,134 - -
2,377,204 - 300,071 313,149 786,776 977,208 - -
ERES Debt securities
-BAAETEARA - included in securities
BRURBAAL designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 155,064 - - 78,286 18,389 12,787 - 45,602
—DHATMHERS  -included in available-for-sale
securities 14,020,172 - 190,276 856,926 4,892,688 7,394,588 685,694 -
14,175,236 - 190,276 935,212 4911077 7407375 685,694 45,602
BRTFHE Certificates of deposit issued
-BEAAER SRR - included in non-trading debt
BETERES securities issued 12,123,8% - 588256 2005557 6454117 2,882,193 193,773 -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
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42 ERERERE (E) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(0 REELEREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  1RIEER TRIEHEHEER BESHT (&) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
7
The Bank
2012
MAEME  3EAML 1E0E
23EAR 2E B5E
HEEE MEAR  3months 1year Syears  SEME
%  Repayable Within  orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over AN
Total  ondemand Tmonth over1month over3months over 1year 5 years Undated
BETn  B%Tr BT BT B¥Tr  B%Tn BT BETx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BE Assets
BERERT PR Cash and balances with banks,
ROREMEH central banks and other
KENER financial institutions 5,992,525 5906323 - - - - - 86,202
EHT pRETR Placements with and advances
Hip e BigiEm to banks, central banks and
FRREH other financial institutions 34,826,252 - 21,202,437 12,382,382 1,241,433 - - -
RHBBEE Trading assets 1,841,273 1,838,611 - - - - - 2,662
ETABBBSENAR  Securities designated at fair value
WAREENES through profit or loss 91,500 - - 30,950 25 12,642 - 47,883
REEFREH Loans and advances to customers
REMER and other accounts 97,098220 2,771,376 9,348,101 12,851,314 30,040,424 22,994,055 16,241,061 2,851,889
AEHERS Available-for-sale securities 17,143,921 - 6,181,650 2,141,448 4,626,245 3,608,321 527,627 58,630
U B AR IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,651,330 395,839 366,017 5450519 1,484,873 860,418 - 93,664
EHPAEAE Undated assets 2,160,142 - - - - - - 2,160,142
BE4E Total assets 167,805,163 10,912,149 37,098,205 32,856,613 37,393,000 27,475436 16,768,688  5301,072
&% Liabilities
ROREMLBERE  Deposits and balances of banks
NERRET and other financial institutions 2,237,959 645,200 700,712 892,047 - - - -
RPER Deposits from customers 124,395,829 40,275,148 36,770,839 29,406,518 17,595,067 348,257 - -
RHBBERE Trading liabilities 907,079 907,079 - - - - - -
BRGNS Certificates of deposit issued 14,297,569 - 610,312 3,883,239  7,084547 2,719,471 - -
EHES Debt securities issued 1,119,747 - - - - 1,119,747 - -
RHEIFE Current taxation 46,022 - - - 46,022 - - -
LN Other liabilities 3,986,280 - - - - - - 3,986,280
T BARFNE Amounts due to subsidiaries 226,743 153,939 38,616 - 1,673 - - 32,515
EHER Loan capital 6,698,159 - - - - 2307,722 4,390,437 -
BREE Total liabilities 153,915,387 41,981,366 38,120,479 34,181,804 24727309 6495197 4390437 4,018,795
BE-8fBEE Asset-liability gap (31,069,217)  (1,022,274)  (1,325191) 12,665,691 20,980,239 12,378,251
—E-CFFH

Annual Report 2012
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42 SREREE (8) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(0 FEBELRREE (FE) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  RIBEA T RIRHEH B EER BEDIT (&) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)
KT
The Bank
2012

MEANE 3@EALE 1850k
23@A 2E B5%F

MiEE 1MBAR  3months 1year 5 years SERLE
%  Repayable Within  orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over #E:IBHAMN
Total  ondemand 1month over1month over3months over 1year 5 years Undated

ARTR  BETn  EMTR  RAMTn  BETR  EMTn BBTR AR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Her: Of which:
BENGERE Certificates of deposit held
-BHAEEARA - included in securities
BRUARBAR designated at fair value
EENER through profit or loss 30,950 - - 30,950 - - - -
-DHARBHEES  -included in available-for-sale
securities 4,671,149 - 564,852 1,293,924 2,133,082 679,291 - -
4,702,099 - 564,852 1,324,874 2,133,082 679,291 - -
EHRS Debt securities
-BAAETEABA - included in securities
BRUARBAAL designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 60,550 - - - 25 12,642 - 47,883
—DHATMHERES  -included in available-for-sale
securities 6,695,242 - 716,615 314,172 2,207,798 2,929,030 527,627 -
6,755,792 - 716,615 314,172 2,207,823 2,941,672 527,627 47,883
BRIFHE Certificates of deposit issued
-BEAAER SRR - included in non-trading debt
BETERES securities issued 14,297,569 - 610312 3,883,239  7,084547 2,719,471 - -

17o| RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 SREREE (8) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
(0 REELEREE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) RIBEA TRIEHEHEER BESHT (&) (i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)
7
The Bank
2011
WEANE  3EAME 150 E
3@ XS B5E
fIEEE MEAR 3 months 1 year 5 years SELE
5 Repayable Within ~ orlessbut  orlessbut  orless but Over EFFHE
Total  ondemand 1'month over Tmonth over3months  over 1 year 5 years Undated
AT BT BETR  A%Tr  A%Tr  B¥Trn BT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Assets
BERERT BR Cash and balances with banks,
RORAMEE central banks and other
KENER financial institutions 11725857 11,703,085 - - - - - 2772
EHT PRETR Placements with and advances
HhersEn to banks, central banks and
FARBR other financial institutions 28,400,867 - 8952045 10,126,789 9,322,033 - - -
RHBBEE Trading assets 2075004 2,072,039 - - - - - 2965
EEABBERNR Securities designated at fair value
AR EENES through profit or loss 355,677 - - 9,630 170,584 42,861 - 45602
REETRBH Loans and advances to customers
REREE and other accounts 86,006,715 2414421 5,322,258 11,716,960 22322139 24,589,089 16,657,988 3,643,860
AtHEEH Available-for-sale securities 22,205,469 - 4197,723 3927346 5,339,832 8,007,939 685,004 46,935
JEURF B2 AR Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,201,586 887,744 186,130 1,483,949 4,500,420 1,033,098 - 110,245
EAMAHAE Undated assets 2,156,198 - - - - - - 215,198
BEER Total assets 161,787,373 17,077,289 18,658,156 27351674 41655008 33,672,987 17,343,682 6,028,577
af Liabilities
BIREM SRR Deposits and balances of banks
NERR&EE and other financial institutions 4360231 30441 2837918 1,046519 155,353 - - -
BPEH Deposits from customers 119175347 31498428 4742704 27827011 8710184 3712500 - -
REAREE Trading liabilities 1321,019 1321019 - - - - - -
BEAERE Certificates of deposit issued 12,123,896 - 588256 2005557 6454117 2882193 193773 -
ERES Debt securities issued 388,383 - - - 388383 - - -
REITE Current taxation 112,299 - - - 112,299 - - -
HfhafE Other liabilites 3,634,159 - - - - - - 3634159
ERHBARZA Amounts due to subsidiaries 2273113 128428 55,616 3,000 1,949,638 - - 136431
EHER Loan capital 6,242919 - - - 1941913 - 430,006 -
EHHPEE Undated iabilites 18 - - - - . - 8
SEEE Total liabilities 149631384 33268316 50909014 30,882,087 19,711,887 6,594,693 4494779 3,770,608
BE-8fEE Asset-liability gap (16,191,027)  (32250858)  (3530413) 21,943,121 27,078,294 12,848,903
—E-_FFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 SREREE (8) 42 Financial risk management (cont’d)
() FRBESEBRERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  RIBEA T RIRHEH B EER BEDIT (&) (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)
7
The Bank
2011
MEANME  3EAME 3=
3@ EXE:S B5F
BRER MEAR  3months 1 year 5 years SEN F
%% Repayable Within -~ orlessbut  orlessbut — orless but Over EFHHE
Total  ondemand I'month over T month over3months  over 1 year 5 years Undated
BBTT  BETr  BETn AT A%Tn  A%Trn A%Tr B%Tr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Her: Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
-BHAEEARA ~included in securities
BRUARBAR designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 200,613 - - 18,344 152,195 30,074 - -
—DEAAMEHERS  -included in available-for-sale
securities 2,176,591 - 300,071 294,805 634,581 947,134 - -
2,377,204 - 300,071 313,149 786,776 977,208 - -
ERES Debt securities
-BAAETEARA - included in securities
BRURBAAL designated at fair value
EENES through profit or loss 155,064 - - 78,286 18,389 12,787 - 45,602
—BAAMHHERES  -includedin available-for-sale
securities 13,439,276 - 190,276 856,926 4,645,576 7,060,804 685,694 -
13,594,340 - 190,276 935,212 4,663,965 7,073,591 685,694 45,602
BRTFHE Certificates of deposit issued
-BEAAER SRR - included in non-trading debt
BETREEES securities issued 12,123,89% - 588256 2005557 6454117 2882193 193773 -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR MY

42 cEEKREE (&)

(€0 REBELEMBEE (&)
(i) ZEEEFERRRSHT

PATT B9 R % A PR 0 AT BUR AN S B S AR
THERMBENRFAIENA D H

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

(i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial

liabilities

The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash

flows on the Group’s or the Bank's financial liabilities on the

BZ# THEAENRITRESRE -

basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

r5E
The Group
2012
MEENLE  3EANLE 1EUL
23f8A 2E Z5E
BeHEAE BEEE 8RR 3months 1year 5 years SENE
Gross  Repayable Within ~ orlessbut  orlesshut  orlessbut Over
cashflows  ondemand 1month over 1 month over3months  over 1year 5years
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIOIREMSRIEER Deposits and balances of banks
FARER and other financial institutions 3,700,978 645200 1,842,959 898,845 313,974 - -
XPER Deposits from customers 131,258,191 41,244,043 37228530 30,770,014 20,594,446 1,421,158 -
BRIERE Certificates of deposit issued 14,646,521 - 631,224 3965268 7265901 2,784,128 -
BETERES Debt securities issued 1,204,034 - - 11372 52,562 1,140,100 -
EBER Loan capital 8,650,210 - - 45,056 311,514 3,751,735 4,541,905
fTESETIA Derivative financial instruments 1,542,839 - 41,689 187,110 237,815 850,738 225,487
161,002,773 41,889,243 39,744,402 35,877,665 28,776,212 9,947,859 4,767,392
N3]
The Group
2011
WHANE  3EAME 1EMLE
F3MEA RE B5F
Reigns e EE 1EAR 3 months 1 year 5 years SERE
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but Over
cashflows  ondemand Imonth  over 1 month over3months — over T year 5 years
BETL BETL BT BETTL BETT  BETR RETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
ROREMSBBER Deposits and halances of banks
BRRER and other financial institutions 5,137,226 320441 3,003,309 1,048,876 764,600 - -
XPBER Deposits from customers 127576328 35372297 48361811 28239333 10744732 4,735,653 122,502
BEAERE Certificates of deposit issued 12420552 - 611,135 2083410 6,556,874 2,984,001 185,132
BETERES Debt securities issued 402,249 - - 4207 398,042 - -
BRENR Loan capital 10,258,934 - - 17 4361392 1,068,052 4818373
ITESETA Derivative financial instruments 820,357 - 46,43 118,500 360,803 294811 -
156,615,646 35,692,738 52,022,498 31,505,443 23,186,443 9,082,517 5,126,007
—E-_FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

(i) ZEEEFEERS I (&) (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial
liabilities (cont’d)
7
The Bank
2012
MAAME  3EAMLE 1HE0E
23184 E3 kS Z5E
BeHEAE BEEE 8RR 3months 1year 5 years SENE
Gross  Repayable Within ~ orlessbut  orlessbut  orlessbut Over
cashflows  ondemand 1month over 1 month over3months  over 1year 5years
BETn  EBTR BT BETn  BEBTr  EBTRn  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIOIREMSRIEER Deposits and balances of banks
ERRER and other financial institutions 2,246,337 645,200 702,291 898,845 1 - -
ZREH Deposits from customers 124,851,262 40,275,148 36,858,066 29,577,071 17,776,828 364,149 -
BEIERE Certificates of deposit issued 14,646,521 - 631,224 3965268 7265901 2,784,128 -
BETERES Debt securities issued 1,204,034 - - 11372 52562 1,140,100 -
EBER Loan capital 8,650,210 - - 45,056 311,514 3,751,735 4,541,905
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,542,839 - 41,689 187,110 237,815 850,738 225,487
ERMBARZE Amount due to subsidiaries 194,229 153,938 38,616 - 1,675 - -
153335432 41,074,286 38,271,886 34684722 25646296 8,890,850 4,767,392
T
The Bank
2011
AL EAME 1EHE
23EA E3ES 255
RenELs HEEE EEE 3 months 1 year 5 years SEF
Gross Repayable Within or less but or less but or less but Over
cashflows  ondemand Imonth  over I month over 3 months over 1 year 5 years
AETr  B%Tr  ABTr A%t A%Tr A%t B%Trn
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ROREMSRERED Deposits and balances of banks
ERRER and other financial institutions 4,368,763 320,441 2,843,703 1,048,876 155,743 - -
BPER Deposits from customers 119664985 31498428 47543495 27996495 8,851,298 3775269 -
BREAERE Certificates of deposit issued 12420552 - 611,135 2083410 6,556,874 2,984,001 185,132
BETERES Debt securiies issued 393,184 - - 1,201 391,983 - -
EBER Loan capital 8,139,821 - - 1,117 2,242,279 1,068,052 4818373
fTHEERIA Derivative financial instruments 820,357 - 46,43 118,500 360,803 294,811 -
JERMBARITE Amount due to subsidiaries 2314,140 128428 55,654 3129 2126925 4 -
148121802 31947297 51,000230 31262728 20685905 8122,137 5,003,505

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(d)

Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events. It
is present in virtually all the Group's transactions and activities. The
objective of operational risk management (“ORM") is to ensure that
operational risks are consistently and comprehensively identified,
assessed, mitigated, monitored and reported.

The Operational Risk Governance Framework (“ORGF") encompasses
every member within the Group. The ORM relevant matters are
reported to the Chief Risk Officer and are under the oversight of
the Board-delegated CRMC and the Operations Committee (“OC").
The Group's ORM framework, plans and tools are approved by the
OC and CRMC, and implementation is driven by the ORM unit and
senior management. The operational control officer (“OCO") of each
business and functional unit assists the respective head to manage
operational risk and enhance operational quality.

The ORM unit assists management in meeting their responsibility
of understanding and managing operation risk, and ensuring the
development and consistent application of operational risk policies,
processes and procedures throughout the Group. The ORM unit
monitors the Group's overall operational risk exposures and ensures
that all material risks are promptly and appropriately escalated to
senior management. The Audit department examines and evaluates
the adequacy and control effectiveness of the ORGF on an ongoing
basis. Business and support units are responsible for monitoring the
relevant operational risk under their expertise.

The Group manages its operational risk through the Bank's policies,
guidelines and procedures as set out below:

- Group Operational Risk Management encompasses the Group's
ORGF, which depicts the governance framework, roles and
responsibilities, tools and methodologies for the management
of operational risk.

—B-CEEH
Annual Report 2012
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42

(d)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Operational risk management (cont’d)

- Incident Reporting Framework stipulates the risk classification,
reporting requirements, loss posting and reconciliation, and
roles and responsibilities of reporting operational risk incidents.

- New Product Approval Process stipulates the new product
definition, approval requirements, processes, and roles and
responsibilities of the approval and reviewing parties; the
necessary risk assessments before the launch of the new
product; and the compulsory post-launch review requirements.

- Other policies, guidelines and procedures cover outsourcing
policy, disaster recovery plans, business continuity plans, bank-
run drills, human resources-related policies, IT data security
and ensures End User Computing policies are in place under
respective business and support units’ expertise.

The Group measures and monitors operational risk through the ORM
tools and systems as set out below:

- Operational Risk Self-Assessment (“ORSA") has been rolled out
across the business and support units in phases under the
guidance of the ORM unit. ORSA leaders are nominated by the
management of each business and support unit to conduct
self assessments and identify Key Risk Factors in their daily
business and support functions. Each Risk Factor is assessed
and quantified for financial impact, in terms of the estimated
loss impact of each occurrence ("Dollar Impact”) and estimated
number of occurrences in a year ("Annual Frequency”). The
ORSA tool is automated, based on Dollar Impact and Annual
Frequency, to calculate the dollar value of total risk exposure
in a year. In addition to the financial impact assessment, non-
financial impacts of risk factors, including customer impacts,
reputation impact and the likelihood of being a significant
incident are also assessed. A Risk Grade from Very Low’ to ‘Very
High' will be assigned to the risk factor considering the Annual
Frequency and both financial and non-financial impacts. Based
on the assessment results, the relevant unit will decide whether
to adopt ongoing monitoring or establish mitigation plans
to lower the risk. Once a mitigation plan is established, the
relevant unit will track the progress and regularly update the
ORM unit for monitoring and management reporting purposes.
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42 Financial risk management (cont’d)

(d)

Operational risk management (cont’d)

The Operational Risk Loss Database has been established
through the implementation of the Incident Reporting System
("IRS"), which collects all operational risk incidents with or
without financial impact. Through the IRS, the ORM unit
ensures all incidents are properly investigated, with corrective
and preventive actions promptly executed according to the
planned timeline. It serves as a centralised database to produce
regular reports for senior management, OC and CRMC review
on the significant impact and monitoring of the operational risk
trend. An escalation protocol is in place to ensure that incidents
with significant impact are reported to the respective internal
units as well as promptly reported to the regulatory authorities.
At the request of regulatory authorities, the incident data in
the IRS is also submitted for their periodic review. In the third
quarter of 2012, IRS has undergone significant enhancements to
facilitate more comprehensive record of incident content and
to reinforce the accountability of business and support units to
their own incident and incident reporting quality.

Key Risk Indicators ("KRI") comprises a statistical tool taking
into consideration various risk factors and serves to provide
predictive and early warning signals for management’s
monitoring and action. Through regular monitoring of this
data, areas of potential operational control weaknesses can
be identified at an early stage and promptly addressed. The
KRI' methodology has undergone further enhancement in the
past year to achieve the objective of Bank-wide coverage and
of adopting a more scientific and magnitude-driven approach.
The new KRI model covers 17 sub-KRIs under 6 major risk
classes and provides a KRI score for each indicator, business
and support unit, as well as at the Bank-wide level to provide
a holistic view of the Bank’s overall operational risk profile and
trends.

—B-CEEH
Annual Report 2012
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(d)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Operational risk management (cont’d)

The Operational Risk Update report provides management with
an overview of the key operational risk issues and analysis, and is
submitted to the OC on a monthly basis and to the CRMC on a
quarterly basis as part of the Group-wide Risk Status Update report.
It captures the implementation status of the ORM initiatives, and
depicts analysis on the trend of operational incidents and operational
losses, highlights incidents with a material impact on the Group and
lists incident details during the month. Starting from the third quarter
of 2012, key reports are also provided to China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited, including the monthly reports to the OC, the quarterly report
to the CRMC and the half-yearly summary.

The ORM unit continued to cultivate a strong ORM culture in 2012.
Prior to the roll-out of enhanced IRS, a web-based learning programme
on IRS was launched for all existing IRS users and is required for all
upcoming IRS users to ensure their knowledge and compliance with
IRS requirements. It was followed by an annual refresher of ORGF for
all staff in the fourth quarter of 2012. The continual objectives are
to raise risk awareness, and enrich employees’ understanding of the
ORGF, their roles and responsibilities and accountability. This is further
reinforced by strong, visible management support which encourages
staff to embrace and promote operational excellence.

With the endorsement of the long-term ORM road map and tools
obtained from the OC, Management Committee and CRMC, the
Group will continuously fine-tune and enhance its operational risk
management framework in line with industry developments, and will
work closely with its strategic shareholder and partner. In the coming
year, the Group will focus on (a) promoting the ORSA Group-wide in
phases; (b) strengthening the ORM oversight of overseas branches
and subsidiaries; and (c) continually enhancing the IRS and the
relevant ORM reports.

The Group's long-term goal is to cultivate a proactive, responsible
and accountable culture on ORM, encompassing identification,
assessment, mitigation and reporting, and thus achieving operational
excellence through continual robust operational risk management.
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(e)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are as follows:

- to comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business; and

- tosafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated
by its local banking supervisor. In implementing current capital
requirements, the HKMA requires the Group to maintain a prescribed
ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets. The Group adopts
the standardised approach of calculating market risk in its trading
portfolios and risk weightings for credit risk, and the basic indicator
approach for operational risk. Banking operations are categorised
as either trading or banking book, and risk-weighted assets are
determined according to specified requirements that seek to reflect
the varying levels of risk attached to assets and the off-statement of

financial position exposures.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing, and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio, and there have
been no material changes in the Group's policy on the management
of capital during the year.

—B-CEEH
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(e)

(f)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Capital management (cont’d)

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2012 are computed
on the consolidated basis of the Group and certain subsidiaries
as specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, and are well above the minimum
required ratio set by the HKMA.

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously seeks
to develop its people, and enhance its systems and processes to
create awareness of new requirements and implement changes
as necessary. Regular reviews are conducted with respect to
the Bank's policies and procedures, reflecting relevant legal and
regulatory requirements. Policies and procedures are promulgated
through internal communications and are often accompanied
by relevant training. There is a strong process in place to ensure
legal and regulatory risks are identified, monitored and mitigated.
Any significant failings are reported by the Legal and Compliance
functions to the Bank’s Audit Committee, the CRMC and senior
management.

The Legal Department (“LD") and Compliance Department (“CD") have
been key partners in the business, providing legal and compliance
advice and support to all parts of the Bank. In 2012, the LD and CD
were actively involved in new product launches and new business
initiatives, strategically important transactions and commercial
agreements, outsourcing arrangements as well as day-to-day matters
arising from the Bank's business which is diverse both geographically
and in scope. The LD and CD have also been heavily involved in
monitoring and ensuring compliance with fast changing regulatory
requirements in the area of investor and customer data protection. In
2013, the LD and CD will continue to provide the advice and support
that the Bank will require as it strives to meet the challenges these
and other changes in the legal and regulatory fields will present.
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(9)

Financial risk management (cont’d)

Strategic and reputational risk management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputational risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity about its
business practices, conduct or financial condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee
the Group's strategic and reputational risks. High priority is placed
by senior management to ensure that the Group's business and
operational strategies are appropriately defined and executed
professionally and promptly. Such strategies are reviewed regularly
to enable the Group to respond efficiently to changes in its operating
and regulatory environment. Business priorities are set on a Bank-
wide basis as well as for individual business and support units which
are clearly aligned to support the Group's strategies, and measurable
targets are assigned to ensure executional excellence. Great care is
also taken to protect the Group's reputation and to maximise its brand
equity. This involves ongoing efforts to monitor and ensure high
standards of customer satisfaction, operational efficiency, legal and
regulatory compliance, public communication, issues management,
etc.

—B-CEEH
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(a)

Fair value information

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as
at a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial
instruments and relevant market information. The Group measures
fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly, where all significant inputs are observable from
market data. This category includes financial instruments with quoted
prices in active markets for similar instruments; or quoted prices in
markets that are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs
where the valuation techniques include one or more significant inputs
that are unobservable. This category includes financial instruments
that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect the differences between the instruments.
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43 Fair value information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments

recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy into which the

fair value treatment is categorised:

2012
58 b:XG}
The Group The Bank
14 #2 E38 a5 A E2 #3R fag
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BRI BETn  B¥Tn  B%Tn  B¥Tn  B%Tn  B¥Tn  B%Txn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EE Assets
RHRBEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds - - 2,662 2,662 - - 2,662 2,662
~TETEMEANREE - Positive fair values of derivatives 16,622 1,830,060 - 1,846,682 16,622 1,821,989 - 1,838,611
16,622 1,830,060 2,662 1,849,344 16622 1,821,989 2,662 1,841,273
ETARBERURM Securities designated at fair
DR EENES value through profit orloss
-RENESE - Certificates of deposit held - 30,950 - 30,950 - 30,950 - 30,950
-ERER - Debt securities 12,667 - 47,883 60,550 12,667 - 47,883 60,550
12,667 30,950 47,883 91,500 12,667 30,950 47,883 91,500
At HEES Available-for-sale securities
—HENERE - Certificates of deposit held 38524 4,632,625 - 4,671,149 38524 4,632,625 - 4,671,149
—EEA(BHEINE = Treasury bills (including
E2ER) Exchange Fund Bills) 5,718,900 - - 5718900 5,718,900 - - 5,718,900
—ERES - Debt securities 2,971,057 4,606,917 4,000 7,581,974  2,084325 4,606,917 4,000 6,695,242
~ERES - Equity securities 35,010 - 23,620 58,630 35,010 - 23,620 58,630
8,763,491 9,239,542 27,620 18,030,653 7,876,759 9,239,542 27,620 17,143,921
8,792,780 11,100,552 78,165 19,971,497 7,906,048 11,092,481 78,165 19,076,694
=4 Liabilities
RHRBAR Trading liabilities
—(TETAMERABE - Negative fair value of derivatives 440 906,902 - 907,342 440 906,639 - 907,079
—E-_FF3R |83

Annual Report 2012
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43 DREEER (&) 43 Fair value information (cont’d)
(@) UAAEEVERNSETIA (&) (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
WIE
T5E M
The Group The Bank
F18 B 3 et 21 F1 3 &5
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETT  AETT ABTR  A%Tr  A%TT A%t B¥Tr AT
HKS000  HKS000  HKY000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000
BE Assets
RERBAE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds - - 2,965 2,965 - - 2965 2,965
—TAETAMERREE - Positive fair values of derivatives 15215 2,061,503 - 2076718 15215 2,056,824 - 2072039
15215 2,061,503 2965 2,079,683 15215 2,056,824 2965 2075004
BEABBBEARE Securities designated at fair
DRBENES value through profit or loss
—~HENERE - Certificates of deposit held 30,075 170538 - 200613 30,075 170538 - 200613
—BE%ES - Debt securities 109462 - 45602 155,064 109,462 - 45,602 155,064
139,537 170538 45602 355677 139,537 170,538 45,602 355,677
it EES Available-for-sale securities
—HENETE - Certificates of deposit held 34373 2142218 - 2176591 34373 2142218 - 2176591
—EEA(BHEANE - Treasury bills (including
E4E5) Exchange Fund Bills) 6,661,256 - - 6661256 6542667 - - 6,542,667
—-BEES - Debt securities 6041329 7974843 4000 14020172 5460433 7974843 4000 13439276
—ERES - Equity securities 23757 - 23178 46935 23757 - 23178 46,935
12,760,715 10,117,061 178 22904954 12,061,230 10,117,061 7,178 22,205,469
12915467 12,349,102 75745 25340314 12215982 12344423 75745 24636,150
8% Liabilities
LHE%EE Trading liabilities
—(TETAMERABE - Negative fair value of derivatives 580 1330618 - 1331198 580 1320439 - 1321019

R2012F R2011F A - AR EEERE IR
MR 27 MR A EANS T EAERE -

184] HIEIRTT (EIR) BRA R

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

In 2012 and 2011, there were no significant transfers of financial

instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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(a)

Fair value information (cont’d)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

Determination of fair value

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded
in active markets are based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Group determines
fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include net present value, and discounted cash flow models and
other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation
techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit
spreads and other parameters used in estimating discount rates, bond
price and foreign currency exchange rates.

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine fair value of financial instruments are from interest
rates and currency swaps, which are observable market data with
high reliability and do not require the significant involvement of
management’s judgement and estimation. Observable prices and
model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt and
equity securities, exchange-traded derivatives and simple over-the-
counter ("OTC") derivatives like interest rate swaps. However, the
availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending
on the products and markets, and is prone to changes based on
specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with valuation
techniques where one or more significant market inputs involved are
not observable. Examples of these financial instruments are structured
investments such as the Farmington investments, OTC structured
derivatives and certain securities for which there is no active market.
For valuation models involving significant unobservable inputs, a high
degree of management judgement or estimation is required to select
the appropriate valuation model, determine the expected future
cash flows on the financial instruments being valued, determine the
probability of counterparty default and prepayments, and select the
appropriate discount rates.

—B-CEEH
Annual Report 2012
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43 NRABEEH (&)

43 Fair value information (cont’d)

(a HUAAREEIRNSEMTIE () (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
() EHAEZMIAEENBAZENE (i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable
AT AGE inputs
TRETEIBAN AR BEERREE The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to
MARFENEHFENR the closing balance for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy:
2012
FEERAST
The Group and the Bank
EERER
BEIARM
DREBENES
Securities
designated atfair THHEESRES
RGBEEE  valuethrough Available-for-sale bk
8E Assets Trading assets profit or loss securities Total
REES EHRS EHES BiE%
Investment funds  Debt securities  Debt securities  Equity securities
BETT BETRT BETT BETT  BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201251818 At 1January 2012 2,965 45,602 4,000 23,178 75,745
EA Purchases 27 - - 438 465
B Sales (256) - - - (256)
RBRRERN Changes in fair value recognised
N EEEY in the income statement
-EENEERER - Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - - - 4 4
-BERSHREFWEABE - Gains less losses from trading securities (74) - - - (74)
—REABBERN - Net gain from financial instruments
RMAREEY designated at fair value through
EBIATNE profit or loss - 2,281 - - 2,281
®20125F128318 At 31 December 2012 2,662 47,883 4,000 23,620 78,165
REERNEER Total gains or losses for the year
BEREAR included in the income statement
BRENRERL for assets held at the end of the
BReE. reporting period recorded in:
-BENMENEREE - Gains less losses from dealing
in foreign currencies - - - 4 4
~BERGAREEUEIBE - Gainsless losses from trading securities (74) - - - (74)
—EEBBBBEEN - Net gain from financial instruments
REAAEEZ designated at fair value through
tRIEFNE profit orloss - 2,281 - - 2,281

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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AREEER () 43 Fair value information (cont’d)
UAAREEYIENSHETIA (&) (@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
() EHAEZMmHE 7555 EHBMAZE N2 (i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable
AT AGE (& inputs (cont'd)
2011
FEERAT
The Group and the Bank
RERER
BRENRG
D EENES
Securities
designated at fair HEESHEE
RHBHEE value through Available-for-sale b
BE Assets Trading assets profit or loss securities Total
REES EBES EHES ERES
Investment funds Debt securities Debt securities  Equity securities
BETFT BETT BETT BYETT  AETT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
RonE1A1R At 1 January 2011 4162 43630 10219 23,184 81,195
EA Purchases % - - - 2%
i Sales (2,268) - - - (2,268)
#E Settlements - (199) (6,231) - (6:430)
REREBERE Changes in fair value recognised
MEEEY in the income statement
-BENERAEE — Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - 12 (6) 6
~BERGREEFUERER - Gainsless losses from trading securities 1047 - - - 1,047
—RERBBREREN ~Net gain from financial instruments
RBAREBRZ designated at fair value through
PBIAFYE profit or loss - 2171 - - 2171
2011128318 At 31 December 2011 2,965 45,602 4,000 23,178 75,745
REERMBER Total gains or losses for the year
QFMWK included in the income statement
BRRNEIR for assets held at the end of the
BRAE: reporting period recorded in:
-BENEEREE - Gains less losses from dealing
in foreign currencies - - 12 ©6) 6
-BERZREF A
HER - Gains less losses from trading securities 1,047 - - - 1,047
—RERBBREN - Net gain from financial instruments
REAREEZ designated at fair value through
SRIATNE profit or loss - 2171 - - 2171
R

Annual Report 2012



188

B TSR MY

43 NRABEEH (&)

(@ MUAREEFIRNEHIA ()

(i)  H1E I A B SR AT R AR

RUEBEHE

717/577 FEBRER AT E £ B2
SESRMEeMT ASTERAREENF

%E’ﬂﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁqﬂ =R

RIS

BIRNMISEIE - TRETSHES
FHZE BRI SEBREMEEDNR
AEELE - B10%1TES) - TRER
THEIBRARBESENGRE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

43

(a)

Fair value information (cont’d)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

(ii)

Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions

The fair value of Level 3 financial instruments is measured using
valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are not
based on observable market data. The following table shows
the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due to parallel
movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair value to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions.

rEBRAKLT
The Group and the Bank
2012
REMZEKER B
RIE R R Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
B () B ()
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BETT BETT BETT BETT
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REPBEE Trading assets
~REHES - Investment funds 266 (266) - -
BT ABBIEZ R Financial assets designated at
AhBENSHTIA fair value through profit or loss
—EEES - Debt securities 479 (479) - _
AT Available-for-sale securities
—EBES ~ Debt securities - - 400 (400)
— - Equity securities - - 2,362 (2,362)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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43 Fair value information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
(i) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions (cont’d)

REERARTT
The Group and the Bank
2011
A B4t 2 T U2 Bk
Rz TR R Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
B (RH) =gl (RH)
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BT BT BT BT
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RHAEEE Trading assets
-REES - Investment funds 297 (297) - -
ETEABBER A RE Financial assets designated at
RABEMNEBRTA fair value through profit or loss
—EBES - Debt securities 4,560 (4,560) - -
P EES Available-for-sale securities
—-ERES - Debt securities - - 400 (400)
—EREH - Equity securities - - 2318 (2,318)

HARKERATHRELESBRTANA
REEMBHAREEN  ETRNT AR

RAIBEERARA DA

BEFE -

The Group and the Bank believe that their estimates of fair value for
the above financial instruments are appropriate but the use of different
methodologies or assumptions could lead to different measurements

of fair value.

—E-—gEyg
Annual Report 2012
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(b)

Fair value information (cont’d)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values at 31 December 2012 and
2011 unless otherwise stated.

(i) Financial assets
The Group's financial assets mainly include cash, placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions,
loans and advances to customers, investments, and financial
derivative instruments.

The fair values of placements with banks, central banks and
other financial institutions are mainly priced at market interest
rates, and mature within 1 year. Accordingly, the carrying values
approximate the fair values.

The fair values of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which
are mainly repriced within 3 months, equal their carrying
amounts.

Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in
the financial statements.
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Fair value information (cont’d)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

value (cont’d)

(ii)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at

amounts not materially different from their fair values at 31

December 2012 and 2011, except as follows:

HEAL :
KEE
The Group
2012 2011
IRES5 BRHE2R
Carrying AREE Carrying NREE
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BET T BET T BET I BRI T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EEITERE Certificates of deposit issued
—ERXFHRE - Non-trading 14,297,569 14,332,946 12,123,896 12,125,246
BEITERE S Debt securities issued 1,119,747 1,125,856 397,436 396,869
BEBER Loan capital 6,698,159 6,889,076 8,192,926 7,785,451
22,115,475 22,347,878 20,714,258 20,307,566
K17
The Bank
2012 2011
EHEE5 RESR
Carrying AREE Carrying ArBE
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETERE Certificates of deposit issued
—3ERFGAE - Non-trading 14,297,569 14,332,946 12,123,896 12,125,246
BBITERES Debt securities issued 1,119,747 1,125,856 388,383 387,824
BEEER Loan capital 6,698,159 6,889,076 6,242,919 5,810,447
22,115,475 22,347,878 18,755,198 18,323,517
—E-CFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 FTETHR 44 Derivatives
FRTETAEEEEENEE TREPIER The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers
FpEREmEARERRLEETN—EEE as risk management products is an integral part of the Group's
B EREERBBEEEREN R & business activities. These instruments are also used to manage the
T Bt @REEERNREERSFIAENT Group's own exposures to market risk as part of its asset and liability
HRER c AEBANEEITETEREF management process. The principal derivatives instruments used by
EMEXEENEL - TERBINIZHHNT the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate related contracts,
GTH - AEEHERISANEENITETL which are primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates
B4 - AEBARZRAEEPHERME in exchange-traded derivatives. Most of the Group's derivatives
HHhREBEREAMBAENETIRRR - 3ig positions have been entered into to meet customer demand and to
FFEMME  MTETAHIERFEEENR hedge these and other trading positions. For accounting purposes,
FREEH o derivatives are classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.
(@ TETANERSH (a) Notional amounts of derivatives
MTHETAERERE -IBXZEEMEEENIE Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
HHEERETEBENTHEELK - ELT the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
ENZBBERKRARATHHORZEE - TR amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
TEREEE transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.
N TRAEERATEREETETANS The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each
EEENE significant type of derivative entered into by the Group and the Bank:
x50
The Group
2012 00
SRTAERER BREABEER
HRBAAEREN IRBA A BBk
SRIZ-fEAER SBIA-fEAER
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with Hib(afE conjunction with Hip(ff
financial instruments #FEE) financialinstruments BEEE)
BYWEE  designated atfairvalue  Others (including g BEIREE  designated atfairvalue - Others (including et
Held for hedging  through profit or loss  held for trading) Total  Heldforhedging  through profitorloss  held fortrading) Total
BRI BT BT BT BETT BRI BT AT
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EEfiEI8 Currency derivatives
Y Forwards - - 6987482 69874282 - - 89378346 89378346
RS Swaps - 9649 8560735 85637004 - AL I WAL ] 6151104
B\ Optons putchised . - RS 42056805 . SNsM 2050
ittt Options witten - S A10992 41109922 - - 271971 171977
FIEfETR Interest rate derivatives
2825 Siiaps 7955214 - 43766068 51721282 6126210 - BI33% 51889609
B \HiE Options purchased - - 264,973 264,973 - - 72 ma
it Options writen - - 264973 264973 - - 7 ma
REFEIR Equity derivatives
BERS Swaps - - - - - - 18,108 18,08
7955214 29,649 282,944,468 290,929,331 6126210 287193 240,350 944 246,764 347

FREIRT (B BRAH

CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 FTHEIE (8]) 44 Derivatives (cont’d)
(@) FTEIENEZ=SE (&) (@) Notional amounts of derivatives (cont'd)
%)
The Bank
2012 011
ERERBERE EETREARR
HRBAAEEN WRHARBEM
SHIA-fHEER SEIA-fHEMER
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with Hib(af conjunction with Hip(BE
financial instruments #EEE) financialinstrumens BEEE)
BYMEE  designated atfairvalue Others including ] BYMEE  designated atfarvalue  Others including 5
Held for hedging  through profit or loss  held for trading) Total  Heldforhedging  through profitorloss  held fortrading) Total
LA BT BT BT AETTL AETTL BT LSV
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK000 HK000 HKS1000
E2fT4I8 Currency derivatives
B8RS Forwards - - 69874280 69874282 - - 88640531 8640531
EHR5 Swaps - 29,649 84,580,776 84,610,425 - 287193 60,415,053 60,702,246
B\ Optons purchased - - 6895 42,056,895 - - 21705045 21705045
it Options wrtten - - HI0992 41109922 - - 2719773 171971
REfiE18 Interest rate derivatives
S Swaps 7,955,214 - 43,760,499 51,715,713 6126210 - 45768437 51,894,647
BN Options purchased - - 264973 264,973 - - M2 72
ElnfE Options writen - - 264973 264973 - - M Ml
REfiEI8 Equity derivatives
£85 Swaps - - - - - - 18,108 18108
7955214 29,649 281,912,320 289,897,183 6126210 287193 238,809,389 25202192

RHBEAKERATHERTASEER
AR ARTEPHNRZESHNERZTIE
PMELNEE  URREHEMRZHITE
MTENRE -

Trading includes the Group's and the Bank's proprietary positions

in financial instruments, positions which arise from the execution of

trade orders from customers and market making, and positions taken

in order to hedge other elements of the trading book.

—B-—FER
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44 {THETHR (&)

(b) FTEIENAAEEREGERRMNEREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Derivatives (cont’'d)

(b) Fair values and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

TEME
The Group
2012 2011

FEERK EERR
AREE L2AEE MNEHEE QAEE QAREBE  NEZEE
EE &1& Creditrisk- B E Bf&E Creditrisk-
Fair value Fairvalue weighted Fairvalue  Fairvalue  weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BT BT BT AT AB¥Trr BET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FEHGTETE Interest rate derivatives 666,441 170,011 437,801 825,661 388,314 447,456
EXR{THET A Currency derivatives 1,180,241 737,331 4,145,645 1,249,484 941311 3,873,547
RETETER Equity derivatives - - - 1,573 1,573 109
1,846,682 907,342 4,583,446 2,076,718 1,331,198 4,321,112

(B¥z¥20)  (BfFaE29) (fFEE20)  (BfFEE29)

(note 20) (note 29) (note 20) (note 29)

RKIT
The Bank
2012 2011

FEERK EERE
AREE 2Q2AEE NESE QhEE 2AAKEE IEZE
EE &1& Credit risk- BE BfE Creditrisk-
Fairvalue Fairvalue weighted Fairvalue  Fairvalue  weighted
assets liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BETT BETxT BETxT BET BETR BETx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHTETE Interest rate derivatives 665,836 170,011 437,163 824,200 388,896 445227
EE{TETH Currency derivatives 1,172,775 737,068 4,141,362 1,246,266 930,550 3,867,326
IRiErTAET A Equity derivatives - - - 1,573 1,573 109
1,838,611 907,079 4,578,525 2,072,039 1321019 4,312,662

(MizE20)  (Pf¥EE29) (fizE20)  (BfIaE29)

(note 20) (note 29) (note 20) (note 29)

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(b)

(9]

PTEI A (&)

PTETENAAREERGERBMESRE
(&)

FEERBINESFEEELR (RTE (BX)
RAD BEEATENER - WHUARR S
HFMBBARR R BB R TEE - 5
BB ERAER R N H%E150%1%F
(20114F : 0%Z150%) * i & & - F|E kA
METAE T EA 4RI B0%ZE150%T % (2011
F L 0%E150%) °

REBSBEFRRAERESFREREL
BE - Et - B EERRIALERIR o

EEAHHITANTETANAAEBE
AT B E RIS AEITAET
HEREmBERIZN AR BEMRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Derivatives (cont’'d)

(b)

(9]

Fair values and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives
(cont’d)

The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(2011: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
from 0% to 150% (2011: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate
and other derivatives contracts.

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
during the year and accordingly these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.

Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group and the
Bank:

A EBRALT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
AREEEE L A(EBEEE AHKEEEE AnEBEEARE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BT T BET T BETIT BT I
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FEEH Interest rate contracts 579,841 3,945 487,969 -

DA EEL T EOEREREETEEF
FAENA RN DR BERDSHELHT
B BRI 1 -

Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used
to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate assets
or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.

—B-—FER
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44 FTHETIA (&) 44 Derivatives (cont’d)

(d) FTTEIEMERTEH (d) Remaining life of derivatives
TREHEAERRATRES B EET The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
(BREEENR TEEREAE) 2o derivatives of the Group and the Bank by relevant maturity grouping,
PMTETERZSREON - based on the remaining periods to settlement at the end of the

reporting period.

A%E
The Group
2012 2011
BTERNERER BTFIN2EEE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of
1EREESE 1E 2S5
BE  1EGHUT  Overlyear SENE B EFLUT  Overlyear SERLE
Total  1year or less toSyears  Over5 years Total  1yearorless to5years  Over5years

BMTn  BMTn  BMTx  BMTn  EETR EETn EETm BETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000

FIEFETE Interest rate derivatives 52,251,228 19,862,949 28512520  3,875759 52432051 23252214 25116010 4063827
EXTETE Currency derivatives 238,678,103 152,534,209 86,143,804 - 194314188 116352458 77961730 -
RENETE Equity derivatives - - - - 18,108 18,108 - -
290,929,331 172,397,158 114,656,414 3875759 246764347 139622780 103,077,740 4063827
¥
The Bank
2012 2011
BTEBNEZLE BTEENAZEE
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

150 LBSE 1B EESE

@%  1EgHUT  Overlyear SERE 8% 1EIMUT  Overlyear
Total 1year or less to5years  Over5years Total  Tyearorless to5years  Over5years
BETT BETT BT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
MERGTAETE Interest rate derivatives 52,245,659 19,857,790 28,512,110 3875759 52437089 23255784 25117478 4063827
EXfTETA Currency derivatives 237,651,524 151,507,630 86,143,894 - 192767595 114805865 77,961730 -
RE(TETE Equity derivatives - - - - 18,108 18,108 - -

289,897,183 171,365,420 114,656,004 3875759 245222792 138079757 103,079,208 4,063,827

196] HIERIT (B BRAF
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(a)

REEE  AENEAE

RHFENRBEEERERE
UTRBRETERRABENRAENANEHE
BME -

Notes to the Financial Statements

45

(a)

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

AEE 15
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEREERER Direct credit substitutes 4,998,356 2,007,355 1,920,542 1,956,183
BT SERNNAER Transaction-related contingencies 1,517,432 951,660 1,517,432 952,891
HESBEWNNAEE Trade-related contingencies 2,953,560 4,241,352 2,946,648 3,094,826
H A Other commitments:
—RITRI AR EUR — which are unconditionally cancellable
SHIEERARIE or automatically cancellable
B s due to deterioration
BEEELSE in the creditworthiness
of the borrower 47,584,418 33,822,786 47,120,808 33,768,709
—REEBAEIFHUT - with an original maturity of
not more than 1 year 396,763 3,959,572 396,763 3,959,572
—REHAEIFU L - with an original maturity of
more than 1 year 2,106,752 3,657,934 2,069,571 3,591,209
59,557,281 48,640,659 55,971,764 47,323,390
EERBINEEE Credit risk-weighted amounts 4,315,605 5,488,054 3,806,266 5,174,523

HBERBEMAERREERRNTA 21
ERFR - EREMRBEERIER L&
o phmEARER ERRTFRHE R
BESEMEERBRAER - aHEBEREE
BHEBURBUR LR PR N HAERR
SR - BB ERAEED RS
B MaHeRL IR RERERE

BRI E = 5 R\ hN#E S5 A9 2 B hnAE |
0%Z150% (20114F : 0%ZE150%) T o

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2011: 0% to 150%).

—B-—FER
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45 HEEE - AEREE (B) 45

(b) EAREE (b)
20129128318 » ABAYZEREZERE
i AR RS 5 Rk NI B A & AR &
T

Contingent assets, liabilities and commitments (cont’d)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for purchase of properties and equipment
outstanding at 31 December 2012 not provided for in the financial
statements are as follows:

TEE KT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BT T BT
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERETA Authorised and contracted for 37,502 26,973 35,736 26,761
EREBRRETY Authorised but not contracted for 22 735 - -
37,524 27,708 35,736 26,761
() FHERE (c) Lease commitments

R20128F12A31H » RIBTAIGREERE
ENRRREERSLTHOT

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

rEE )
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BT T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
WEBER T HREEIR © Property leases expiring:

—15R ~ Within 1 year 214,676 171,046 199,761 156,142
—1FE5F — After 1 year but within 5 years 671,182 514,546 651,807 480,450
—5%1% — After 5 years 417,604 175,940 417,604 175,940
1,303,462 861,532 1,269,172 812,532

REHEENLUTHIBE® - Equipment leases expiring:
—1FN — Within 1 year 1,257 2,729 1,257 1,210
—1FE5F — After 1 year but within 5 years 3,228 4,789 3,228 4,142
4,485 7,518 4,485 5,352

AEE AR EHEN T AEEZ A
MENER - BEANENRENRVIEEN
—RRBIEVF - A PNE R ERREEPIE 1K
Ko A EHEGISRIBARE °

d) BEELIERENREEE (d)
7201282011812 A318 » AEE R EWNE
UNSINDI-E=F-Yd nm GG RN 6ol 959
BAFERERITE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The Group and the Bank lease a number of properties and items of
equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 9 years, with an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The Group and its subsidiaries are not involved in any legal actions
that would be significant to the financial position of the Group at 31
December 2012 and 2011.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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47

48

Trust activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions.
These assets and income arising thereon are excluded from these
financial statements as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate parent and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate parent of
the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be CITIC Group Corporation, which is incorporated in the
mainland China.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities; the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements; and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes
in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial
statements in the periods when the assumptions are changed. The
application of assumptions and estimates means that any selection
of different assumptions would cause the Group's reporting to differ.
The Group believes that the assumptions that have been made are
appropriate and that the financial statements therefore present the
financial position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management held a discussion with the Audit Committee about
the development, selection and disclosure of the Group's significant
accounting policies and estimates, and the application of these
policies and estimates.

—B-CEEH
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RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

48 Accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 26(c) and 43 contain information about the assumptions and

their risk factors relating to the valuation of investment property and

the fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described
in the accounting policy note 2(l). If management has
determined, based on their judgement, that objective evidence
of impairment exists, expected future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of the current observable
data. Management regularly reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows to reduce any
difference between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below cost. The determination of when
a decline in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a
reasonable time period is judgement-based by nature, so profit
and loss could be affected by differences in this judgement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

48 Accounting estimates and judgements (cont’d)

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
(i) Fairvalue of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made at a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If a quoted
price is not available on a recognised stock exchange, is not
from a broker or dealer for non-exchange traded financial
instruments or from a readily available latest trading price, the
fair value is estimated using the present value or other valuation
techniques using current market parameters. The fair value
of structured investment vehicles is based on their net asset
value provided by investment managers, having taken into

consideration other risk factors.

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a
basis for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group
compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices
of similar financial instruments, and with actual values when
realised, in order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially
affected by the assumptions used and judgements made
regarding the risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future expected
loss experience and other factors. Changes in assumptions
could materially affect these estimates and the resulting fair
values. Derived fair value estimates cannot necessarily be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets and,
in many cases, could be realised in an immediate sale of the

instruments.

—B-CEEH
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EHEMGEREZ2012F1283181LF 49 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
EdRERNIERT - FTEARZEN interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
AR E ended 31 December 2012
HEAUKRERTIER AT AZ Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
EEMmZIEER] - FERMRE  BiELk issued the following amendments, new standards and Interpretations
f&a] ~ FERIFRBAERZE2012F12A31H which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
IEFERAREN - TNRAERTEwER AR which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
o ELEE]BIE T I AL E A include the following which may be relevant to the Group:
IHA :
HEHHRRRAEEEN
Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
- RSFKEBETERDSE 15— MBRER 2R ¢ - Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of 20129F7A1H
Hih 2 E WA B 2 5] financial statements - Presentation of items of 1July 2012
other comprehensive income
- (BB REERDE 105 — [ FRE T BHE] — HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 201391 /1H
1 January 2013
- (BAMBREERDE 125 —[FhEMEEE =R — HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 201351 AR
HEE 1 January 2013
- (BB RELENDFE 1R - AR EBEZTE] — HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 20131 A1H
1 January 2013
- (BB ELER) 2 HCE20002 20111 H — Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 201341 A1H
1 January 2013
- BB BMBHREEDE R -2 ITE : # — Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: 201351 A1 H
E-HE-AEcREENSRAE] Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting financial 1 January 2013
assets and financial liabilities
- Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial 201441 A1H

- REFKEBEFTERDFERR-[EmMTAE

EHh-HHEeREENERAE]

- (BEMBREENDFER - T A

AEE ARG ELBTHERRAME
MFE - BIBRIARL  BR(EBMEIMEE
A) o5k — [T A S REEBEHK
AN IE LB AT AR SR B O A8 SR AE AN B IO
EZTEREANTE -

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

instruments: Presentation — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities
— HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2014

20151 H1H
1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the

impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of

initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them

is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated

financial statements except for HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments.
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (cont’d)

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier adoption permitted. The HKICPA decided
to consider amendments to HKFRS 9 to address practice and other
issues. Proposals in respect of classification and measurement for
assets and liabilities and impairment loss are out for consultation in
November 2012 until the end of March 2013. The Group is presently
studying the implications of adoption but is awaiting finalisation of
the limited amendments before evaluation can be completed. Given
the nature of the Group's operations, this standard is expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operation and state
of affairs.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 27 March 2013,

—B-—FER
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REEZE T E M

(B BIFIBBSNA TS R BB L)
(A) BXRZEHE

(i) EBEXFZTEH=

Unaudited supplementary
financial information

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(A) Capital adequacy ratio

U]

Capital adequacy ratio

rEE
The Group
2012 2011
R12H31BMERT B E Capital adequacy ratio at 31 December 18.22% 18.30%
M2 A3 BEZ O E AR & Core capital ratio at 31 December 11.77% 10.38%

20124 20114124318 » EARFT R E
NZLERLE  BRBESERAEER
B HHRE K (IRT %(é%%ﬁﬁw BT
REAETHBRARINEGHEETE - XITH
ﬁHHT EHE] FFEEERR LTS REREE

S NBESRR - MEBIRIERRAIERA &
ZIS?E.%H&J

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The capital adequacy ratio ("“CAR") and core capital ratio, at 31
December 2012 and 2011, are computed on the consolidated basis
covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as required by the
HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. The Bank has adopted the “standardised
approach” for calculating the risk-weighted amount for credit risk
and market risk and the “basic indicator approach” for calculating of
operational risk.



REECZMHAYBER

(A) EXZELR (&)

(ii)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(A) Capital adequacy ratio (cont’d)

HIRBIERERER (i) Capital base after deductions
KEE
The Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BOER Core capital
BB Paid-up ordinary share capital 7,283,341 7,283,341
BeAn % B Share premium 282,930 282,930
ke Reserves 4,852,273 4,405,852
B Profit and loss account 1,658,782 216,229
W BERIBFEE Less: Net deferred tax assets (27,283) (100,927)
HIBRR E BT VR O B A48 58 Total core capital before deductions 14,050,043 12,087,425
R OB AREHIRIE R Less: Deductions from core capital (5,412) (4,585)
HBRBERZROEREEE Total core capital after deductions 14,044,631 12,082,840
ERMmBER Ssupplementary capital 7
AN TFEEEMFE TR Reserves attributable to fair value gains on
EEYMEL RN B GEEE revaluation of land and buildings 2,543 2,543
AZEAFEEEGHFAIHRES Reserves attributable to fair value gains on
B REBESMEEDN revaluation of holdings of available-for-sale
Ve MR B equities and debt securities 26,774 -
RRAREE-RFEHETABA Unrealised fair value gains arising from holdings
BaRl R EBELFMEEN of equities and debt securities designated at
R EMEEA L EBENRD fair value through profit or loss
REBBAFMEENRERAN 1,237 121
—RRIBITER AT FEE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,213,909 1,111,379
A FHE R EER Collectively assessed impairment allowances 280,985 346,898
KAIBERIER Perpetual subordinated debt - 1,950,007
BHIEERER Term subordinated debt 6,179,232 5,813,819
MBRBIEAI MBI E 458 Total supplementary capital before deductions 7,704,680 9,224,767
HBRRIEAT NS BB E R 4E% Total eligible supplementary capital before
deductions 7,704,680 9,224,767
VB B E ANHY AR B Less: Deductions from supplementary capital items (5,413) (4,585)
HRRBERHBEREEE Total supplementary capital after deductions 7,699,267 9,220,182
HNRBIERBAERER Total capital base after deductions 21,743,898 21,303,022
BUOERREBERN Total deductions from the core capital and
MRIEB @5 supplementary capital 10,825 9,170
BB hnRE B EE Risk-weighted amount
— 8RR ~ Credit risk 110,380,460 108,116,493
— Mi5RER ~ Market risk 2,647,488 2,305,663
— SERR - Operational risk 6,337,300 6,011,388
119,365,248 116,433,544
—E-_FFIR J205
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REECZMHAYBER

(A) EXZELR (&)

(iii)

mEERw
BREFRIZIBASN - ANF R F RS RAPTA Y
BERHIABLE T & AR S AR RS -

REBNEAFTRLLERRBESLE - T)
REAEEMSNGEEERRR - KREE
Ml Estms BREEMEMEZDHER
RIEBREATRATHANRB AR - MEE
AR BEATRATETHEBAR - FEW0
B

AT E R E L EZRER2007F1H1H
EBCGRITHE (BR) READFTE -2 F
REIERTTIRIE CGIR17% (BAK) R F
28Q)@)f5 - ME—AREEMBIETIIARITZ
WEBARGERTCEARFTRLE « LEK
R —HWE

MEAT &M
CKWH-UT2 Limited
EFEEBERAT

S—HH - ATAREGRTES
98D * FhiRA RBEEIEA TH
HEHERTRILE -

o) 2
YNCIA

M

2]

MELR M
ERBERARAR
RERITEIR (FE) BRAF
RIERERREAR AR
CKWB-SN Limited

CKWH-UT2 Limited
BREAFBERAA]
FERRMBEERAR
FRERTT (F7E) BRAA
EBREEEERATR]

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(R)

(i)

Capital adequacy ratio (cont’d)

Basis of consolidation

Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
financial statements is prepared according to the consolidation basis
for accounting purposes.

The CAR and liquidity ratio of the Group are prepared according to the
basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes. The main difference
between the consolidation basis for accounting and regulatory
purposes is that the former includes the Bank and all its subsidiaries
whereas the latter includes the Bank and only some of the Group's
subsidiaries, which are discussed as follows:

The Bank calculates the CAR in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules effective on 1 January 2007. The HKMA has granted approval
under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking (Capital) Rules for the Bank to
calculate its CAR on a solo-consolidated basis instead of a solo basis in
respect of the following subsidiaries of the Bank:

Name of subsidiaries
CKWH-UT2 Limited
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited

On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 98(2)(b) of the
Banking Ordinance to calculate its CAR on a consolidated basis in
respect of the following subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiaries

Carford International Limited

CITIC Bank International (China) Limited

CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited

CKWB-SN Limited

CKWH-UT2 Limited

HKCB Finance Limited

Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited

Viewcon Hong Kong Limited
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(A) EXZELR (&)

(i)

(B)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(A) Capital adequacy ratio (cont’d)

mEE® (&) (iii) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
BIRCR1TE (BAR) BB B389 - K17 The following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank's capital base
ZEREBWUTIBEEANTHEAR under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules
MEBARERE Name of subsidiaries
BRBEARIT (RIBA) BRAA The Hongkong Chinese Bank (Nominees) Limited
FERT (RIE) BRREAA The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited
Security Nominees Limited Security Nominees Limited
REESLE=ER (B) Liquidity ratio
EE
The Group
2012 2011

HZ12A318EFEFY Average liquidity ratio for the year ended

MENE & R~ 31 December * 59.35% 43.57%
x RNEEHN I RHES LR AETEA D * The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each

URBESLLRZEHEFHH - WRES
ERAEEBMMHE  BATREET
B ARG EE WA EEGRTT
P R IMH RS E -

calendar month'’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the
consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as
required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and is in accordance

with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

—B-—FER
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited supplementary financial information

Q) E—FoMEFERRBR (C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
EPEFREBFREZRERD BB Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
BEEENBEEEEL T - REBETHEE collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
TSR AR ERFAKANSEREER follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and
%o definitions used by the HKMA.

bS]
The Group
2012 20M1
HEERH (epcRiiviiln
BEFENR EPEFR
BAE BaE
EFERR BRE BPERK ERap
BUEE % of gross BB % of gross
Gross loans loans and Gross loans loans and
and advances advancesto  and advances advances to
to customers customers  to customers customers
BETT covered by BT covered by
HK$'000 collateral HK$'000 collateral
I8em Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE - Property development 10,762 100 4,000 100
—MERE - Property investment 14,165,266 100 12,905,620 99
— SR E - Financial concerns 1,785,418 27 2,951,325 58
—REE L - Stockbrokers 31,000 100 35,000 100
-RELRTER -~ Wholesale and retail trade 7,984,910 80 6,352,248 79
— Gl - Manufacturing 3,401,071 48 6,153,567 52
— B LB - Transport and transport equipment 2,604,952 60 2,532,195 78
—IREEE) - Recreational activities 189,213 64 269,183 72
— AR - Information technology 1,336 74 1,456 66
—Hft - Others 2,208,005 61 2,557,801 46
AA Individuals
—BE[EEAHEEE] - - Loansforthe purchase of flats under
[(LABRELEERE the Home Ownership Scheme,
HERIHEBEE Private Sector Participation Scheme
HEIMEFER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 20,100 100 23,124 100
—BEEHEMIENE — Loans for the purchase of other
WER residential properties 9,671,193 100 10,135,734 100
—ERARER - Credit card advances 288,991 - 283,061 -
—Hfth - Others 6,132,235 91 5335304 93
EEEER E’\]Eﬁﬁ\ Gross loans and advances for use
PEE in Hong Kong 48,494,452 85 49,539,618 83
E5mE Trade finance 13,930,092 21 10,372,639 24
Eiﬁ\"*bﬁl\ﬁﬁﬁ HER Gross loans and advances for use
e outside Hong Kong 42,667,288 40 33,805,875 42
REER LRI BT Gross loans and advances to customers 105,091,832 58 93,718,132 62

208 RFERAT (EBR) AR AR
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited supplementary financial information

Q) E—FoMEFERRBR (&) (C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers
(cont’d)
HREFPERRBFMEEEI0%IA L - WIEE The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the
MEFRESERNRBETFERKBRSNT individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of
W the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:
r5HE
The Group
2012
ERE
Il 58 %% B ¢
HRESR
BARER &Rl we WEZEF  Impairment
EXREBR HEERE REER EXRBZ  written back
Overdue loans Individual Collective Impaired loans on income
and advances impairment impairment  and advances statement
to customers allowances allowances  to customers during the year
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MERE Property investment - - 105 - (227)
BEHEMEENE Loans for the purchase of
HER other residential properties - - 27 4,818 (120)
BEomE Trade finance 81,607 75,163 40,515 83,966 (1,882)
TEBRBLAIME AR Gross loans and advances
ERRBTEE for use outside Hong Kong 255,062 178,191 162,859 298,694 (18,684)
336,669 253,354 203,506 387,478 (20,913)
T&E
The Group
2011
ENE
Woss R m &
HREER
BAHER &5l e RERP Impairment
ERRER HEERE HEERE BEHRBH written back
Overdue loans Individual Collective  Impaired loans on income
and advances impairment impairment  and advances statement
to customers allowances allowances to customers  during the year
BT BT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MERE Property investment - - 699 - (235)
BEALMEENE Loans for the purchase of
MEN other residential properties 6,327 - 62 11,154 (951)
BomE Trade finance 107,836 50,799 41,892 108,460 (504)
EABLAIME A/ Gross loans and advances
ERRBREE for use outside Hong Kong 146,888 117,955 137,619 364,537 (4,810)
261,051 168,754 180,272 484,151 (6,500)
—E—ZFFIR 209
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Q) E-—IoWEFERRBER (H)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(C) Further analysis on loans and advances to customers

(cont'd)
i &5 AT By geographical areas
r5E
The Group
2012
EFEX BMER REEF 18 51 o)
RBX  EFREX  ERREBR REEE REEE
Loansand Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto andadvances andadvances impairment impairment
customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
BETT BETT BETR B¥TR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N5 Hong Kong 58,723,477 133,556 143,762 57,223 127,109
HEl A Mainland China 33,425,756 84,051 84,051 45,381 64,320
x5 United States 1,302,979 632 44,264 11,023 3,562
N Singapore 4,537,227 - - - 43,663
Hit Others 7,102,393 203,842 203,843 151,729 42,331
105,091,832 422,081 475,920 265,356 280,985
A&EE
The Group
2011
EFER aER BEEF (Rl 7a
RB¥®  ERRBER BEREEX REER AEERE
Loansand  Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advancesto  andadvances  and advances impairment impairment
customers  tocustomers  to customers allowances allowances
BETT BT BT BB BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
B Hong Kong 56,667 444 307,112 348,486 58,672 195,377
R A Mainland China 23,874,829 63,246 63,247 3,174 77,937
XE United States 1336428 - - - 1611
EARI Singapore 3,564,689 - - - 30,093
Hith Others 8,274,742 71,218 288,868 133814 41,830
93,718,132 441,576 700,601 195,660 346,898

it A B IR 5 E FE TR E S -

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the

TEZEBREBRER - HEXS5EFENTH
BRE—F EHEROEER R E 2R
THIBERARIAS -

counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
BB R BREIEEEEE3EANER - Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue for
more than 3 months.

MEER R BT E R EE LR T ER
BRI FH @RI FHAH B o

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

210] RFERT (BB BRAR
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Unaudited supplementary financial information

(D) MHEE

(D) Overdue assets

BHEFERRER Overdue loans and advances to customers
rEE
The Group
2012 2011
EEFER fﬁ@ﬁ%%’ﬂ
kBxEs kaze
nE E’\Y
% of total % of total
loans and loans and
B¥ T advancesto BT advancesto
HK$’000 customers HKS$'000 customers
ERNEREsE The gross amount of loans and advances
o ERE has been overdue for periods of:
—3@A A E=6f@ A — 6 months or less but over 3 months 5,431 0.01 21,999 0.02
—6fE AA EZE1F — 1 year or less but over 6 months 75,572 0.07 175,513 0.19
—1F U E - over 1 year 341,078 0.32 244,064 0.26
422,081 0.40 441,576 047
BERHEAET RS Secured overdue loans and advances 210,309 367,906
B EAE R EE Unsecured overdue loans and advances 211,772 73,670
422,081 441576
BHEERMBEER KL Market value of collateral held against the
SR EEETE secured overdue loans and advances 285,939 652,968
&R E 2 Individual impairment allowances made 250,429 88,795

ERBERBZERRBK  BEEARSHA Loans and advances with specific repayment dates are classified as
BEE@H - WRELHEH Wﬂi{ﬁ}& A5 e overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
BHRRIE - AIRFH 2 B35 BEEMERA at the year end. Loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
REERFRA  BERANKRRETRER either when a demand for repayment has been served on the

%/ SZEREBEERABERIO I ER borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
B - MLt E R RHER R s EREARR - JR5 demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
VEBHRRR IR o outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.

—E-FFHK 2N
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited supplementary financial information

(D) BHEE (&) (D) Overdue assets (cont’d)
BHEFERRER (&) Overdue loans and advances to customers (cont’d)
HRABPERERR - A TRHENEREE Eligible collateral, which is held in respect of the overdue loans and
ERmEERREEMEDE - aBERmEA advances, is ‘Eligible Physical Collateral’ which mainly comprises real
FFE THMES estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:
@) ZEENMEIEAARATERAEE (@)  The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
EENRBE ° reasonably established and verified.
b) ZEEAURMSHERB -_FmigA (b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
B ZEELE - secondary market for disposal of the asset.
© AIIHEBAEEERRNEN TIRE (©)  The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
RITEWREEERRER) without impediment.
d ATEEFERAIHZEETFEES (d)  The Bankis able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
o
2012 K201 128318 - AEE W EE There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
HARA3ME A A ERIT R E A B RS EATR o which were overdue for over 3 months at 31 December 2012 and
2011,

212 RFERT (R BRAR
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(E)

(F)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

REHER (E) Rescheduled loans
rEE
The Group
2012 2011

EEFERRER EEPERRBR
HBEHDE BERHE
% of total 9% of total
loans and loans and
BETT advances to BT T advances to
HK$'000 customers HKS'000 customers
KEHER Rescheduled loans 687,320 0.65 910,196 0.97

REBHRETRIEERAR R BIN 2k
NIRRT R BoEK EARE G E
HYEA R - 35 LB RT B IR AR R B T
W —MREEER - FPEAERS IR
Hig B BE631E A I 2 M D) E R avE
HREATR o

R20128F K20114F12H31H » AEBWED
EHMRITREM S R BRI -

Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured

or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position

of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original

repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are

non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are

stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue

for over 3 months and are reported as overdue advances in note (D).

There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
which were rescheduled at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

BE&E (F) Repossessed assets
A
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BiFARFERNER Included in loans and advances to customers
RE A ARIEF and other accounts - 6,513

IR A A 20124F 22011412 A31 BRI EL[E]
BEMMHFTTE -

The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed

assets at 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited supplementary financial information

(G) BiRER (G) Cross-border claims
SIRERECERRRERRIZZ S FM Cross-border claims are on-statement of financial position exposures
TEHEE  REERBBRAZTHNRSETF of counterparties based on the location of the counterparties after
[FfzEE - HERXZHFENTRBERN—7 taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim guaranteed by a
EREROBEERRGEZZR T HVEREE party situated in a country different from the counterparty, risk will be
IHF o RITHEAM S FEE D ITHERER R transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on the branch
BlE s HAIMERRAMEEES - EEER of a bank or other financial institution, the risk will be transferred to
1B IZE MBS IBERE10%3 A _E BRI B it the country where its head office is situated. Claims on individual
REEENT - countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the

aggregate cross-border claims are shown as follows:

The Group
2012
RITRHEA
CRBE
Banks and DNERE
other financial  Public sector Hit @z
institutions entities Others Total
BT T BT T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBEAINE K& Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 47,847,382 476,213 29,916,029 78,239,624
Heh B At of which mainland China 39,337,063 352,943 24,007,607 63,697,613
rEE
The Group
2011
HRIT R EAD
T RIE
Banks and NEHE

other financial  Public sector HA 43
institutions entities Others Total
BT BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBLAINE KR Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 32,847,217 463,315 27,509,547 60,820,079
H oA ] A of which mainland China 26,969,386 336,208 20,837,302 48,142,896
FaRR Western Europe 11,649,410 2,858 1,999,568 13,651,836
HAEE of which France 2,364,064 - 11,682 2,375,746
HAEE of which Germany 1,757,023 - 21,031 1,778,054
HApmsr of which Spain 1,542,440 - 950,079 2,492,519
HAEE of which United Kingdom 3,233,853 737 404,714 3,639,304

214] RFERT (B BRAR
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REEZ TR BER Unaudited supplementary financial information

(H) BRI IERITEH F mbRAYE (H) Non-bank mainland China exposures
PR A IERTTEH F R AE R IEEPEA Non-bank mainland China exposures are the mainland China
HEAIERITE F R B ATEE 2 RBRAE o LA exposures to non-bank counterparties. The categories follow the
T8 B R ATTIRE GRITHEKA) £63ER non-bank mainland China exposures submitted by the Bank to the
R T2 E RHF B A IERI T F R kA E HKMA pursuant to section 63 of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

EHR D HE -

2012
BEMRRRA  BHERRERN
i L B AR I L B AR I &5l
On-statement  Off-statement HEERE
of financial of financial Individual
position position #%  impairment
exposure exposure Total allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A B A b A Mainland China entities 14,981,612 5,266,206 20,247,818 105,873
EEEARFEANL Companies and individuals outside
ZIER B A mainland China where the credit is
NaEl REA granted for use in mainland China 36,313,096 6,285,668 42,598,764 15,996
51,294,708 11,551,874 62,846,582 121,869
2011
BBIRRERA BBIR &SN
mEEAE R EREE (el
On-statement  Off-statement BEEE
of financial of financial Individual
position position @ impairment
exposure exposure Total allowances
BT T T IT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
B A A Mainland China entities 14,932,429 6,021,822 20,954,251 22,477
EEEARTE A Companies and individuals outside
ZIEFR B mainland China where the credit is
Aa) K EA granted for use in mainland China 28,529,769 10,965,515 39,495,284 18,072
43,462,198 16,987,337 60,449,535 40,549

—E—-FFR 215
Annual Report 2012



216

REECZMHAYBER

)

(i)

(ii)

FERBEENEIME

BXRE

REFBLEREE (ERER)
FHE— M ERATERNE R E DT

ES

Unaudited supplementary financial information

() Additional disclosures on credit risk management

(i) Capital requirement

The capital requirements of the Group on each class of exposures
calculated under the standardised (credit risk) approach at the end of

™ each reporting period can be analysed as follows:
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEAIERER Classes of exposure:
TR 1 Sovereign 23,146 22,193
NI Public sector entity 6,795 2,747
R1T Bank 2,444,904 2,110,714
FHNA] Securities firm 1,240 800
=S Corporate 4,357,096 4,350,316
LA Collective investment scheme 213 237
HEER Cash items 44,189 75,994
BEETE Regulatory retail 442,263 441174
FERBEX Residential mortgage loans 443,766 483,880
Hofth FE 580 HA = fe Other exposures which are not past due 244,293 240,910
B HA Past due 101,602 130,407
BA S AR O 3R A B e A HE Y Total capital requirements for on-statement
BE R TE of financial position exposures 8,109,507 7,859,372
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 156,967 137,682
B 5Bk EEE Transaction-related contingencies 57,331 36,604
HE FHERBANEIER Trade-related contingencies 71,985 87,371
HAth Other commitments 86,073 200,892
EXNREEEY Exchange rate and gold contracts 331,652 309,884
SRS Interest rate contracts 35,024 35,796
E=mED Equity contracts - 9
AT AR L R INEL e A R /Y Total capital requirements for off-statement
EERIRTE of financial position exposures 739,032 808,238
FERBBELRRE Total capital requirements for credit risk 8,848,539 8,667,610
BRER (i) Capital charge

REE ABLERER R BAA E X ER

ERBRAERERS

The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in

accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the

reporting period is:

2012 2011

BET T BET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

EKIRERRAERE K Capital charge for operational risk 506,984 480,911

FREIRT (B BRAH
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REZMTIHER

Unaudited supplementary financial information

FEERREENEIMNIE (F) () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(cont'd)

(i) EEREERE (iii) Credit risk exposure
AEBREASELRREHBREREEFIN Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and
EEFAARETE TS EERRAE - M Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit exposures

Y p
REERITHRANEEFTA %Tﬁ?ﬁé TARID mentioned below. The Group follows the process prescribed in Part
AP BIRITE (BAR) HAEMEATIR — 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the ratings to the exposures
B booked in the Group’s banking book.
REE BIRREEREEIDTNAREEFE An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of exposures at the
BRI end of the reporting period is as follows:
2012
BREREH
AREENE
IAGHRE
ZBRRE
— B4 Total
SREREERAR AR Toualexposure
s mEEZ covered by
RHEVERE X
. 2Rk BRRE recognised
Exposures after recognised BRNERE
SR o MEZE  Total exposure guarantees
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts . .
Total risk- covered by orrecognised
REAE IR REIR BB BEFR weighted  recognised  credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETr  E¥Tn  B¥Tn B¥Tn ETn E¥TR B¥Tn B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A BIBRAZA A. On-statement of financial position
- BiEE - Sovereign 9723437 10,356,521 - 289321 - 289,31 - 633,284
- RERE - Public sector entity 415754 424,702 - 84,940 - 84,940 - 21,076
- B - Bank 64,831,846 73,289,782 3,907,429 28,713,481 1,847,822 30,561,303 - 8,423,723
- BRLE - Securities fim 31,008 - 31,008 - 15,504 15,504 - -
- 1% - Corporate 70947605 2348168 52231260 2232860 52230842 54463702 1,510,962 -
- EEREHE - Collective investment scheme 2,662 - 2,662 - 2,662 2,662 - -
- B8 - Cashitems 219,460 - 4049188 - 552365 552,365 3,495,662 -
- EETE - Regulatory retall 7,636,792 - 73710 - 5528203 5508293 115,134 -
- FERBER - Residential mortgage loans 15,694,478 - 15,658,273 - 5547079 5,547,079 - -
- EtFasER - Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 3,220,671 - 3,053,664 - 3,053,664 3,053,664 25,301 -
- pEER - Past due exposures 878,879 - 878,879 - 1,270,019 1,270,019 71,925 8,225
B BB B. Offstatement of financial position
- BMTETAR SR - Off-statement of financial
FETETEAN position exposures
DOMIBBIRR RN other than OTC derivative
Bls transactions or credit
derivative contracts 61414808 1040480 60374418 339314 4315131 4,654,445 3,176,074 274,337
- BOMTEIARS - OTC derivative transactions 240303163 151,226493 89076670 1451584 3,131,862 4583446 3,182,801 -
NRHEREREREREE  Exposures deducted from capital base 10,825
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(i)

BB ER

Unaudited supplementary financial information

FEERREENEIMNIE (F) () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(cont’d)
SERBAE (&) (iii) Credit risk exposure (cont’d)
2011
BREREY
FEEME
IEANEE
JBERE
SREAELRER S e
Rl ERE UER BEME  ccouis
Exposures after recognised Bl i "W o ¢
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Wé%" Total exposure guaran?ees
Total risk- covered by or recognised
REES ML REER ML REER weighted recognised  credit derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
EETT BT BETr ABTn EETR BETT BETT BETL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
A BBHARA A. On-statement of financial position
- BREE - Sovereign 9919116 10722050 - 27407 - 27407 - 802,934
- DEE - Public sector entity 185623 171,712 - 3434 - 34,342 - 99,441
) - Bank 60,786,584 42553778 22,559,835 17,545,214 8,838,707 26,383,921 - 4,162,114
- BHDH - Securities firm 20,003 - 20,003 - 10,002 10,002 20,003 -
- 1% - Corporate 67,741,188 3,656,054 52,223,003 2,155,950 52,223,003 54378953 1,969,890 -
- EERREHE -~ Collective investment scheme 2965 - 2965 - 2965 2,965 - -
- 5% - Cashitems 207,358 - 7,507,698 - 949,929 949929 6,675,501 -
- BEZE - Regulatory retai 7817.943 - 7352895 - 551467 5514672 181,995 -
- HERBEN - Residential mortgage loans 16,277,047 - 16254101 - 6048504 6,048,504 - -
- EtdasEk - Other exposures which are
not past due exposures 3077458 - 3,011,391 - 3,011,391 3,011,391 39,161 -
- DEER - Past due exposures 1,191,717 7,204 1184513 - 1,630,082 1,630,082 261,506 7,204
B BIBMARIN B. Off-statement of financial position
- BIMTEIARSR - Off-statement of financial
EEEIEAD position exposures other
PAOMYBI AR R SN than OTC derivative
ELS transactions or credit
derivative contracts 50,235,304 948459 49286845 438,784 5,343,078 5,781,862 941,699 305,454
- BMIEIARS - OTC derivative transactions 219684416 127,184,242 92,500,174 817,844 3,503,208 4321112 2,002,122 -
NBAERETEREREE  Exposures deducted from capital base 9170

RIEIRAT (BIRR) BIRA
CHINA CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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)

(iv)

EERAREENENMNEE (H)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

(D Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(cont’d)

REBUEFEERBAE (iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures
AEEXERESHIMTET A Z EERRHT The following tables summarise the Group’s main credit exposures
R arising from OTC derivative transactions:
() ERZEFEERBAENSTAT (1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures.
2012 2011
BEOMTE HIMTE
IAXRS TERZS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions  transactions
BEET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIEEERS Non-repo style transactions:
RIFN R BEER Gross total positive fair value 1,822,163 2,163,798
FEEZHRESH Credit equivalent amount 6,577,251 6,468,725
EERFAENEA®D Recognised collateral held:
— BIEE AN — Other than debt securities 37,277 61,450
HBREERRFREEENEE Credit equivalent amounts or net credit
ZEE S ESUREERMAYE exposures net of recognised collateral 6,577,251 6,468,725
[R\Be hn e B KA Risk weighted amounts 4,583,446 4,321,112
—e-—EEH
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)

(iv)

EERREENENEE (H)

REBFEERBEE (&)
2 BRXZEBFRUMBERERAENE

Unaudited supplementary financial information

)

(iv)

Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(cont’d)

Counterparty credit risk exposures (cont’d)
(2)  Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by

SRR DT counterparty type.
2012 2011
BIMTE BIMTE
TARS TERS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEDR Notional amounts:
—R1T - Banks 159,203,596 127,758,698
— 1% — Corporates 75,998,046 90,543,336
—HAty - Others 5,101,521 1,382,382
240,303,163 219,684,416
BEZHESE Credit equivalent amounts:
—R77 - Banks 3,360,746 2,695,201
—1b - Corporates 3,179,229 3,757,666
—HAty ~ Others 37,276 15,858
6,577,251 6,468,725
[E\ B A B EE Risk-weighted amounts:
—RTT — Banks 1,508,113 756,589
—13% - Corporates 3,075,333 3,564,523
4,583,446 4,321,112
(v) BEEERMRZH (v) Credit risk mitigation

AEBEEBIRSERD  BERAXRZH
FRIZ A FORMITR R R S SR F R R
B AOREEERR -

AEE-REIHERERARBRE L 5
HOEE - RRHS MM - HERRARLD - BF MEA
AIHEME S © RTE EFRER - TNEH
i gs|ANERRTE - AEEEE
EAVEIR G - PIa0 : BUFHR - SRITHER
EREREEALER

220 RFERAT (BBR) AR AR
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The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Group include
land, real estate, equipment & machinery, equity shares, bonds and
other marketable securities. In determining the loan advancing level,
respective haircuts will be applied on the current market value of
the collateral. The Group also accepts intangible collateral such as
government guarantees, bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and
personal guarantees.
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)

(vi)

(vii)

)

Unaudited supplementary financial information

FEERMEBENEMNEE (F) () Additional disclosures on credit risk management
(cont’d)
iz Ak (vi) Market risk
AEBGERREAEAFEMISAR - The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of market
risk.
2012 2011
BEARER BARER
Capital Capital
charge charge
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
=R &L po A IE (B FEEARE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 135,517 136,499
R e [ B A HE (B FE HR A ) Equity exposures (including options) - 448
HNE R SR A IE (B R E S M HARE) Foreign exchange exposures (including gold and options) 76,282 47,506
211,799 184,453

BEEHL
AEBFRIZE (BHl) HENTEES
{U—LIg AEZEERE - A TEH T ER

_\

BESRERE -

AITE MR EE BT IR M s E & IR
5 RSNERE ARHA RS - UFTERHEZ A
BRdER [Eb ] 235D o

(vii) Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate
the credit risk for securitisation exposures. It is an investing institution
for all classes of exposures below.

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody's Investors Service are
the external credit assessment institutions that the Bank has used in
relation to the securitisation exposures of the ‘Others’.

2012 2011
TR B 3 T & B R IR
Exposures deducted from its Exposures deducted from its

BROER HmBER ROEAR BB
FHCRR Core  Supplementary Core  Supplementary
Securitisation exposures Capital Capital Capital Capital

BETT BT BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DHIE Instalment loans 6 6 7 7
o A== (J) Corporate governance

AEBHNINREFSEEERKF - EARF
EANMEMBEENSH EANAEERE

Vs

EBRTMA [ AR a2 A iE e

TEER] BOFAHMRT - NTEEEE
?&iDATZ'z‘%A@?L%%’f??,\ = N
ZE8g  FNEZESeREENRKREERELZS

=
=

=P

/

o
NN
(&)

EZ% : BEMBABBERF N [
KEMEFR ] RERA

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year
with the module on 'Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors
of the Bank has established a number of committees including the
Audit Committee, Executive Personnel Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Credit & Risk Management Committee. The
compositions and functions are explained in detail in the ‘Corporate
governance and other information’.
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Corporate Governance and
Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance and

has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the module

on “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions”
issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following

committees:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the policies, procedures,
and internal and statutory regulations. It also assists the Board of
Directors in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the
Bank's financial reporting process and internal control systems. The
committee comprises five Non-executive Directors of the Bank, three
are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Personnel Committee

The committee provides oversight of the appointment or termination
of, and the succession plan of the senior executives. It also assists
the Board of Directors in selecting and recommending candidates
for vacancy on the Board of Directors. The committee comprises
six Directors of the Bank, including an Independent Non-executive
Director.

Remuneration Committee

The committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
remuneration-related policies, variable compensation schemes with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board and
taking into account legal or regulatory requirements, remuneration
packages of Senior Management and Key Personnel as defined in
the Master Remuneration Policy, and compensation arrangement in
relation to dismissal or removal of Directors. The committee has to
ensure that an annual review of the Bank's remuneration system and
its operations, which includes an assessment of consistency with the
relevant regulatory rules and guidelines, is conducted independently
of management. The committee comprises three Non-executive
Directors of the Bank, including two Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Board Committees (cont’d)

(iv)

Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank's risk management strategy, policies
and mechanism. The risks concerned primarily include credit, market,
interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and strategic risks.
The committee carries out its oversight function on the Bank’s risk
management through various committees at the Bank's management
level, including: Credit Committee, Non-Performing Loans Committee,
Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO”") and Operations Committee.
The committee comprises seven Directors of the Bank, including an
Independent Non-executive Director.

The ALCO is responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the overall risk management framework relating to statement
of financial position structure, market risks, funding and liquidity
management across the Group's banking business. It approves
policy and guidelines. The committee comprises the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer, the Chief Risk Officer
and the respective Heads of Wholesale & Cross-border Banking
Group, Personal & Business Banking Group, Market Risk and Liquidity
Modeling, International Banking Group and Central Treasury Unit. It
meets every alternate week and more often when conditions require.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and

sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has put in place the

Master Remuneration Policy and a structured reward system that enables

the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly competitive

manpower market, promote effective risk management, and support the

Bank's business objectives.

In October 2012, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the Bank's

Master Remuneration Policy and approved the changes including

enhancement of Performance Bonus scheme and the updated list of Senior

Management and Key Personnel.

0]

Reward System

The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework ("TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed component
(Guaranteed Cash), a variable component and benefits.

The variable component includes short-term reward (in the form
of performance bonus scheme) rewarding performance in the
preceding year, medium-term reward ("MTR") for retention, and long-
term incentive (“LTI") that motivates executives towards increasing
shareholders’ wealth.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (cont’d)

U]

Reward System (cont’d)

Under the Bank's remuneration system, award of variable
remuneration depends on achievement of a set of pre-defined and
assessable performance criteria including both financial and non-
financial factors. The financial and non-financial factors seek to link
performance with remuneration, promote effective risk management.
Performance criteria are reviewed on an annual basis.

Under the Performance Bonus Scheme, threshold for payment has
been set, below which, no bonus will be payable. When the threshold
for payment is reached, a percentage of Operating Profit will be
allocated as Performance Bonus based on the schedule approved by
the Remuneration Committee. Under-performance in other financial
ratios against market will lead to reduction of bonus pool.

Non-financial factors include compliance with external regulatory
requirement and internal audit findings. Unsatisfactory performance
in non-financial factors per advice of Chief Compliance Officer and
Chief Auditor will lead to reduction of Performance Bonus pool.

The provision for performance bonus will be finalized based on advice
of Chief Financial Officer in respect of the Bank’s financial position.

After the Bank’s bonus pool is finalized, the Chief Executive Officer
will allocate the pool to individual function and function heads will
in turn allocate the bonus to individual employee according to their
performance. Performance of each function and individual will
be assessed on the achievement against key measures including
financial, risk management, regulatory and compliance, growth, as
well as people and team.

The Bank's variable remuneration including performance bonus and
medium-term reward mainly takes the form of cash bonus while the
long-term incentive (“LTI") is a form of phantom share scheme.

Under the long-term incentive scheme, payment of incentive is
determined by the appreciation in the Bank's net asset value over
a 3-year period and is made at the end of the performance period.
Payment is deferred until performance results create the economic
value that triggers an award. It is a self-funding approach and is

designed to align employees’ reward with long-term value creation.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (cont’d)

U]

(ii)

Reward System (cont’d)

In addition, a portion of variable remuneration of the Bank’s Senior
Management and Key Personnel will be deferred if such exceeds
prescribed threshold, to align remuneration with the time horizon of
risk and to allow their performance, including the associated risks, be
validated over a period of time.

Senior Management is defined as head of major functional units
and Key Personnel is defined as those whose activities involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material exposures on
behalf of the Bank.

Payment of deferred remuneration will be made gradually over a
period of three years and no faster than on a pro-rata basis.

Payment of deferred remuneration, when vested, will be made
provided there is no subsequent deterioration in performance
measurement used for determining the bonus at grant and is subject
to further approval. The unvested deferred remuneration will be also
be forfeited where it is later established that there has been fraud
or other malfeasance on the part of the grantee or violations by the
grantee of internal control policies.

Methodologies and Approaches
Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration arrangement
include but not limited to the followings:

Total Compensation Framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

- Market Benchmarking to take into account market relativities,
having regard to the need to attract, motivate and retain talents.

- Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position
and therefore corresponding level of reward.

- Performance Management System linked with reward system
to support performance-oriented culture.

- Talent Identification and Classification Method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

- Promotion Committee approves recommendations on
promotion of staff at designated ranks.

—E-—gEyg
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PEERMEMER Corporate Governance and Other Information

FM=EE (&) Remuneration Matters (cont'd)
(ii) %UT%‘?@H%‘JF WEREM A () (i) Methodologies and Approaches (cont'd)
FMEEE  TH M %’*E’]uxé‘l‘iﬁiﬂ - Remuneration Committee to assist the Board in the design
RERSTERNESZE - FHEES and operation of the remuneration system. The Committee
F2012F 81T T MR g% ° held 2 meetings in 2012.
— HEFIIMFBRAE - WBAEF S8 - Engagement of external consulting firm in verification of
BEAME (AEEREME) - incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be commissioned

by the Chairman of the Board), when necessary.

(il SREEAERBARETINHMH (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
20126 - BI0REIHBEASREEA There were 10 employees being classified as Senior Management
B 2REIHWERRRBAREET - MNASE ("SM”) and 2 employees being classified as Key Personnel (“KP") during
ENEZSREEAE KBRS THHMER the financial year of 2012 and aggregate quantitative information on
HAELNT remuneration for the 12 SM and KP is set out below:

@ 20NRFHHREFEENFHNEEE - UEE @  Amounts of remuneration for the financial year 2012, split into
M - EBEHINEITE D fixed and variable remuneration:
FEIRFE R
Non-deferred Deferred
BT T BEETFIT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(& 7E Z7 A Fixed remuneration
— ¥ MoERL — Salary and allowance 26,947 -
JF B B Variable remuneration
— 1B AEAT - Performance Bonus 13,507 1,437
— R BB T2 - Medium-term Reward (“MTR") - 6,933
— RHEHENETE - Long-term Incentive ("LTI") - 5,858
b) BUREFEXZEHRZEHE - 955 (b)  Amounts and form of deferred variable remuneration, split
(i) PR20124F B HR 3P 2 B% 0l & (i) R into (i) vested and paid during financial year 2012, and (ii)
2012F12 4310 A R B BB B - 4B & outstanding and unvested as at 31 December 2012 is set out
NN below:

01RFERNRE AFEEXNERD

Awarded for Awarded for prior
performance performance
year 2012 years
BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS$'000
F20124F B HRI0 2 3 K Vested and paid during 2012
— AR R - MTR - 7,255
—RERE ~ LTI - _
201212 A31 B MAEIHN S5 Outstanding and unvested as at
1 December 2012
—BEIEAL - Performance Bonus 1,437 2,220
— R ER Bt & - MTR 6,933 13,655
—REMEN 2 - LTl 5,858 17,872

226] RFERT (BFR) AR AR
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Matters (cont’d)

(iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel (cont’d)

(@

Amounts of deferred variable remuneration for the financial
year 2012 was HK$14,228,000. The aforesaid are the Deferred
Performance Bonus, MTR and LTI to be granted for the year of
2012. According to the terms of the MTR scheme, the deferred
cash will be payable in 2015. As for the LTI, payment will be
determined by achievement of the long-term goals set for the
performance period of 3 years. The variable remuneration in
form of LTI reported in (b) above is the target cash value at
maturity upon achieving the long-term goals.

From a 2012 payment perspective, deferred variable
remuneration amounted to HKS$7,255,000 and retirement
compensation amounted to HKS$5,135,000 was paid out. No
discount of deferred variable remuneration was made for
performance adjustment.

No Senior Management or Key Personnel has been awarded
with guaranteed bonus, sign-on or severance payment during
financial year of 2012.

Quantitative information about employees’ exposure to implicit
and explicit adjustments of deferred remuneration and retained
remuneration:

BT T
(HKS'000)

1 7R 32 AT 1T T 9 AR A sk PR R A R Y Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and

3T 3 7 P retained remuneration exposed to ex post explicit/

implicit adjustments 23,730

RAMEEE - ARAESERAE Total amount of reductions during the financial year due
i B R < 3R AT S i 48 58 to ex post explicit/implicit adjustments -

—E—-FFR 227
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